Agenda
For enquiries on this agenda, please contact:
Jean Cousens tel. 020 8547 5023
e-mail: jean.cousens@kingston.gov.uk

Published on Friday 12 April 2019

Council
Date:

Wednesday 24 April 2019

Time:

7:30 pm

Place:

The Guildhall, Kingston upon Thames, KT1 1EU

Opening of Meeting
The Mayor will invite his Assistant Chaplain to open the meeting.
Emergency Evacuation Arrangements
On hearing the alarm which is a loud siren please leave the building by the nearest
available fire exit and assemble by the triangle at the front of the Guildhall. Anyone
requiring assistance to evacuate the building should proceed to the refuge areas which
are situated outside Committee Room 1 and the Mayor’s Parlour where you will be met by
a member of the building management team and assisted from the building.
1.

Apologies

2.

Declarations of Interest

Members are invited to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests and any other nonpecuniary interests (personal interests) relevant to items on this agenda.
3.

Minutes

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of Budget Council held on 26
February 2019
4.

Mayor's Announcements

2
5.

Petitions

Appendix A

5.1
To receive any petitions – members of the Council or a member of the public may
present a petition to the Council on a matter in relation to which the Council has powers,
duties or which affects the Royal Borough.
5.2
To debate the petitions referred to in the report at Appendix A of the agenda.
[Under the Council’s Petition Scheme, petitions with more than 500 signatures will be
debated by the full Council - if possible, at the next ordinary Council meeting after
submission.]
6.

Motion

In accordance with Standing Order No 8(A)(5), the Council will debate a motion which has
been submitted by Members of the Council.
This will alternate, from meeting to meeting, between a motion submitted on behalf of the
Administration and a motion submitted on behalf of Opposition Members of the Council.
The following Motion has been received from the Conservative Group:
Proposed by Councillor David Cunningham
Seconded by Councillor Kevin Davis
“This Council notes that:
1.

Air quality is a concern for residents and this Council;

2.

The latest figures available demonstrate that on average there are 5 attributable
deaths people per ward in the Borough from PM2.5 pollution (NB this does not mean
that this number die, but that this is the equivalent level of pollution total pollutionrelated deaths) Source: Air Quality Information for Public Health Professionals Greater London Authority;

3.

Since 2012 we have seen improvements in air quality in 24 of the 40 areas that we
monitor;

4.

There have been improvements in our two worst polluted areas of Cromwell Road
and Tolworth roundabout, but that there have been significant increases in pollution
on areas of the Kingston Relief Road and near the Cambridge Estate.

“This Council believes that:
Despite what has been done more action is required to tackle this public health
problem and that it needs to be done quickly.
“This Council resolves that:
1.

The Administration brings forward in 60 days a new air quality implementation plan
that:
a.

is discussed at the Environment and Sustainability Committee on 24 June
2019, and recommended to Full Council to debate and agree at the meeting of
the 9 July 2019;

b.

brings forward a costed plan to implement on-street electric charging on
residential roads and prevent trailing cables littering the streets where owners
have no driveways;

3
c.

consults on and introduces an anti-idling scheme and fines for taxis, mini-cabs
and cars at stations and schools;

d.

works with schools on main transport routes to bring forward a costed plan
and timescale for implementation of defensive air quality measures on school
boundaries;

e.

designs and consults on changes to the relief road in Kingston;

f.

creates a costed plan for “after GO cycle” to demonstrate the future ongoing
commitment of this council to cycling and ensure that the Mayor’s GO Cycle
money is good value through further council investment;

g.

consults and costs a cycle hire scheme that works for all the Borough and not
just transport nodes;

h.

creates a plan for green screens, walls and algae tubes at major transport
nodes, in particular at major bus stops.

2.

Until such time as this new strategic implementation plan is brought forward, the
Council will suspend any unilateral schemes that are perceived to improve air
quality and are not targeted for implementation across the entire borough until such
time as Full Council ratifies the implementation action plan on the 9 July 2019.

3.

Agree that any schemes arising out of the new implementation plan must be
subject to full public engagement and consultation with residents outside any formal
statutory requirements.”

7.

Motion: Declaration of Climate Emergency

In accordance with Standing Order No 8(A)(3) and (6), the following Motion has been
submitted by the Administration – to be moved and seconded without comment and stand
referred without discussion to the Environment and Sustainable Transport Committee.
Proposed by Councillor Hilary Gander
Seconded by Councillor Sam Foulder-Hughes
Climate Emergency
“This Council notes:
(i)
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

the impacts of climate breakdown are already causing serious damage around the
world;
unfortunately, while current plans and actions locally are making a difference, they
are not enough. The world is on track to overshoot the Paris Agreement’s 1.5°C
limit before 2050;
the ‘Special Report on Global Warming of 1.5°C’, published by the
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change in October 2018:
(a) describes the enormous harm that a 2°C average rise in global
temperatures is likely to cause compared with a 1.5°C rise; and
(b) confirms that limiting Global Warming to 1.5°C may still be possible with
ambitious action from national and sub-national authorities, civil society and the
private sector.
all governments (national, regional and local) have a duty to act, and local
governments that recognise this should not wait for their national governments to
change their policies;
strong policies to cut emissions also have associated health, wellbeing and
economic benefits; and that recognising this;

4
(vi)
(vii)

a growing number of UK local authorities have already passed 'Climate
Emergency' motions; and
individuals cannot be expected to make this reduction on their own. Society
needs to change its laws, taxation, infrastructure, etc. to make low carbon living
easier and the new norm.

“This Council resolves to:
(i)
(ii)

(iii)
(iv)
(v)

(vi)
(vii)
(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

8.

declare a ‘Climate Emergency’ that requires urgent action;
establish a new working group, with a remit to:
(a) draw together the work of the Council, already underway, to reduce the
impacts of climate change, identify gaps and develop a plan that aims to set a
challenging target date of 2038 for carbon neutrality and a baseline figure
from which achievement will be measured;
seek advice from experts to develop 5-year carbon budgets, across all the
Council’s activities;
consider the climate change impact of the Council’s activities to inform the action
plan;
to assess the feasibility of requiring all risk and procurement assessments to
include Carbon Emission Appraisals, including presenting alternative approaches
which reduce emissions wherever possible;
the working group will include council officers, partners and Members from across
the Council;
task a director-level officer with responsibility for reducing the carbon emissions
resulting from the Council’s activities according to the plan;
equip all our staff, particularly those involved with planning, buildings, energy and
transport management and procurement of goods and services, with an
awareness of the CO2 costs and impacts of everyday activities, and the ability and
motivation to reduce emissions;
report on the level of investment in the fossil fuel industry that our pensions plan
and other investments have, and review the Council’s investment strategy to give
due consideration to climate change impacts in the investment portfolio;
work towards involving the wider community, including local businesses and our
young people, in shaping the future, through a workshops or Citizen's Assemblies;
and
call on the UK Government to provide the powers, resources and help with funding
to make this possible, and ask local MPs to do likewise.”

Community Motion under Standing Order 7A

Under Standing Order 7(A), a minimum of 500 interested people may present a motion for
debate relevant to an issue which affects the Royal Borough at any ordinary meeting of
the Council. An interested person is defined as somebody who lives, works, studies or
owns a property or business in the Borough. The Council shall consider the motion as
soon as possible and, wherever practicable, at its next ordinary meeting.
At the meeting, a representative of the signatories will have a period of up to five minutes
to address the meeting on the subject. A further period of up to ten minutes shall be
allowed for questions and answers, following which there will be a maximum of 30 minutes
in which members of the public present will be given the opportunity to address the

5
meeting for up to 3 minutes each. After this time, the Council will consider the motion and
may accept, modify or reject it.
In accordance with the provisions of Standing Order 7A, a community motion, which has
been accepted as valid, has been submitted as set out below. A briefing paper will be
circulated prior to the Council meeting to assist Members to debate this Community
Motion.
“Demanding Better on Resident Parking
"This Council notes:
(i)

(ii)
(iii)

(iv)

the failure of the Liberal Democrat administration to meet their promises, set out in
their 2018 local manifesto, to "", and instead pursue a regressive tax on residents
living within CPZs;
the huge public outcry in response to these changes, which has resulted in a
petition of over 2000 signatures;
the lack of openness and transparency in consultation carried out by the current
administration and the feelings being expressed by residents that consultation is
just a tick box exercise, that they are being ignored by RBK and that the Council is
just doing whatever it wants to do; and
the failure of the Liberal Democrat administration to meet their promise, set out in
their 2018 local manifesto, to '', which further reinforces the feeling that RBK will just
do whatever it wants to, regardless of the views of residents.

This Council believes:
(i)

(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

the Liberal Democrat Council is not engaging with residents; that public consultation
has been poor in general but particularly bad in regard to the proposed CPZ
charges;
it is important to find ways to drive behavioural change and improve air quality in the
borough by discouraging unnecessary car journeys, encouraging the use of
environmentally friendly forms of transport, through less regressive means;
a regressive tax on older vehicles, whilst allowing newly purchased £100k cars to
have free permits, will hit the financially vulnerable the most in our borough; and
it is imperative that residents feel the Council is doing things with residents, not to
residents, and, as such, does not consider consultations a 'tick-box' exercise.

This Council resolves to:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)

(vi)

listen to and engage with our residents;
be sure we have identified groups that need to be included in our consultations and
communications;
properly consult with our residents on issues that affect them;
be accountable to our residents;
make sure senior Administration politicians are answerable to our residents for
policy and that they do not stand behind Council officers who are employed to
implement policy agreed by politicians; and
in light of the thousands of residents who have displayed their opposition to the
proposed CPZ charges, to immediately halt the rollout of changes to resident
parking permits, and seek a better way forward."

6
9.

Questions

In accordance with Standing Order 6 (1&2) replies will be given to questions of which
notice has been given which may be addressed to the Mayor, the Leader of the Council,
Portfolio Holders, the Leader of the Opposition, Chairs of the Standing and
Neighbourhood Committees and Members representing the Council on Outside Bodies.
10.

LGA Corporate Peer Review

Appendix B

To consider the report with recommendations at Appendix B of the agenda pack.
11.

Cambridge Road Estate Redevelopment Joint Venture Contract
Award

Appendix C

To consider the report with recommendations at Appendix C of the agenda pack.
12.

Appointment of Monitoring Officer

A local authority is legally required to designate certain statutory officer posts, among
which is the role of Monitoring Officer under the provisions of Section 5 of the Local
Government and Housing Act1989. The primary role of the Monitoring Officer is to ensure
lawfulness and fairness of decision making. The Monitoring Officer contributes to the
promotion and maintenance of high standards of conduct through the provision of support
to the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee. The officer is also responsible for
the maintenance of the Register of Members’ Interests and the separate Register of Gifts
and Hospitality and provides advice on the scope of powers and authority to take
decisions, maladministration, financial impropriety, and budget and policy framework
issues to all Councillors.
In view of the forthcoming departure from the Council of the current Monitoring Officer
(and Assistant Director, Governance and Law), Quentin Baker, it is therefore necessary to
appoint a suitable replacement on a temporary basis pending a permanent appointment to
this position.
Marie Rosenthal qualified as a solicitor in 1983 and has worked in senior positions in a
number of local authorities including Hertfordshire CC, Swindon BC, and City of Cardiff
Council.
It is recommended that Marie Rosenthal be designated as the Council’s Monitoring
Officer with immediate effect for the period until a new Assistant Director of Governance
and Law is appointed.
13.

Returning Officer and Electoral Registration Officer

The statutory functions of Returning Officer (RO) for Elections and Referenda, and
Electoral Registration Officer (ERO) are currently undertaken by the Assistant Director of
Governance and Law (who is designated as the Proper Officer for these functions within
the Council’s Constitution).
The Electoral Registration Officer is responsible for the preparation and maintenance of
the registers of parliamentary electors for any parliamentary constituency (or part of a
constituency) within its area, and of local government electors for its area. The Returning
Officer holds personal statutory responsibility for the effective delivery of these elections.

7
In view of the forthcoming departure from the Council of the current Assistant Director of
Governance and Law, Quentin Baker, it is necessary to designate a Returning Officer and
Electoral Registration Officer.
Recommended that:
1.

in accordance with the Representation of the People Act 1983 and all related
legislation, Ian Thomas, the Chief Executive (Head of Paid Service) of the Council
is appointed with immediate effect as:(a)
Returning Officer, and designated the Proper Officer for the purposes
of Elections and Referenda; and
(b)

2.

14.

Electoral Registration Officer; and

the Monitoring Officer is authorised to make any consequential changes to the
Constitution and Scheme of Delegations.
Statutory and Proper Officer functions

Following the establishment of the role of Corporate Head of Democratic and Electoral
Services, it is recommended that the following Statutory and Proper Officer functions
listed in Article 11.01(c) of the Constitution, which were allocated to the Democratic
Services Team Leader, are now allocated to the Corporate Head of Democratic and
Electoral Services:
Statutory Officer:
 Scrutiny Officer
Proper Office functions:
 Notice of political groups
 Certification of copies of minutes, byelaws or other documents
15.

Approval of Member absence

The law provides that where a Council member fails throughout a period of six
consecutive months from the date of their last attendance to attend any meetings of the
authority then, subject to certain exceptions, they cease to be a member of the authority
unless the failure was due to some reason approved before the expiry of that period.
The authority’s approval if not limited in time (and most authorities in giving approval will
specify both the reason to which the approval relates and the period for which it will run),
lasts until it ceases to have effect because the councillor has resumed attendance, or the
reason to which the approval relates no longer applies or the councillors’ term of office has
ended.
When ill-health is a reason for absence, it is not always possible to provide a definite time
for resumption of attendance. Therefore the Council is initially requested to approve the
absence, on health grounds, of Councillor Fiona Boult until 10 July 2019, as it will
potentially be the case that, by late May, Councillor Boult will have been absent from
meetings of the Council for six months, on the grounds of ill-health. (Should the request
for a further leave of absence be required, this would be submitted to the Council meeting
on 9 July 2019.)

8
16.

Appointments to Committees, Panels and other bodies

The Council is recommended to make the following appointments to the Health and
Wellbeing Board:
(1) Following the retirement of Siobhan Clarke as Managing Director of Your Healthcare
CIC), it is recommended that Ed Montgomery, who is currently one of Ms Clarke’s
alternates on the Health and Wellbeing Board, and is to be appointed the interim
Managing Director of Your Healthcare, be appointed as the (non-voting) advisory member
representing Your Healthcare on the Health and Wellbeing Board, replacing Ms Clarke.
Grant Henderson will continue as alternate Board member.
(2) It is recommended that Dr Annette Pautz be appointed as alternate for all three
representatives from the Clinical Commissioning Group (Dr Naz Jivani, Dr Phil Moore and
Dr Pete Smith) who are voting (non-elected) members of the Health and Wellbeing Board.
(Dr Pautz has previously been appointed solely as Dr Jivani's alternate.)
17.

Election of the Mayor for 2019/20

At the Council meeting on 20 March 2001 it was agreed that, other than in an Election
Year, the Mayor should be elected at the Ordinary Council meeting immediately preceding
the Annual Meeting. (In an Election Year the Mayoral election would take place at the
Annual Meeting, as it did in 2018.)
Accordingly, the Council is asked to elect the Mayor for the Royal Borough for the
Municipal Year 2019/20.
Nominations received will be circulated for the Council meeting.
The formal installation of the Mayor will take place at the Annual Meeting on 14 May 2019
18.

Urgent Items authorised by the Mayor

To consider any items which, in the view of the Mayor, should be dealt with as a matter of
urgency because of special circumstances in accordance with S100B(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972.
19.

Exclusion of the Press and Public

The following resolution is included as a standard item which will only be relevant if any
exempt matter is to be considered at the meeting for which the Committee wish to resolve
to exclude the press and public: To exclude the public from the meeting under Section
100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds that it is likely that exempt
information, as defined in paragraph *….of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act, would be
disclosed and the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public
interest in disclosing the information. (*relevant regulatory paragraph to be indicated)
Background Papers held by Democratic Support 020 8547 5023
 Relevant Committee Agendas

A1

Appendix A

Council
24 April 2019
Petitions
Under the Council’s Petitions Scheme, the Council welcomes petitions from those who live,
work, or study in the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames, and will debate any petition with
over 500 eligible signatures. This report therefore provides information to assist Members to
debate two petitions which have been submitted with over 500 eligible signatures.
The petition organiser will be given five minutes to present the petition at the meeting and
the petition will then be discussed by Councillors for a maximum of 30 minutes. The Council
will decide how to respond to the petition at this meeting, and the petition organiser will
receive written confirmation of this decision after the meeting. The Council’s decision may be
to refer the petition for further detailed discussion at a relevant Committee.
(A)

Children’s Centres Petition

Report by the Director of Children’s Services
Background
1.

At the Council meeting on 26 February 2019 a petition relating to Children’s Centres
was submitted by Ms Jenny Lister. The hard copy of this petition received 234 eligible
signatures and an online version of the petition had collected 345 eligible signatures on
the e-petitions facility on the Council’s website through which it was submitted on 28
February.

2.

The wording of the petition was as follows:
“We strongly oppose the proposed closures of half of the children’s centres within the
borough of Kingston. We fervently believe that the changes in how the remainder operate,
including the removal of sessions into the community will not be sufficient to meet local need
and will raise serious safeguarding concerns. We insist that the children’s centres remain
open. In the event of closures, we demand financial investment ensuring that:
●
●
●
●
●

The remaining centres can be fully staffed;
Each centre has a full time member of staff available to parents throughout the week;
The remaining centres are able to meet the needs of a greater number of families;
Sessions currently being held continue to run within the children’s centre buildings;
Any sessions held in alternative local venues must guarantee that:
a. the general public cannot access families;
b. parents can converse with staff privately in a separate room; and
c. there is wheelchair access.

We ask that the Council seriously consider the detrimental impact that the proposed
changes would have for many families and that the investment in our children and their
futures should be a priority.”

3.

The petition relates to proposals for the Children’s Centre Strategy which were subject
to consultation from 12 December 2018 - 4 February 2019. A report on the proposals
and consultation was submitted to the meeting of the Children’s and Adults Care and
Education Committee on 21 March 2019. This report is attached at Annex 1 of this
report. After consideration of the report and after hearing representations at the
meeting, the Committee agreed that:
1.

the results of the public consultation (as set out in paragraphs 12-15 and Annex
1 of the report) on the future direction for children’s centres provision in
Kingston are noted and considered;

A2

2.
3.

Norbiton and Surbiton Children’s Centres are remodelled from June 2019 and
the provision of services will be offered through outreach into the local
communities; and
New Malden and North Kingston Children centres are remodelled from April
2020 with a phased reduction in children centre activity to target those most in
need (as set out in paragraph 10 of the report).

Comments of the Director of Children’s Services in response to the petition
4.

The Director’s comments in response to specific points in the petition (shown in italics
with bullet points) are as follows:
●

The remaining centres can be fully staffed;

Response: There will continue to be appropriate staffing arrangements to ensure safe and effective
delivery of Children’s Centre provision at remaining Children’s Centre sites.
●

Each centre has a full time member of staff available to parents throughout the week;

Response: Our current model of staffing is based on flexible deployment of the Children’s Centre
workforce across our delivery sites rather than having staff linked to particular buildings. This enables
effective and efficient use of the workforce whilst also providing better resilience. We do not envisage
this to change as a result of our proposals.
●

The remaining centres are able to meet the needs of a greater number of families;

Response: An outreach delivery approach alongside the core provision at remaining sites will
continue to meet the needs of local families who access the service and potential new service users.
●

Sessions currently being held continue to run within the children’s centre buildings;

Response: The programme in each centre is planned based on needs/themes and service user
consultation and is produced on a termly basis with a variation in provision across the school holiday
periods. Current provision will continue for core activities and as is currently the case some sessions
may change to accommodate new activities, such as Adult Learning courses, parenting programmes.
We will also continue to plan the programme of activities in consultation with service users and
emerging needs/themes to ensure we meet the needs of the local community.
●

Any sessions held in alternative local venues must guarantee that:
a. the general public cannot access families;

Response: In our current outreach provision all sites are Risk Assessed prior to use and safety of
families remains of paramount importance. Access by the general public is not something we
currently allow and we would continue to apply a robust assessment to any future venues from which
we may deliver provision.
● b. parents can converse with staff privately in a separate room; and
Response: Where possible we seek outreach venues with the facility to provide separate spaces for
private discussions; however, this is not always possible. In our current outreach venues we manage
this on a site by site basis with the Children Centre staff members. We do not always have access
to a seperate space but discreet conversations are still undertaken and support, information and
advice are regularly given by staff members during outreach sessions.
● c. there is wheelchair access.
Response: As is the case currently, all of our venues are assessed to be DDA compliant.

Recommendation
The Council is recommended to note the petition and the Director’s response above.

A3

(B) ‘Save the Fishponds Park’ in Surbiton Petition
Report by the Director, Corporate and Commercial
Relevant Members: Portfolio Holder for Environment and Sustainable Transport and Chair
of Surbiton Neighbourhood Committee
Background
1.

At the Council meeting on 26 February 2019 a petition relating to the Fishponds Park in
Surbiton was submitted by Mr Bob Phillips. The hard copy of this petition received 263
eligible signatures and an online version of the petition had collected 577 eligible
signatures on the Change.Org petition site.

2.

The wording of the petition was as follows:
“The Surbiton Branch of the Labour Party demands that Kingston Council invest in a
professional engineering project to repair the Fishponds water pumps. Kingston Council
must then allocate funds to maintain a healthy wildlife environment thereafter.”

Comments of the Corporate Head of Contractsin response to the petition
3.

RBK is committed to working with the community and the ‘Friends of Fishponds’ to improve the
quality of the site, including the pond system.

Pond System
4.

Investigations into water quality facilitated by the Freshwater Habitats Trust testing kits have
indicated the water quality is in good condition with low levels of nitrates and phosphates. The
ponds currently support healthy populations of a number of bird species including mallard,
moorhen, tufted duck and heron, while also supporting good numbers of amphibians. Other
habitats within the park also support a rich biodiversity.

5.

The pump system does pump water to the top pond but there is concern over the ability of this
pond to sufficiently retain water due to partial disintegration of the pond liner. This means any
water that is pumped to the top pond cannot effectively flow down to the main bottom pond.

6.

The ponds are naturally topped up through rainfall and consideration must be given that locally
the water table has dropped. The Hogsmill River is seeing extremely low flows, alongside
prolonged periods of low rainfall. This reduction in the water table may be detrimental to the
viability of the ponds circulation system and prevent it from being operated unless the water
levels rise. However, circulation of the water is not a direct requirement for the ponds to be
healthy.

Funding a scheme
7.

RBK has previously recognised the need for investment within this site and considered the
likely scale of funding required. Whilst the focus of this petition is on the water bodies and
associated environment within the park, it is the view of RBK that there are also wider historical
landscape and heritage parkland features which should also be considered for improvement
and restoration.

8.

It was considered that the scale of capital funding required to complete a significant
improvement of the site was beyond that currently available for this type of project within the
Council’s own capital programme. It was also considered that the project could be eligible for
grant funding to match fund any contribution put forward by the Council and would be a
preferred option for taking the project forward.

9.

In order to take forward a realistic external funding bid for Fishponds, it was considered that
several specialist studies needed to be completed, these included an initial historic parkland
and landscape study to assess whether the site had sufficient heritage merit to make it a

A4
potential candidate for heritage lottery funding (HLF). HLF are one of the few funding bodies of
sufficient scale to make this project a reality.
10.

The project was defined within the Community Parks Programme, 2018 – 2022, which was
approved by Council in February 2018. The excerpt from the programme, referring to
Fishponds is outlined below. It should be noted that in the interim, HLF has withdrawn its
specific Parks for People funding programme and all bids will now be considered within a single
heritage programme.

Next steps
11.

The part of the project to complete the heritage study of the site has been procured and
awarded. The consultants will commence the project with a public meeting of interested
stakeholders and individuals and it is planned to hold the initial meeting during April 2019.
Following that meeting the consultancy will complete their assessments and report on the
priority options for restoration and improvement, and the potential to receive grant funding for
the site. This report will be completed in July 2019.

12.

Given the complexity of the existing and past water features and degree of contouring within
the site, a full topographical survey is being carried out by the council’s surveying team. This
will ensure that any proposed physical changes to the site and water systems are correctly
measured and assessed prior to any interventions. This will also greatly assist in developing
future designs and costed proposals prior to submitting grant funding applications.

13.

The Council also has access to the hydrological surveys and water management plan for the
site which were prepared on behalf of Thames Water, prior to them completing the Browns
Road, Storm Water Flood Alleviation Scheme in 2009. The delivery of this scheme included the
construction of a storm overflow to outfall in the existing ponds in Fishponds and attenuation of
flows in the ponds. There were also modifications to control structures and earthworks. The
integrity and purpose of the flood alleviation scheme will have to be retained as part of any
future site modifications.

14.

The existing and potential biodiversity and environmental value of the site is of great local
importance, a Phase 1 Habitat Survey to confirm the value of the site will be completed this
year and is also a requirement of potential grant funding sources. For example, HLF
announced a new funding strategy in January 2019 and where the application involves parks or
landscapes, bidders have to demonstrate that their proposals retain existing biodiversity and
create additional biodiversity enhancements.

15.

If there is confirmed merit in progressing external grant funding applications for the site, RBK
will consider the resource implications of developing detailed funding applications. If the
preferred option is to apply to the Heritage Lottery Fund an ‘Expression of Interest Form’ would
be submitted in September/October 2019 and that would indicate by the end of the year
whether there was an option of progressing the application. The decision on whether to
progress a funding application would be taken by the appropriate Service Director.

16.

The community will be kept fully engaged and informed with what is planned for the site as their
support will be essential if any application is to succeed. This will include engagement with the
Friends of Fishponds Park and through the Council’s communication platforms. The
stakeholder and community engagement process would also be required to develop a body of
evidence that the community were supportive and enthusiastic about the proposed
improvements to Fishponds Park.

A5
17.

The clear support from the community which has already been generated by this petition will
also be valuable evidence of support to demonstrate to potential funders that this is a
worthwhile project for consideration.

Recommendation
The Council is recommended to debate the views expressed in the petition in relation to Fishponds
Park. It is further recommended that the Council considers and agrees the approach in responding to
the petition which officers have proposed within the report above.
The ultimate decision on whether to progress the project, will be determined by the financial
contribution required to be made by the Council and in compliance with Standing Orders.

A6

A7
Children’s and Adults’ Care and Education Committee

Annex 1

21 March 2019
Children’s Centre Strategy
Report by the Interim Director of Children’s Services
Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor Diane White

Purpose
To report on the outcomes of consultation on children’s centre provision in Kingston upon
Thames and recommend future delivery model of children’s centre services in line with the
Children’s Centres Strategy and in response to the feedback from the public consultation.
Recommendations
To resolve that 1.

the results of the public consultation (as set out in paragraphs 12-15 and Annex 1 of
the report) on the future direction for children’s centres provision in Kingston are noted
and considered;

2.

Norbiton and Surbiton Children’s Centres are remodelled from June 2019 and the
provision of services will be offered through outreach into the local communities; and

3.

New Malden and North Kingston Children centres are remodelled from April 2020 with
a phased reduction in children centre activity to target those most in need (as set out
in paragraph 10 of the report).

Benefits to the Community:
The proposals aim to maximise available resources by targeting children’s centre provision
at the most vulnerable families in the most deprived areas through outreach, while ensuring
children, young people and families continue to receive a high quality children’s centre offer
in Kingston.

Key Points
A.

This Committee approved the Children Centre Strategy on 20 September 2018, which
set out to strengthen the outreach provision, maximise resources and target the most
vulnerable families in the deprived communities in Kingston.

B.

Public consultation was undertaken to gather the views of service users with 744
responses received, representing approximately 15.0% of service users who are
currently accessing children’s centre provision.

C.

The key findings from the consultation are set out in paragraph 13 of the report. The
detailed consultation findings can be found in Annex 1 of the report.

D.

This report outlines a proposal on remodelling children centre provision, taking
account of the required savings of £240,000 and wider council savings required of
£12.1m.

A8

E.

Members are to note the statutory definition of a children’s centre which is: A place or
group of places:
i) which is managed by or on behalf of, or under arrangements with, the local authority
with a view to securing that early childhood services in the local authority’s area are
made available in an integrated way.
ii) through which early childhood services are made available (either by providing the
services on site, or by providing advice and assistance on gaining access to services
elsewhere); and
iii) at which activities for young children are provided.
It follows from the statutory definition of a children’s centre that children’s centres are
as much about making appropriate and integrated services available, as it is about
providing premises in particular geographical areas.

Context
1.

Local authorities have a statutory duty to ensure there are sufficient children’s
centre services to meet the needs of children aged 0-4 and their families.

2.

The core purpose of children’s centres is to improve outcomes for young children
and their families and reduce inequalities between families in greatest need and
their peers. This is achieved through a range of early childhood services.

3.

Kingston has an outstanding track record in achieving excellent outcomes for
children in early years through our network of childminders, nursery schools, early
years’ providers and early years health services. This is particularly important for
those children and their families who may need additional support in the early years
because of their vulnerable circumstances.

4.

The challenging financial situation, both nationally and locally, requires a new way
of working to ensure that children’s centre provision is able to continue to deliver a
high quality offer.

5.

Recent research highlights that 1,000 children’s centres have ceased providing
services since 2010.
Nationally the average reduction in children’s centre provision is 34.8%. The
majority of Kingston’s statistical neighbours have already reduced or proposed a
reduction in children’s centre provision. This is set out in the table below:
Local Authority

% children centres closures (2009-10 to 2018)

Barnet

7.7% reduction

Bracknell Forest

Reduction in hours

Oxfordshire

80.0% reduction (proposed)

Reading

69.2% reduction

Surrey

71.0% reduction (proposed)

Sutton

21.0% reduction

A9

Consultation proposal
6.

In the context of the financial position in Kingston, the continued occupation of eight main
children’s centre sites across the borough is unsustainable in terms of finances and the
staff resource to offer a full range of services.

7.

The public consultation proposed to:

8.

○

decommission four children’s centres (Norbiton, Surbiton, New Malden; North
Kingston);

○

provide a strengthened offer of services and outreach to local communities;

○

continue to provide a core offer of children’s centre activities at the following sites:
Chessington, Kingston Town, Old Malden and Tolworth Children’s Centres.

The reasons for the proposed decommissioning of the four centres are set out in the
table below:
Children’s Centres
Norbiton

Surbiton

North Kingston

New Malden

Lowest number of
exclusive users

Smaller centre with no
room for expansion

Not located in or near
a deprived area

Limited activity
programme- was
reduced when
children’s centre
services remodelled
into clusters

Regular users mainly
access health services
that can be provided at
alternative sites and
close proximity to
outreach e.g.
Dickerage Lane Youth
Centre less than 0.1
miles away

Outreach sites include
nearby nursery which
is less than 0.1 miles
away from the current
site

Regular users mainly
access midwifery
services which can be
provided at nearby
centres and clinical
settings

1.6 miles to Old
Malden Children’s
Centre which
continues to offer a
similar programme
including access to
health services and
English as an
Additional Language

Within 1.2 miles of
Kingston Town
Children’s Centre

Within 0.9 miles of
Tolworth Children’s
Centre

1.5 miles to Kingston
Town Children’s
Centre

9.

The consultation responses highlighted that Children Centre activities are highly
valued by residents, particularly in New Malden and North Kingston, as well as those
centres which were not proposed for change.

Proposals
10.

Following the public consultation, it is proposed to:
(1)

remodel the delivery of services from Norbiton and Surbiton Children’s Centres
by June 2019 and provide service delivery through an outreach approach within
local communities at Dickerage Youth Centre and within the Surbiton area (see
point (3) below).

A10
remodel the delivery of services from North Kingston and New Malden Children’s
Centres by April 2020, using a phased approach to reducing children’s centre
activities to target those in most need, whilst taking account of the needs of the
local communities to support the transition to a new model of delivery.

(2)

(3)

strengthen the outreach provision by providing children centre activities from the
following locations :
●
●
●
●

Kingsnympton;
Dickerage Youth Centre;
Cambridge Road Estate; and
Surbiton area.

In developing this new model, the children’s centre workforce will be redesigned into
a borough based delivery model as set out in the strategy and the following key
actions arising from the consultation feedback will be implemented:
(a)

prioritise the services identified as popular and important.

(b)

work with health partners, such as health visiting and midwifery, to ensure there
continues to be a good offer of health services available to families. Health
provision will continue under the new arrangements in different venues.

(c)

continue to explore the potential to extend the range of venues and sites to
deliver children’s centre activities.

(d)

pilot an extension of the range of provision for children aged 5-11 years old
during school holidays.

(e)

work with the Parent Fora attached to children’s centres to identify income
generating opportunities.

(f)

rebrand the children’s centres into children and family centres.

Next steps
11.

Should the above proposals be resolved, the next steps would be to:
●

develop an implementation plan to deliver the agreed proposals;

●

publish consultation findings; and

●

implement a communications plan to inform key stakeholders.

Consultations
12.

The public consultation ran for over seven weeks from 12 December 2018 to 4
February 2019. There were a total of 744 responses. A range of approaches were
used to collect the responses. This included:
●

an initial email to all registered children’s centre users to encourage them to
take part and follow up email to remind them to complete the survey.

●

a printed link to the survey was given out to all service users across all sites
including outreach sites throughout the consultation period.

●

staff in children’s centres promoted the consultation and provided access to
complete the online survey to users at the centres, as well as offering paper
copies.

●

focused sessions were held in all eight sites and outreach venues.

●

where necessary, one to one support was provided to help users participate,
offered translation services, and held targeted sessions with specific hard to

A11
reach users e.g. in New Malden with families who have English as an additional
language.

●
13.

publicising the consultation on the AfC Local Offer website, through social
media and through key stakeholders and partners.

The detailed findings from the consultation are included in Annex 1 and are
summarised below:

Experience of using children’s centres
●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

The children’s centres most used by the respondents are North Kingston (18.8%); Tolworth
(18.0%); Kingston Town (16.6%); and Chessington (14.3%). The least used centres are
Surbiton (13.5%); New Malden (11.0%); Old Malden (6.1%); and Norbiton (1.7%). The
percentage of respondents who use Norbiton was particularly low.
In terms of which other children’s centres are used, Surbiton (39.1%); Tolworth (32.9%);
Kingston Town (28.9%); and Chessington (20.3%) are the most used. North Kingston (15.7%);
New Malden (15.7%); Old Malden (15.5%); and Norbiton (13.6%) are the least used.
Children’s centres are well used- almost half of respondents (46.2%) stated they visited
children’s centres one or two times a week and a fifth (20.6%) said they attend two to four times
per month.
The most popular services delivered at the children’s centres are Stay and Play (83.9%); health
visitors (66.2%); Rhyme Time (56.3%); Messy Play (48.5%); and baby massage (40.9%). Other
popular services noted included Baby, Junior and Mama Jammers, breastfeeding advice and
support, and Crafty Tales.
The most important services delivered were Stay and Play (97.6%); health visitors (93.4%);
early years advice (91.9%); Messy Play (91.1%); and childcare advice (86.7%). Other services
noted as important included the range of support on offer including breastfeeding support and
Jammers.
Respondents were keen to emphasise the importance of the support and help provided at the
centres, the social and community aspects they provide and the play and development
opportunities.
The least popular services were domestic violence support (1.4%); English as an additional
language sessions (1.7%); JobCentre Plus advice (1.7%); foodbank vouchers (2.5%); and
benefit advice (4.2%). The services considered least important were English as an additional
language (27.5%); foodbank vouchers (24.6%); JobCentre Plus advice (23.3%); benefit advice
(21.4%); and family support worker support (18.8%).
Although these services, which are more aimed at parents, were considered less important,
95.0% of respondents stated that they agreed they could ask for support advice relating to
issues such as health, parenting skills or employment and training from a children’s centre.
Respondents praised the support and advice that is given and the helpful and approachable
staff.
In terms of getting to the centres, 86.7% of respondents stated that they walked, with 20.7%
driving. Respondents emphasised the importance of being able to access local provision, ideally
by foot.

Proposals for the future of children’s centres in Kingston
●
●

64.5% of respondents do not agree with the proposals (strongly disagree/ disagree). 21.3%
agree (strongly agree/ agree) and 14.2% neither agree nor disagree.
Of the comments provided: 16.7% of respondents can understand the reasons for the
proposals; 15.5% thought the proposals are unfair for those who cannot travel easily and may

A12
lead to increased isolation for parents; 14.5% thought the Council should re-prioritise to find
funding for the children’s centres; and 10.0% expressed concern about remaining children’s
centre becoming too busy.
Just under half of respondents (46.6%) stated the proposals would definitely make it more
difficult to access children’s centre services. 29.9% stated it would make it more difficult to some
extent, 20.6% said it wouldn’t make it more difficult, and 3.0% said they did not know. The main
comments related to concerns about the capacity of remaining children’s centres and the
distance and time taken to travel to a children’s centre.
Just over half of the respondents (51.2%) stated that the changes would mean that they would
not use the children’s centres as much in the future and 15.7% stated they would not use
children’s centres at all. 17.0% of respondents the proposals said it would have no impact at all
and 15.6% said they would use another children’s centre in the future. Concerns raised related
to the capacity of the remaining centres and the required travel.
Respondents said they would stop using children’s centres or use them less because of
additional travel travel (60.5%); sessions being too full (44.6%); and 44.6% said they would be
unable to travel to any other locations.
Respondents were asked for comments about how else children’s centre services could be
sustained- responses included re-prioritising other council services (33.6%); seek voluntary
contributions (22.4%); or fundraise (21.6%).

●

●

●

●

Enhancing the children’s centre offer
●

Just under half (49.4%) of respondents agreed with the proposals to redevelop the remaining
children’s centres to offer a wider range of services. 30.1% of respondents did not agree.
The most popular name for the new centres was ‘Children and Family Centres’ (46.5%).
If the offer was to be expanded, respondents stated they would like the following services to be
delivered: activities for children aged five to 11 during school holidays (73.9%); postnatal
support and advice (75.3%); expansion of support to children aged between 0 to 11 (rather than
0 to five) (61.9%); and family support drop in advice (58.9%).

●
●

14.

It is worth noting that the consultation findings indicated lower preference for
co-location with provision of other services (such as Benefits advice, English as an
additional language; family support worker support, foodbank vouchers, and
JobCentre Plus). However, caution needs to be exercised when drawing
conclusions from this, as the consultation has engaged 15% of the registered
children centre user population, so it is not possible to be completely satisfied that
the findings are fully representative of the needs of hard-to-reach families.

15.

Following the public consultation concluding, a petition was submitted at the Council
meeting on 26 February 2019 which had received 345 eligible signatures online and
234 eligible signatures in hard copy which requested that the children’s centres
remain open. The wording of the petition was as follows:

“We strongly oppose the proposed closures of half of the children’s centres within the borough of
Kingston. We fervently believe that the changes in how the remainder operate, including the removal
of sessions into the community will not be sufficient to meet local need and will raise serious
safeguarding concerns. We insist that the children’s centres remain open. In the event of closures, we
demand financial investment ensuring that:
●
●
●
●

The remaining centres can be fully staffed;
Each centre has a full time member of staff available to parents throughout the week;
The remaining centres are able to meet the needs of a greater number of families;
Sessions currently being held continue to run within the children’s centre buildings;

A13
●

Any sessions held in alternative local venues must guarantee that:
a. the general public cannot access families;
b. parents can converse with staff privately in a separate room; and
c. there is wheelchair access.
We ask that the Council seriously consider the detrimental impact that the proposed changes would
have for many families and that the investment in our children and their futures should be a priority.”

16.

As the petition received over 500 eligible signatures, it would be eligible for debate
at full Council, which is likely to be at its meeting on 24 April. (This would not,
however, prevent the Committee making a decision on the recommendations of this
report at the meeting on 21 March 2019).

Timescale
17.

If agreed, the decommissioning of Norbiton and Surbiton Children’s Centre will be
implemented by June 2019 and North Kingston and New Malden Children’s Centres
by April 2020.

Financial Implications
18.

The original proposal was for a saving of £240,000 based on the decommissioning
of four buildings and the rationalisation of staffing effective from 1 April 2019. The
latest proposal following consultation, to review delivery of Surbiton and Norbiton in
2019/20 and New Malden and North Kingston in 2020/21, has impacted on the
ability to meet the full year savings for next financial year.

19.

This proposal is shown below and will meet the full required savings by 2020/21.
The saving is not met in 19/20 due to the phased approach of decommissioning the
four underutilised buildings as well as implementation of the 19/20 plan being
scheduled for July 2019 (previously April 2019).

20.

The original efficiency saving, based on closure of four underutilised buildings,
totalled £240,000 and was agreed as part of the budget setting process for 2019/20.
Therefore the revised option creates a funding gap for 2019/20 of £104,858 within
children’s services budgets for the upcoming financial year. The shortfall will need
to be addressed in-year. In the first instance Achieving for Children will look to
mitigate the gap in consultation with the Director of Corporate and Commercial.

21.

22.

A14
The impact of the savings over the two financial years is shown below:

The Council has agreed a £50,000 investment budget to facilitate the development
of the children’s centre outreach model, to ensure better access to some
communities who do not benefit from the current offer. This funding is for 2019/20
only and will assist with the transition to the new outreach based model during the
next financial year. The outreach model underpins the Children’s Centre Strategy
and the ongoing additional resources will be a priority for consideration as part of
next year’s budget process.

Legal Implications
23.

The Childcare Act 2006 (as amended) places the following duties on the Council:
●
●
●
●

24.

S1: general duty to improve the wellbeing of young children in its area and to
reduce inequalities between young children;
S3: duty to secure that early childhood services are provided in an integrated
manner calculated to facilitate access and to maximise the benefit of those
services to parents, prospective parents and young children.
S5A: early childhood services must “so far as is reasonably practicable,
include arrangements for sufficient provision of children’s centre to meet
local need”.
S5D: to undertake “such consultation as they think appropriate” before
making any arrangements regarding early childhood services; before any
significant change in the services provided through a children’s centre and
before anything is done that would result in a relevant children’s centre
ceasing to be a children’s centre.

The Council must have regard to the DfE Sure Start statutory guidance 2013 and
should not depart from it unless good reason to do so. Members attention is drawn
to the following key points regarding the provision of sufficient children’s centres to
meet the needs of those in greatest need of support. The Council must:
a) ensure that a network of children’s centres is accessible to all families with
young children in the area;
b) ensure children’s centres are within reasonable reach;
c) target children’s centres at young children and children and families in the area
who are at risk of poor outcomes;
d) ensure opening times and the availability of services meet the needs of
families in the area;
e) not close and existing family centre site in any reorganisation unless it can be
demonstrated that the outcomes for children would not be adversely affected and
will not compromise the duty to have sufficient children’s centres to meet local
need. The starting point should be a presumption against the closure of children’s
centres.

25.

A15
In considering this matter, Members must satisfy themselves that the
recommendations comply with the relevant statutory duties and guidance and that
conscientious consideration has been given to the consultation responses in the
formulation of the recommendations that the council is being asked to approve and
that the decision is taken in a fair and balanced manner.

Risk Assessment
26.

A detailed risk register will be prepared as part of the development of the
implementation plan should the proposals be agreed.

27.

There is a significant risk should the proposals not be agreed the children’s centre
model would be unsustainable.

Equalities Analysis
28.

A full equality assessment has been completed. It has found that the proposals will
have an impact on some children, young people and parents and carers from the
protected characteristics groups. However, Achieving for Children will work with
families to mitigate this impact. The aim would be to continue as much service
delivery and activity as possible using alternative local venues with outreach teams.
Each cluster already implements a comprehensive outreach plan into local
communities with specific focus on areas of higher deprivation. This is already
happening in a number of venues in the local area. For example, activities are
currently being delivered in a number of local schools. This outreach model would
enable us to make savings by no longer using the buildings proposed and no longer
having the associated premises costs.

29.

The full equality assessment can be found in Annex 2 of the report.

Health Implications
30.

An element of the children’s centre offer relates to health services- specifically
midwifery, health visiting services, and breastfeeding support and advice. Achieving
for Children will work with health partners to ensure there is an alternative venue
identified (either remaining children’s centre or outreach site or clinical venue) to
deliver any health services that may previously have been delivered in a children’s
centre due to be decommissioned.

31.

The consultation responses highlighted the social and community aspect of
children’s centres as a means of preventing isolation and mental health issues.

Environmental, Air Quality and Road Network Implications
32.

No implications arising from the specific recommendations of this report.

Background papers held by the author of the report  - Sarah Reid, Head of Children, Youth
and Partnerships, Phone: 07909883757, Email: sarah.reid@achievingforchildren.org.uk:
-

None

Annexes to the report: Annex 1: Public Consultation Findings Annex 2: Equality
Assessment

A16

Enclosure 1 to
Annex 1

Kingston children's centres consultation (DRAFT)
Summary of responses

1. Introduction
This report summarises the findings of the consultation on the future of children’s centres in
Kingston, which ran from 13 December 2018 to 1 February 2019.
2. Format of the consultation
The main consultation channel was an online survey hosted on the Local Offer website:
https://www.afcinfo.org.uk/pages/community-information/information-and-advice/childre
n-centres/kingston-upon-thames-children-s-centres-consultation
This was complemented by Frequently Asked Questions (on the Local Offer site) and 13
drop-in events held between 9 - 25 January. Paper copies and easyread versions were
available on request.
The consultation was publicised via:
● email to users of children’s centres on Achieving for Children’s database;
● the news section and consultation hub on the Local Offer website;
● publicity in children’s centres, libraries and other community venues across
the venue; and
● regular Tweets from AfC and Kingston Council accounts.
The survey was divided into four sections:
● Section 1: Your experience of using children’s centres. This section comprised 13
questions about respondents’ experience of using Kingston children’s centres. These
included 6 free text boxes to capture any other comments from respondents.
● Section 2: Proposals for the future of children’s centre services in Kingston. This
section provided contextual information about the proposals and asked respondents
for their views. The section included various free text boxes to capture any other
comments from respondents.
● Section 3: Enhancing the children’s centre offer. This section explained the rationale
behind broadening the use of children’s centres buildings so that they host services
for the whole family, and asked respondents for their views.
● Section 4: Your details. This section asked for details of respondents’ postcode, age,
ethnicity, disability and gender.
There were 744 respondents in total. This accounts for 15.0% of the registered children’s
centre users.

Enclosure 1 to
Annex 1

A17

3. Your experience of using children's centres
1a. Are you completing this questionnaire as (tick all that apply):
Response
Percent

Response
Total

1

A parent or carer of a child or children
under the age of 5

88.49%

646

2

A soon-to-be parent

5.62%

41

3

A school representative

1.64%

12

4

A health professional

4.11%

30

5

A professional working with children
under 5

7.95%

58

6

A professional working with a partner
agency

1.23%

9

7

A voluntary or community sector
organisation

1.10%

8

8

A private sector organisation

0.00%

0

9

A councillor

0.27%

2

3.70%

27

answered

730

skipped

11

10 Other (please specify):

Analysis

Mean:

2.15

Std. Deviation:

2.2

Variance:

4.82

Std. Error:

0.08

Satisfaction Rate:

11.25

The majority of respondents (88.5%) were a parent or carer of a child under five. The next
highest was professionals working with children under five (7.9%) followed by
soon-to-be-parents (5.6%) and health professionals (4.1%).
27 respondents stated ‘other’ and 26 respondents completed the ‘other’ field. Of these,
42.3% were parents of older children or parents who have used centres in the past; 26.9%
were relatives such as grandparents, aunts, etc; 11.5% were professionals; 11.5% were
residents; 3.8% were parents; and 3.8% were volunteers.

Enclosure 1 to
Annex 1

A18

1b. Have you visited a children’s centre in the last 12 months?
Response
Percent

Response
Total

1

Yes

94.76%

687

2

No

5.24%

38

answered

725

skipped

16

Analysis

Mean:

1.05

Std. Deviation:

0.22

Variance:

0.05

Std. Error:

0.01

Satisfaction Rate:

5.24

94.8% stated they had visited a children’s centre in the last 12 months. Only 5.2% stated
they had not.
1c. Which children’s centre do you usually use in Kingston?
Response
Percent

Response
Total

1

Chessington

14.34%

104

2

Kingston Town

16.55%

120

3

New Malden

11.03%

80

4

Norbiton

1.66%

12

5

North Kingston

18.76%

136

6

Old Malden

6.07%

44

7

Surbiton

13.52%

98

8

Tolworth

18.07%

131

answered

725

skipped

16

Analysis

Mean:

4.57

Std. Deviation:

2.51

Variance:

6.28

Std. Error:

0.09

Satisfaction Rate:

50.94

Enclosure 1 to
Annex 1

A19

The children’s centres most used by the respondents are North Kingston (18.8%);
Tolworth(18.0%); Kingston Town (16.6%); and Chessington (14.3%). The least used centres
are Surbiton (13.5%); New Malden (11.0%); Old Malden (6.1%); and Norbiton (1.7%). The
percentage of respondents who use Norbiton was particularly low.
1d. How often do you visit this children’s centre?
Response
Percent

Response
Total

1

3-4 times per week

10.24%

74

2

1-2 times per week

46.20%

334

3

2-4 times per month

20.61%

149

4

Once a month

10.65%

77

5

Less than once per month

12.31%

89

answered

723

skipped

18

Analysis

Mean:

2.69

Std. Deviation:

1.17

Variance:

1.37

Std. Error:

0.04

Satisfaction Rate:

42.15

Children’s centres are well used - almost half of respondents (46.2%) stated they visited
children’s centres one or two times a week and a fifth (20.6%) said they attend two to four
times per month.
A similar percentage visit 3-4 times per week (10.2%) as visit once a month (10.7%) with the
remainder (12.3%) visiting less than once a month.
1e. Do you use any other children’s centres in Kingston? (tick all that apply)
Response
Percent

Response
Total

1

Chessington

20.32%

114

2

Kingston Town

28.88%

162

3

New Malden

15.69%

88

4

Norbiton

13.55%

76

Enclosure 1 to
Annex 1

A20

5

North Kingston

16.40%

92

6

Old Malden

15.51%

87

7

Surbiton

39.04%

219

8

Tolworth

32.98%

185

answered

561

skipped

180

Analysis

Mean:

8.91

Std. Deviation:

6.39

Variance:

40.83

Std. Error:

0.27

Satisfaction Rate:

101.3

In terms of which other children’s centres are used, Surbiton (39.1%); Tolworth (32.9%);
Kingston Town (28.9%); and Chessington (20.3%) are the most used. North Kingston (15.7%);
New Malden (15.7%); Old Malden (15.5%); and Norbiton (13.6%) are the least used.
1f. Which children’s centre services do you use? (tick all that apply)
Response
Percent

Response
Total

1

Adult Learning

10.17%

73

2

Baby Massage

40.95%

294

3

Benefit advice

4.18%

30

4

Childcare advice

32.03%

230

5

Cook and Eat

9.19%

66

6

Domestic Violence support

1.39%

10

7

Early Years advice

30.50%

219

8

English as an Additional Language Sessions

1.67%

12

Enclosure 1 to
Annex 1

A21

9

Family Support worker support

4.04%

29

10 Foodbank Vouchers

2.51%

18

11 Health Visitor

66.16%

475

12 Holiday Activities

17.27%

124

13 JobCentre Plus Advice

1.67%

12

14 Messy Play

48.47%

348

15 Midwifery

34.12%

245

16 Parenting Programme

11.56%

83

17 Rhyme time

56.27%

404

18 Stay and Play

83.84%

602

19 Vitamins

10.58%

76

20 Other (please specify):

19.08%

137

answered

718

skipped

23

Analysis

Mean:

59.56

Std. Deviation:

104.99

Variance:

11022.53

Std. Error:

3.92

Satisfaction Rate:

287.9

The most popular services delivered at the children’s centres are Stay and Play (83.9%);
health visitors (66.2%); Rhyme Time (56.3%); Messy Play (48.5%); and baby massage
(40.9%).
Respondents were asked to leave comments about any other popular services that they
have attended. 137 comments were left (some gave multiple answers within their
comments). Using a word analysis tool, the comments were categorised and the most
popular categories were:
● Baby, Junior and Mama Jammers (27.0%);
● breastfeeding advice and support (20.4%); and

Enclosure 1 to
Annex 1

A22

● Crafty Tales (10.9%).
Jammers and Crafty Tales are sessions for babies and children run by external organisations.
The least popular services were domestic violence support (1.4%); English as a additional
language sessions (1.7%); JobCentre Plus advice (1.7%); foodbank vouchers (2.5%); and
benefit advice (4.2%).
1g. How important are the following children’s centre services to you?

Important

Neither
important
nor
unimportant

Unimportant

Very
unimportant

Response
Total

27.9%
(184)

22.6%
(149)

35.5%
(234)

8.8%
(58)

5.3%
(35)

660

Baby Massage

33.9%
(223)

35.9%
(236)

22.7%
(149)

4.6%
(30)

2.9%
(19)

657

Benefit advice

23.0%
(145)

21.2%
(134)

34.4%
(217)

10.9%
(69)

10.5%
(66)

631

Childcare advice

55.9%
(379)

30.8%
(209)

9.6%
(65)

2.1%
(14)

1.6%
(11)

678

Cook and Eat

23.0%
(145)

29.8%
(188)

36.6%
(231)

6.5%
(41)

4.1%
(26)

631

Domestic Violence support

33.1%
(208)

16.6%
(104)

32.2%
(202)

7.0%
(44)

11.1%
(70)

628

Early Years advice

60.9%
(413)

31.0%
(210)

6.8%
(46)

0.3%
(2)

1.0%
(7)

678

English as an Additional
Language Sessions

17.8%
(111)

19.5%
(122)

35.2%
(220)

11.0%
(69)

16.5%
(103)

625

Family Support worker support

28.1%
(177)

20.4%
(129)

32.6%
(206)

8.7%
(55)

10.1%
(64)

631

Foodbank Vouchers

23.5%
(146)

15.2%
(94)

36.6%
(227)

9.8%
(61)

14.8%
(92)

620

Health Visitor

75.5%
(520)

17.9%
(123)

4.5%
(31)

0.7%
(5)

1.5%
(10)

689

Holiday Activities

50.2%
(324)

29.6%
(191)

14.4%
(93)

3.6%
(23)

2.2%
(14)

645

JobCentre Plus Advice

17.2%
(107)

16.9%
(105)

42.6%
(265)

9.6%
(60)

13.7%
(85)

622

Messy Play

54.8%
(375)

36.3%
(248)

7.3%
(50)

0.6%
(4)

1.0%
(7)

684

Midwifery

64.7%
(428)

18.9%
(125)

11.6%
(77)

1.8%
(12)

3.0%
(20)

662

Parenting Programme

43.5%
(281)

29.4%
(190)

21.1%
(136)

3.4%
(22)

2.6%
(17)

646

Rhyme time

59.8%
(407)

31.7%
(216)

7.3%
(50)

0.4%
(3)

0.7%
(5)

681

Stay and Play

77.3%
(552)

20.3%
(145)

2.1%
(15)

0.0%
(0)

0.3%
(2)

714

Very
important

Adult Learning

Enclosure 1 to
Annex 1

A23

Vitamins

27.5%
(170)

25.2%
(156)

37.2%
(230)

4.8%
(30)

5.3%
(33)

619

Other (please specify below)

52.3%
(138)

8.3%
(22)

31.4%
(83)

2.3%
(6)

5.7%
(15)

264

answered

732

skipped

9

The most important services delivered were Stay and Play (97.6%); Health visitors (93.4%);
early years advice (91.9%); Messy Play (91.1%); and childcare advice (86.7%).
Respondents were asked to leave comments about any other important services that they
have attended. 134 comments were left (some gave multiple answers within their
comments). Using a word analysis tool, the comments were categorised and the most
popular categories were:
● Support (51.4%)
● Breastfeeding advice and support (37.8%)
● Jammers (37.8%)
Overall then, the support on offer at children’s centre was noted as important in 89.2% of
the comments that were left.
The services considered least important were English as an additional language (27.5%);
foodbank vouchers (24.6%); JobCentre Plus advice (23.3%); benefit advice (21.4%); and
family support worker support (18.8%).
Any other comments

1

Open-Ended Question

Response
Percent

Response
Total

100.00%

135

answered

135

skipped

606

Respondents were keen to emphasise the importance of the support and help provided at
the centres, the social and community aspects they provide and the play and development
opportunities.
Respondents were asked to leave any other comments. 135 comments were left (some gave
multiple answers within their comments). Using a word analysis tool, the comments were
categorised and the most popular comments were:
● Praising the level of support provided by children’s centres (68.6%)
● Praising the social and community aspects of children’s centres and the ability to
make friends and develop networks at a time that could isolating otherwise (39.0%)
● Praising the range and quality of play sessions offered at the children’s centres.

Enclosure 1 to
Annex 1

A24

In terms of the comments relating to the social and community aspects of children’s
centres, many respondents were keen to emphasis the positive impact the children’s
centres have had on their mental health and wellbeing.
1h. To what extent do you agree that accessing children’s centre services and activities has had a
positive impact on your own wellbeing and that of your child(ren)?
Response
Percent

Response
Total

1

Strongly agree

90.03%

650

2

Agree

8.59%

62

3

Neither agree nor disagree

1.25%

9

4

Disagree

0.00%

0

5

Strongly disagree

0.14%

1

answered

722

skipped

19

Analysis

Mean:

1.12

Std. Deviation:

0.38

Variance:

0.14

Std. Error:

0.01

Satisfaction Rate:

2.91

98.6% of respondents stated that children’s centre services have had a positive impact on
wellbeing and that of children.
Respondents were asked to leave any other comments. 188 comments were left (some gave
multiple answers within their comments). Using a word analysis tool, the comments were
categorised and the most popular comments were:
● Praising the level of support and help provided by children’s centres (75.0%)
● Praising the social and community aspects of children’s centres (44.8%)
● Praising the range and quality of play develop opportunities offered at the children’s
centres (22.1%).
Again, as with the open text question above, in terms of the comments relating to the social
and community aspects of children’s centres, many respondents were keen to emphasis the
positive impact the children’s centres have had on their mental health and wellbeing.
1i. To what extent do you agree that attendance at Stay & Play sessions has helped you to know
more about how children learn through play?

1

Strongly agree

Response
Percent

Response
Total

70.42%

507

Enclosure 1 to
Annex 1

A25

2

Agree

22.22%

160

3

Neither agree nor disagree

6.94%

50

4

Disagree

0.42%

3

5

Strongly disagree

0.00%

0

answered

720

skipped

21

Analysis

Mean:

1.37

Std. Deviation:

0.63

Variance:

0.4

Std. Error:

0.02

Satisfaction Rate:

9.34

92.6% of respondents agreed (either strongly agree or agree) that Stay and Play sessions has
helped them to know more about how children learn through play. Only 7.4% disagreed. No
respondents strongly disagreed.
Respondents were asked to leave any other comments. 90 comments were left (some gave
multiple answers within their comments). Using a word analysis tool, the comments were
categorised and the most popular comments were that children’s centres:
● Had helped with interaction and confidence (23.9%).
● Had helped with socialisation for parents as well as children (18.5%).
● Had helped support development (16.3%).
A number of general positive comments were also left (33.7%). It is also worth noting that
7.2% of respondents stated they were not yet clear whether the children’s centres had had
any impact on them or their child or that the centres had had no impact on them.
1j. To what extent do you agree that attendance at Stay & Play sessions and others such as Rhyme
Time, Messy Play, etc have supported your child to develop in:
Strongly
agree

Agree

Neither
agree nor
disagree

Disagree

Strongly
disagree

Response
Total

Independence and social skills

80.6%
(579)

16.9%
(121)

2.5%
(18)

0.0%
(0)

0.0%
(0)

718

Communication and language
skills

77.6%
(553)

18.1%
(129)

4.3%
(31)

0.0%
(0)

0.0%
(0)

713

Physical skills

76.2%
(540)

19.9%
(141)

3.8%
(27)

0.1%
(1)

0.0%
(0)

709

answered

718

skipped

23

97.5% of respondents agreed that attendance at Stay and Play sessions and other such as
Rhyme Time, Messy Play, etc have helped their child to develop in independence and social
skills; 95.7% of respondents agreed that they helped their child develop communication and

Enclosure 1 to
Annex 1

A26

language skills; and 96.1% of respondents agreed that they helped their child develop
physical skills.
Respondents were asked to leave any other comments. 92 comments were left (some gave
multiple answers within their comments). Using a word analysis tool, the comments were
categorised and the most popular comments were that children’s centres:
● Provide access to facilities they would not be able to access otherwise(35.9%).
● Provide gradual introduction to nursery/ school (18.5%).
● Provide socialistation and advice for parents as well as children (17.4%).
A number of general positive comments were also left (17.4%).
1k. To what extent do you agree that attending children’s centre activities supports your child to be
ready for nursery or school?
Response
Percent

Response
Total

1

Strongly agree

76.91%

553

2

Agree

19.75%

142

3

Neither agree nor disagree

3.20%

23

4

Disagree

0.14%

1

5

Strongly disagree

0.00%

0

answered

719

skipped

22

Analysis

Mean:

1.27

Std. Deviation:

0.52

Variance:

0.27

Std. Error:

0.02

Satisfaction Rate:

6.64

96.7% of respondents agreed (strongly agree or agree) that attending children’s centre
activities supports their child to be ready for nursery or school.
Respondents were asked to leave any other comments. 92 comments were left (some gave
multiple answers within their comments). Using a word analysis tool, the comments were
categorised and the most popular comments were that children’s centres:
● Supported their child’s development into nursery (41.3%).
● Supported socialisation (28.3%).
A number of other positive comments were also left (17.4%).
1l. To what extent do you agree that you can ask for support or advice relating to any issues such as
health, parenting skills, or employment and training from your local children’s centre?

Enclosure 1 to
Annex 1

A27

Response
Percent

Response
Total

1

Strongly agree

72.58%

524

2

Agree

22.44%

162

3

Neither agree nor disagree

4.43%

32

4

Disagree

0.42%

3

5

Strongly disagree

0.14%

1

answered

722

skipped

19

Analysis

Mean:

1.33

Std. Deviation:

0.59

Variance:

0.35

Std. Error:

0.02

Satisfaction Rate:

8.28

95.0% of respondents stated that they agreed they could ask for support advice relating to
issues such as health, parenting skills or employment and training from a children’s centre.
Respondents praised the support and advice that is given and the helpful and approachable
staff.
Respondents were asked to leave any other comments. 75 comments were left (some gave
multiple answers within their comments). Using a word analysis tool, the comments were
categorised and the most popular comments were that children’s centres provide:
● Good support and advice (44.0%).
● Approachable and helpful staff (21.3%).
1m. At the moment, how do you travel to the main children’s centre that you use?
Response
Percent

Response
Total

1

Walk

86.69%

625

2

Cycle

1.11%

8

3

Drive

20.67%

149

4

Public transport

11.10%

80

5

Other (please specify):

1.53%

11

Enclosure 1 to
Annex 1

A28

Analysis

Mean:

2.03

Std. Deviation:

1.3

Variance:

1.68

Std. Error:

0.05

Satisfaction Rate:

20.46

answered

721

skipped

20

In terms of getting to the centres, 86.7% of respondents stated that they walked, with 20.7%
driving. Respondents emphasised the importance of being able to access local provision,
ideally by foot.
Eight respondents completed the ‘Other’ field. Of these:
● 50.0% walk;
● 37.5% drive; and
● 12.5% use public transport.
One comment noted the lack of available parking near children’s centres and the cost
pressures on parents.
1n. Any other comments:

1

Open-Ended Question

Response
Percent

Response
Total

100.00%

116

answered

116

skipped

625

Respondents were asked to leave any other comments. 116 comments were left (some gave
multiple answers within their comments). Using a word analysis tool, the comments were
categorised and the most popular comments were;
●

Children’s centres provide vital support, advice and networking opportunities
(31.9%).
● It is extremely important to retain access to local children’s centre provision (31.8%).
● Foot access to local children’s centre provision is crucial (22.4%).
4. Proposals for the future of children's centres in Kingston
2a. To what extent do you agree with the proposals that have been set out above?

1

Strongly agree

Response
Percent

Response
Total

2.76%

20

Enclosure 1 to
Annex 1

A29

2

Agree

18.51%

134

3

Neither agree nor disagree

14.23%

103

4

Disagree

27.21%

197

5

Strongly disagree

37.29%

270

answered

724

skipped

17

Analysis

Mean:

3.78

Std. Deviation:

1.21

Variance:

1.45

Std. Error:

0.04

Satisfaction Rate:

69.44

64.5% of respondents do not agree with the proposals (strongly disagree/ disagree). 21.3%
agree (strongly agree/ agree) and 14.2% neither agree nor disagree.
Respondents were asked to leave any other comments. 239 comments were left (some gave
multiple answers within their comments). Using a word analysis tool, the comments were
categorised and the most common comments were:
● Understanding the reasons for the proposals (16.7%).
● expressing that the proposals are unfair for people who cannot travel easily/ the
proposals will lead to increased isolation (15.5%).
● Disagree with the proposals and believe the council needs to re-prioritise (14.6%).
● Concerns that the remaining children’s centres too crowded (10.0%).
2b. Would the proposed changes make it more difficult for you to access children’s centre services?
Response
Percent

Response
Total

1

Yes, definitely

46.41%

336

2

Yes, to some extent

29.97%

217

3

No

20.58%

149

4

Don’t know

3.04%

22

answered

724

skipped

17

Analysis

Mean:

1.8

Std. Deviation:

0.87

Variance:

0.75

Std. Error:

0.03

Satisfaction Rate:

26.75

Enclosure 1 to
Annex 1

A30

Just under half of respondents (46.6%) stated the proposals would definitely make it more
difficult to access children’s centre services. 29.9% stated it would make it more difficult to
some extent, 20.6% said it wouldn’t make it more difficult, and 3.0% said they did not know.
The main comments related to concerns about the capacity of remaining children’s centres
and the distance and time taken to travel to a children’s centre.
Respondents were asked to leave any other comments. 137 comments were left (some gave
multiple answers within their comments). Using a word analysis tool, the comments were
categorised and the most common comments were concerns relating to:
● The capacity of the remaining centres to meet the increased need if four centres
closed (30.5%).
● The distance that may now need to be travelled to access a children’s centre
(28.4%).
● The addition travel time that may be required to access a children’s centre (27.3%).
2c. What impact do you think the proposed changes to services would have on you?
Response
Percent

Response
Total

1

No impact

17.00%

119

2

I would use another children’s centre in
the future

15.57%

109

3

I wouldn’t use children’s centres as
much in the future

51.71%

362

4

I wouldn’t use children’s centres at all
in the future

15.71%

110

answered

700

skipped

41

Analysis

Mean:

2.66

Std. Deviation:

0.94

Variance:

0.88

Std. Error:

0.04

Satisfaction Rate:

55.38

Just over half of the respondents (51.2%) stated that the changes would mean that they
would not use the children’s centres as much in the future and 15.7% stated they would no
use children’s centres at all. 17.0% of respondents the proposals said it would have no
impact at all and 15.6% said they would use another children’s centre in the future.
Concerns raised related to the capacity of the remaining centres and the required travel.
Respondents were asked to leave any other comments. 161 comments were left (some gave
multiple answers within their comments). Using a word analysis tool, the comments were
categorised and the most common comments were concerns relating to:

Enclosure 1 to
Annex 1

A31

● The capacity of the remaining centres to meet the increased need if four centres
closed (22.9%).
● The addition travel time that may be required to access a children’s centre (27.3%).
22.4% of respondents stated that they did not think the changes would have any impact on
them.
2d. If you said that you would stop using services, or would use them less in the future, please can
you tell us why? (tick all that apply)
Response
Percent

Response
Total

1

Other locations don’t offer the
services that we need

24.23%

133

2

We are unable to travel to other
locations

44.63%

245

3

Opening times at other locations
don’t suit us

27.32%

150

4

We won’t know anyone

23.32%

128

5

We won’t get into other sessions as
they are too full

53.73%

295

6

Cost of travel

27.14%

149

7

Travel time

60.47%

332

8

Parking facilities

31.51%

173

9

Other (please specify):

8.38%

46

answered

549

skipped

192

Analysis

Mean:

14.71

Std. Deviation:

17.49

Variance:

305.98

Std. Error:

0.75

Satisfaction Rate:

146.29

Respondents said they would stop using children’s centres or use them less because of
additional travel travel (60.5%); sessions being too full (44.6%); and 44.6% said they would
be unable to travel to any other locations.
Respondents were asked to leave any other comments. 46 comments were left (some gave
multiple answers within their comments). Using a word analysis tool, the comments were
categorised and the most common comments were concerns relating to:

A32

Enclosure 1 to
Annex 1

● The distance being too far to travel to another children’s centre (41.3%).
● The need for the familiarity of the existing provisions (13.0%).
● Other sessions at other centres being too full (10.9%).
2e. Please tell us if you have other ideas about how we should deliver children’s centre services in
Kingston:

1

Open-Ended Question

Response
Percent

Response
Total

100.00%

188

answered

188

skipped

553

Respondents were asked for comments about how else children’s centre services could be
sustained. 188 responses were received (some gave multiple answers within their
comments). Using a word analysis tool, the comments were categorised and the most
common comments included the following suggestions:
● Re-prioritising other council services (33.6%).
● Seek voluntary contributions (22.4%).
● Fundraising (21.6%).
2f. Any other comments:

1

Open-Ended Question

Response
Percent

Response
Total

100.00%

86

answered

86

skipped

655

Respondents were asked for any other comments and 86 responses were received (some
gave multiple answers within their comments). Using a word analysis tool, the comments
were categorised and the most common comments was to state that the centres and/ or
the respondents local centre should not be closed (34.9%). There was no significant
commonality between the other responses.
● Do not close the centres and/ or my local centre (34.9%).
5. Enhancing the children's centre offer
3a. The intention would be to redevelop our remaining children’s centres to offer a wider range of
services for families as well as children and young people. Do you agree with this proposal?
Response
Percent

Response
Total

1

Strongly agree

17.08%

123

2

Agree

32.22%

232

Enclosure 1 to
Annex 1

A33

3

Neither agree nor disagree

20.56%

148

4

Disagree

17.36%

125

5

Strongly disagree

12.78%

92

answered

720

skipped

21

Analysis

Mean:

2.77

Std. Deviation:

1.28

Variance:

1.64

Std. Error:

0.05

Satisfaction Rate:

44.13

Just under half (49.4%) of respondents agreed with the proposals to re-develop the
remaining children’s centres to offer a wider range of services. 30.1% of respondents did not
agree.
3b. If we were to redevelop our children’s centres to offer more services for families as well as
children and young people in line with our proposal what do you think they should be called?
Response
Percent

Response
Total

1

Children and Family Centres

46.48%

324

2

Children and Family Hubs

6.74%

47

3

Family Centres

20.66%

144

4

Family Hubs

6.31%

44

5

Family Wellbeing Centres

10.76%

75

6

Family Wellbeing Hubs

2.58%

18

7

Other (please specify):

6.46%

45

answered

697

skipped

44

Analysis

Mean:

2.62

Std. Deviation:

1.88

Variance:

3.54

Std. Error:

0.07

Satisfaction Rate:

26.95

Enclosure 1 to
Annex 1

A34

The most popular name for the new centres was ‘Children and Family Centres’ (46.5%),
followed by Family Centre (20.7%), and then Family Wellbeing Service (10.8%).
3c. If we were to expand the children’s centre offer in line with our proposal, which of the following
services would you like to see delivered in the remaining centres and outreach sites? (Tick all that
apply)
Response
Percent

Response
Total

1

Accredited learning for adults
on-site

26.32%

184

2

Activities for children aged 5-11
during school holidays

73.96%

517

3

Advice and guidance on financial
matters

30.04%

210

4

Careers advice, information and
guidance

26.04%

182

5

Expansion of support to children
aged between 0 to 11 (rather than
just 0 to 5)

61.95%

433

6

Family support drop in advice

58.37%

408

7

Healthy lifestyles - including
obesity, oral health, mental health
services

51.07%

357

8

Housing support advice on site

22.75%

159

9

Joint activities with libraries

51.36%

359

10

Joint activities with the Youth
Service

26.75%

187

11

Postnatal support and advice

75.25%

526

12

School nurse access

39.91%

279

13

Wider parenting programmes

50.79%

355

14

Other (please specify):

8.73%

61

answered

699

skipped

42

Analysis

Mean:

43.87

Std. Deviation:

90.37

Satisfaction Rate:

291.04

Enclosure 1 to
Annex 1

A35

Variance:

8167.05

Std. Error:

3.42

If the offer was to be expanded, respondents stated they would like the following services to
be delivered: activities for children aged five to 11 during school holidays (73.9%); postnatal
support and advice (75.3%); expansion of support to children aged between 0 to 11 (rather
than 0 to five) (61.9%); and family support drop in advice (58.9%).
3d. How important would these services be to you?
Very
important

Important

Neither
important or
unimportant

Unimportant

Very
unimportant

Response
Total

Accredited learning for adults
on site

15.2%
(101)

22.4%
(149)

33.3%
(221)

13.3%
(88)

15.8%
(105)

664

Activities for children aged 5-11
during school holidays

41.3%
(282)

37.6%
(257)

15.4%
(105)

4.1%
(28)

1.6%
(11)

683

Advice and guidance on
financial matters

14.4%
(95)

22.4%
(148)

37.0%
(245)

13.7%
(91)

12.5%
(83)

662

Careers advice, information and
guidance

13.1%
(86)

21.6%
(142)

37.0%
(243)

13.9%
(91)

14.3%
(94)

656

Expansion of provision to
children aged between 0 to 11

40.9%
(276)

37.0%
(250)

18.1%
(122)

3.1%
(21)

0.9%
(6)

675

Family support drop in advice

33.3%
(220)

40.0%
(264)

18.5%
(122)

4.8%
(32)

3.3%
(22)

660

Healthy lifestyles - including
obesity, oral health, mental
health services

27.9%
(186)

37.9%
(253)

22.3%
(149)

6.3%
(42)

5.5%
(37)

667

Housing support advice on site

14.7%
(96)

16.3%
(106)

37.6%
(245)

14.9%
(97)

16.6%
(108)

652

Joint activities with libraries

26.0%
(174)

45.7%
(305)

22.0%
(147)

3.7%
(25)

2.5%
(17)

668

Joint activities with the Youth
Service

15.8%
(103)

33.1%
(216)

35.9%
(234)

8.1%
(53)

7.1%
(46)

652

Postnatal support and advice

55.0%
(368)

32.0%
(214)

8.8%
(59)

2.5%
(17)

1.6%
(11)

669

School nurse access

24.6%
(161)

38.8%
(254)

25.5%
(167)

7.2%
(47)

4.0%
(26)

655

Wider parenting programmes

32.3%
(214)

39.6%
(262)

20.4%
(135)

4.8%
(32)

2.9%
(19)

662

answered

702

skipped

39

Of the suggested services, postnatal support and advice was considered the most important
(87.0%); followed by activities for children aged 5-11 during school holidays (78.9%);
expansion of provision to children aged between 0 and 11 (77.9%); family drop in support
service (73.3%); wider parenting programmes (71.9%); and joint activities with libraries
(71.7%).

Enclosure 1 to
Annex 1

A36

The least important services were: housing support advice on site (31.5%); accredited
learning for adults on site (29.1%); careers advice, information and guidance (28.2%); and
advice and guidance on financial matters (26.2%).
3e. Another way to enable us to continue to deliver as many children's centre services as possible
would be to ask for donations for some services. Would you be willing to contribute a small
donation to access services at children’s centres? For example, £2.50 per family to attend Baby
Massage, Messy Play, Stay and Play, or holiday activities. Please note, the contribution would not
be applied to sessions delivered by our partners such as adult learning, health-led activities.
Response
Percent

Response
Total

1

Yes

95.77%

680

2

No

4.23%

30

answered

710

skipped

31

Analysis

Mean:

1.04

Std. Deviation:

0.2

Variance:

0.04

Std. Error:

0.01

Satisfaction Rate:

4.23

95.8% of respondents stated they would be happy to pay a voluntary contribution to access
some services. Just 4.2% stated they would not be.
3f. Please tell us if you have other suggestions for services you would like to be delivered in the
enhanced children’s centre service.

1

Open-Ended Question

Response
Percent

Response
Total

100.00%

131

answered

131

skipped

610

Respondents were asked for any other suggestions for services they would like to be
delivered in the enhanced children’s centre service. 131 response were received (some gave
multiple answers within their comments). Using a word analysis tool, the comments were
categorised and the most common comments were:
● Attendees either already pay and would be happy to continue to pay or would pay
more to help sustain services (33.7%).
● More activities should be offered for babies and children (28.8%).
● More early intervention services should be offered (breastfeeding, health visitors,
mental health) (17.3%).
3g. Any other comments:

A37

1

Open-Ended Question

Enclosure 1 to
Annex 1
Response
Percent

Response
Total

100.00%

69

answered

69

skipped

672

Response
Percent

Response
Total

19%

135

6. Your details
4a. First part of your postcode only (eg. KT1, TW11).

KT6

Surbiton, Tolworth

KT2

Kingston, Canbury, Coombe, Norbiton

18.3%

130

KT3

New Malden, Motspur Park

15.2%

108

KT5

Berrylands, Surbiton, Tolworth

13.8%

98

KT9

Chessington, Hook

13.5%

96

KT1

Kingston, Hampton Wick, Norbiton

12.4%

88

KT4

Old Malden

1.8%

13

3%

21

answered

710

skipped

31

Other

Various out of borough postcodes

Analysis of the postcodes of respondents shows a representative spread across the borough.
The Surbiton and Tolworth areas (which include KT6 and KT5 postcodes) were particularly
well represented.
4b. Your age
Response
Percent

Response
Total

1

15-24

0.97%

7

2

25-34

34.95%

252

3

35-44

53.68%

387

4

45-54

6.38%

46

5

55+

3.19%

23

Enclosure 1 to
Annex 1

A38

6

Prefer not to say

Analysis

Mean:

2.78

Std. Deviation:

0.78

Variance:

0.61

Std. Error:

0.03

Satisfaction Rate:

35.67

0.83%

6

answered

721

skipped

20

Of the respondents, 53.7% were aged 35-44; 34.9% aged 25-34; 6.4% aged 45-54; 3.2% aged
55+; 0.9% aged 15-24; and 0.8% preferred not to say.
4c. Your gender
Response
Percent

Response
Total

1

Male

6.36%

46

2

Female

91.98%

665

3

Prefer not to say

1.66%

12

answered

723

skipped

18

Analysis

Mean:

1.95

Std. Deviation:

0.28

Variance:

0.08

Std. Error:

0.01

Satisfaction Rate:

47.65

6.4% of respondents were male, 91.9% were female; and 1.7% preferred not to say.
4d. Your ethnicity
Response
Percent

Response
Total

1

White or White British

78.36%

565

2

Black or Black British

0.97%

7

3

Asian or Asian British

7.91%

57

4

Sri Lankan / Tamil

0.97%

7

5

Mixed / Mixed British

2.77%

20

Enclosure 1 to
Annex 1

A39

6

Any other ethnic background

4.85%

35

7

Korean

0.14%

1

8

Prefer not to say

4.02%

29

answered

721

skipped

20

Analysis

Mean:

1.84

Std. Deviation:

1.84

Variance:

3.39

Std. Error:

0.07

Satisfaction Rate:

12.01

78.4% of respondents were White British; 7.9% were Asian; 4.9% were any other ethnic
background; 2.8% were mixed/ mixed British; 0.9% were Black or Black British; 0.9% were
Sri Lankan/ Tamil; 0.4% were Korean; and 4.0% preferred not to say.
4e. Do you consider yourself to have a disability?
Response
Percent

Response
Total

1

Yes

1.95%

14

2

No

95.69%

688

3

Prefer not to say

2.36%

17

answered

719

skipped

22

Analysis

Mean:

2

Std. Deviation:

0.21

Variance:

0.04

Std. Error:

0.01

Satisfaction Rate:

50.21

95.7% of respondents stated they do not have a disability; 1.9% stated they do have a
disability; and 2.4% preferred not to say.
4f. Do you consider your child to have a disability?
Response
Percent

Response
Total

1

Yes

2.67%

19

2

No

94.94%

676

3

Prefer not to say

2.39%

17

Enclosure 1 to
Annex 1

A40

Analysis

Mean:

2

Std. Deviation:

0.22

Variance:

0.05

Std. Error:

0.01

Satisfaction Rate:

49.86

answered

712

skipped

29

94.9% of respondents stated their child did not have a disability; 2.7% stated their child did
have a disability; and 2.4% preferred not to say.

A41

Enclosure 2 to Annex 1

Equality Assessment (EA)- 
Service Area:
Name of service/ function/ policy/
project being assessed:
Officer leading on assessment:
Other staff involved:

Early Help
Children’s Centre Strategy in Kingston
Henry Kilpin, Head of Strategy and Programmes
Pauline Maddison, Director for Children’s ServicesKingston; Ivana Price, Associate Director for Family
and Youth Support; Sarah Reid, Head of Children,
Youth and Partnerships; Francis Arokiasamy, Kingston
Equalities Lead

BACKGROUND
1. Briefly describe the service/ function/ policy/ project:
Summary
Achieving for Children have been working with Kingston Council to develop a proposed new
children’s centre strategy for children’s centre delivery in Kingston. This is necessary due to
the challenging financial situation- both locally and nationally- and a desire to ensure the
most vulnerable families receive targeted support.
Achieving for Children presented a number of proposals to the Kingston Children’s and
Adults’ Care and Education Committee on 20 September 2018. These proposals then
formed the basis for a public consultation exercise (details outlined in section 6). Following
this feedback, and discussions between Achieving for Children and Kingston Council,
amendments have been made to the final proposals which will be considered by elected
members on 21 March 2019 at the Children’s and Adults’ Care and Education Committee.
The proposals are to:
1. review delivery of Norbiton and Surbiton Children’s Centres by June 2019 and
provide service delivery through an outreach approach within local communities at
Dickerage Youth centre and within the Surbiton area (see point (3) below);
2. review delivery of North Kingston and New Malden Children’s Centres by April
2020, using a phased approach to reducing children’s centre activities to target
those in most need, whilst taking an account of the needs of the local communities
to support the transition to a new model of delivery;
3. strengthen the outreach provision specifically from the following locations:
●
●
●
●

Kingsnympton;
Dickerage Youth Centre;
Cambridge Road Estate; and
Surbiton area.

1

A42

Enclosure 2 to Annex 1

In developing this new model, the children’s centre workforce will be redesigned into a
borough based delivery model as set out in the strategy and the following key actions
arising from the consultation feedback will be implemented:
(a) prioritise the services identified as popular and important.
(b) work with health partners, such as health visiting and midwifery, to ensure
there continues to be a good offer of health services available to families.
(c) continue to explore the potential to extend the range of venues and sites to
deliver children’s centre activities.
(d) pilot an extension of the range of provision for children aged 5-11 years old
during school holidays.
(e) work with the Parent Forums attached to children’s centres to identify
income generating opportunities.
(f) rebrand the children’s centres into children and family centres.
Background
Local authorities have a statutory duty to ensure there are sufficient children’s centre
services to meet the needs of children aged 0-4 and their families as detailed in the
following Acts/ legislation:
● SureStart Statutory Guidance 2013.
● The Childcare Act 2006.
● Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and Learning Act (ASCL) 2009 which inserted new
provisions into the Childcare Act 2006.
● Safeguarding (references to existing legislation and guidance).
The statutory definition of a children’s centre is:
● a place or group of places:
○ which is managed by or on behalf of, or under arrangements with, the local
authority with a view to securing that early childhood services in the local
authority’s area are made available in an integrated way;
○ through which early childhood services are made available (either by
providing the services on site, or by providing advice and assistance on
gaining access to services elsewhere); and
○ at which activities for young children are provided.
It follows from the statutory definition of a children’s centre that they are as much about
making appropriate and integrated services available, as it is about providing premises in
particular geographical areas.
The challenging financial situation, both nationally and locally, requires a new way of
working to ensure the children’s centre are able to continue to deliver a high quality offer.
As such, Achieving for Children is proposing a review and rationalisation of existing
children’s centres, helping us to maximise resources and target our most vulnerable
families in the most deprived communities in Kingston. The offer will focus on:
● child development and school readiness;
● parenting aspirations and parenting skills; and

2

A43

Enclosure 2 to Annex 1

● child and family health and life chances.
This will be achieved by:
● maximising the reach of the children’s centre offer through more flexible
approaches to service delivery and rationaising children centre buildings.
● enhancing outreach work to engage hard to reach families and deliver programmes
from a range of local community venues.
● focusing children’s centres activities on the most vulnerable families.
● adopting an approach whereby outreach work within the community is prioritised
without necessarily the presence of an administrative children’s centre base.
● increase the use of children’s centres as community hubs through the co-location of
services.
● re-energise partnership working and integration with key partners to deliver a wide
offer.
● maximise integration and links with existing early years services to children’s
centres.
● create efficiencies through rationalisation of buildings, removing duplication and
removing management costs.
Context
As noted above, local authorities have a statutory duty to deliver children’s centre services,
and are required to make available universal and targeted early childhood services either
by providing the services at centres or by providing advice and assistance to parents
(mothers and fathers) via signposting or outreach. The core purpose of children’s centres is
to improve outcomes for young children and their families and reduce inequalities between
families in greatest need and their peers.
Children’s centres are designated with the Department of Education (DfE) and as such are
subject to Ofsted inspection. In July 2015, Ofsted issued a notice indicating its intention to
review the inspection of children’s centres, suspending any inspections until further notice.
To date, there has been no further communication from Ofsted on its future inspection
intentions.
Any proposed change of the use of a designated children’s centre (i.e. decommissioning a
children’s centre facility), all local authorities need to submit de-designation request to the
DfE. This de-designation could be subject to claw-back of any capital funds reviewed unless
the local authority can demonstrate the building will continue to be used by young
children.
National context
Nationally, local authorities are facing a significant financial challenge to meet demand
within resources. According to a recent National Audit Office Study
(https://www.nao.org.uk/report/financial-sustainability-of-local-authorities-2018/) , Sure
Start budgets, which are used to fund children’s centres, were reduced by £763m (50%)
between 2010 and 2017 as councils have focused scarce funds on meeting a growth in
demand for child protection services.

3

A44

Enclosure 2 to Annex 1

Furthermore, a Sutton Trust study
(https://www.cypnow.co.uk/cyp/news/2005120/as-many-as-1-000-childrens-centres-nowclosed-study-finds) has suggested that 1,000 children’s centres have shut since 2010, with a
fifth of local authorities considering reducing their children’s centre provision and a third
considering a reduction in services at, or access to, children’s centres.
The majority of Kingston’s statistical neighbours have already reduced or proposed a
reduction in children’s centre provision. This is set out in the table below:
Local Authority

% children centres closures (2009-10 to 2018)

Barnet

7.7% reduction

Bracknell Forest

Reduction in hours

Oxfordshire

80.0% reduction (proposed)

Reading

69.2% reduction

Surrey

71.0% reduction (proposed)

Sutton

21.0% reduction

The proposed reduction in Kingston (25-50%) is within range of the estimated national level
of closures (34.8%) and significantly lower than some other local authorities such as
Oxfordshire, Surrey and Reading. It is also worth noting that by 2017, 16 councils had
closed at least half of their children’s centres, which accounted for 55% of the total number
of closures nationally. Further reductions are expected in many local authority areas due to
the continuing financial challenge.
In addition, the national policy on future of children’s centres has paused
(https://researchbriefings.parliament.uk/ResearchBriefing/Summary/CBP-7257). In July
2016, the all Party Parliamentary Group (APPG) on Children’s Centres published a report on
Family Hubs, arguing that these should be incorporated into existing centres as part of the
Government’s Life Chances Strategy. However, in December 2016, it was announced that
the Government would no longer be publishing a Life Chances Strategy.
It is within this difficult context that Achieving for Children has proposed the review and
rationalisation of current children’s centre provision in Kingston.
Current provision and service model
The delivery of children’s centres provision is currently organised into three clusters across
Kingston and Richmond and delivered through a range of children’s centres, community
centres, libraries and primary schools, as well as outreach provision. The table below sets
out the children’s centre and the target reach population of children age 0-4 set per cluster
in relation to Kingston:
Cluster
South

Children’s Centres
●

Chessington

4

Reach Area Number
7,921

A45

North East

●
●
●
●

New Malden
Old Malden
Surbiton
Tolworth

●
●
●

Kingston Town
North Kingston
Norbiton- Hub

Enclosure 2 to Annex 1

3,773

There are also outreach sites at the Cambridge Road Estate, Dickerage Road and
Kingsnympton. Closer working with Kingston Council and other key partners to co-locate
services will provide greater emphasis for multi-agency hubs in the areas where they are
most needed.
The map below sets out the location of each of the existing children’s centres/ hubs:

5

A46

Enclosure 2 to Annex 1

The table below illustrates the current children’s centre offer against the three key focus
areas:
Focus area
Child Development and
school readiness

Current offer
●
●

●
●
●
●
Parenting aspirations and
parenting skills

●

●
●
●

Child and family health
and life chances

●
●
●
●
●
●

A range of early years provision including learning based activities,
information and guidance in child development including early
identification of need.
Early Years Foundation Stage based high quality Stay and Play
sessions (universal) which are open access to all eligible families with
children aged 0-4 and targeted sessions for specifically identified
groups such as those that are isolated or those with English as an
Additional Language (EAL). All sessions are delivered by a skilled
workforce including Children’s Centre staff and partners such as
JobCentre Plus, Domestic Violence, Health Visiting teams, parenting
programmes.
Tracking identified children – monitoring development to support
development towards achieving key milestones and preparing them
for school.
Referral to specialist services where identified.
Accessible support within local communities.
Universal and targeted groups.
Training and employment services to assist parents or prospective
parents, including, opportunities to volunteer, access to JobCentre
Plus support workers, Adult Learning opportunities including basic
Maths, English, EAL, and accredited courses to aid employment.
Access to family support service offer for those families with
additional needs that require Early Help.
Access to a wide range of parenting programmes such as Family
Links, Early Bird, Triple P.
Information and advice services for parents and prospective parents,
signposting to partner services including Voluntary Sector partners.
Health services relating to young children, parents and prospective
parents, which include co-location of Health Visiting Services and,
midwifery teams in Children’s Centres.
Drop in and bookable Health Visiting appointments.
Universal clinics open to all eligible families with no appointment
necessary.
Access to Post Natal Depression support
Referrals to specialist health services as required.
Access to information, advice and guidance on health issues such as
sleep, weaning, breastfeeding support, vitamins, healthy eating,
emotional health.

Registration and inspection outcomes
There are 11,694 children eligible for children’s centre services and support in Kingston. Of
these, 10,201 are currently registered (87.2%). To be deemed ‘good’ in an Ofsted
inspection we require a minimum of 80% registered, to be ‘outstanding’ this figure is 97%.
The current Ofsted grades are set out below:
Area

2016

2017

6

A47

Maldens and Coombe
(New Malden and Old
Malden Children’s
Centres)

Good

Surbiton and Tolworth
(Surbiton and Tolworth
Children’s Centres)

Good

South of the Borough
(Chessington Children’s
Centre)

Good with
Outstanding elements

North Kingston and
Kingston Town
(Norbiton, North
Kingston and Kingston
Town Children’s
Centres)

Good

Enclosure 2 to Annex 1

South
Cluster

Good with
Outstanding elements

North East Cluster –
Kingston

Requires Improvement

Hard to reach - the most vulnerable families
Children’s centres monitor registration and access of all service users. This includes closely
monitoring target groups who are considered disadvantaged or most in need and those
living in areas of identified deprivation such as Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs). Analysis
of this monitoring data allows trends to be identified at a local community level and then
provision can be adjusted to meet needs.
There are 2,647 hard to reach children registered with a children’s centre in Kingston. Of
those, 1,220 regularly engaged with children’s centre services. Our largest cohort of hard to
reach groups are lone parents. Other target groups include those families living in areas of
identified deprivation, those on low incomes who are unemployed and affected by
Universal Credit, and families of disadvantaged two year olds who are eligible for two year
old funding.
The proposed model will sustain the current levels of engagement with hard to reach
groups through outreach, in those areas with the greatest level of deprivation.
Governance and partnerships
There are clear governance arrangements in place to ensure children’s centres are
strategically well led and operationally managed, maximising the use of resources and
partnership working.
Children’s centres work collaboratively with the following partners (note this is not an
exhaustive list):
●
●
●
●

●
●

Schools
PVI settings – Early Years Providers
Health Visiting Providers, Your Health Care
(RBK) Central London Community
Healthcare
Midwifery services – Kingston Hospital

●
●

7

Homestart – Commissioned Service
Adult Learning Providers – Kingston &
Richmond
Achieving for Children Early Help Service
Contact Supervision
Adoption Services

Enclosure 2 to Annex 1

A48

●

●
●

Speech and Language
JobCentre Plus – Central and via
Strengthening Families Advisors

Libraries
Domestic Abuse support – Refuge

Detailed proposals for children’s centre provision in Kingston
In the proposals that were presented as part of the public consultation, four children’s
centres were selected for decommissioning for the following reasons:
Children’s
Centre

Reason

Norbiton

Lowest number of exclusive users; regular users mainly access only health services
which can be provided at alternative clinical sites within close proximity; parent and
child sessions can be delivered at nearby outreach sites i.e. Dickerage Lane Youth Centre
(which is less than 0.1 miles away); and within 1.2 miles of Kingston Town Children’s
Centre

Surbiton

One of the smaller centres so no capacity for expansion; reduction in footfall over
previous years (although some of this is attributable to parts of building being used by
other services and a smaller workforce); outreach sites to include the nearby nursery
which is less than 0.1 miles away from the current site; and within 0.9 miles of Tolworth
Children’s Centre

North Kingston

Not located in or near a deprived area; footfall information suggests not one of the most
used centres (although this differs from the consultation findings); regular users mainly
access midwifery services which can be provided at nearby centres and clinical settings;
and 1.5 miles to Kingston Town Children’s Centre

New Malden

It is 1.6 miles to Old Malden Children’s Centre which continues to offer a programme of
activities including access to health services, and English as an Additional Language.
There has already been a reduction in the programme since children’s centre services
have been remodelled into clusters

The proposal is to retain Chessington, Kingston Town, Old Malden and Tolworth Children’s
Centres.
In the context of the financial position in Kingston, the continued occupation of eight main
children’s centre sites across the borough is unsustainable in terms of finances and the staff
resource to offer a full range of services. With this in mind it is proposed to approach the
remodelling of the provision as referenced in the recommendations above.
Next steps
Should the proposals be agreed, the next steps would be to:
● develop a detailed implementation plan including undertaking staff consultation in
relation to reductions in the children’s centre workforce;
● publish the consultation findings; and
● develop a communications plan to communicate the implementation plan to
parents, carers, children and young people, and key stakeholders and partners.
2. Why is the equality assessment being undertaken?

8

A49

Enclosure 2 to Annex 1

The equality assessment is being undertaken to better understand the impact of the
proposals included in the Children’s Centre Strategy for Kingston so that Councillors are fully
informed prior to decision-making.
3. What sources of information have been used in the preparation of this equality
assessment? (e.g national research, local needs assessment, user feedback) Please
provide the details in the table below:
Information source

Children’s Centre Strategy
Report for Children’s and
Adults’ Care and
Education Committee- 20
September 2018
Children’s Centre Strategy
public consultation
findings- February 2019
Kingston Children’s
Centre data
Stop Start: Survival,
decline or closure?
Children’s centres in
England, 2018- The Sutton
Trust
The impact of children’s
centres: studying the
effects of children's
centres in promoting
better outcomes for
young children and their
families- Department for
Education
Disability and Poverty,
New Policy Institute, 2016

Description and outline of the information source

Report setting out the Achieving for Children proposals for
children’s centre provision in Kingston.

The findings from the public consultation exercise seeking
views on the proposals for children’s centres in Kingston.
Data relating to children’s centre usage in Kingston.
Report outlining the current approach to the provision of
children’s centre across the country:
https://www.suttontrust.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/04/S
topStart-FINAL.pdf
Report setting out the results of a study of the impact of
children’s centres:
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/
system/uploads/attachment_data/file/485346/DFE-RR495_Eva
luation_of_children_s_centres_in_England__the_impact_of_c
hildren_s_centres.pdf

A report by the New Policy Institute setting out the links
between disability and poverty. A summary can be found here:
https://www.npi.org.uk/files/7414/7087/2444/Disability_and_
poverty_SUMMARY_REPORT_FINAL.pdf

ANALYSIS OF IMPACT
4. Assess the relevance of each protected characteristic group to the service/ function/
policy/ project and explain what the data, customer feedback, complaints or discussions
with stakeholder groups tells you about the impact.
Other questions to consider:
●
●
●
●

How well are diverse needs met?
Have any differences in access to services/functions been identified for any group?
Has the area identified any disadvantages experienced by groups, which need to be
addressed?
Have there been any complaints about a failure to receive an appropriate and fair service?

9

A50
●
●
●
●

Enclosure 2 to Annex 1

Is there any other evidence of differential impact or different outcomes which needs to be
addressed?
Is there any evidence that participation in areas of public life is disproportionately low for any
particular relevant protected characteristic group?
Have the needs of disabled people been identified and addressed where these are different
from the needs of non-disabled people?
Have you identified any need to tackle prejudice or promote understanding between different
relevant protected characteristic groups?

Remember that equality assessment is not simply about identifying and removing negative effects
of discrimination but it is also an opportunity to identify ways to advance equality of opportunity
and to foster good relations.

The data presented in the equality assessment below is for the period January 2018 to
December 2018 and comes from the Kingston Children’s Centre dataset.
It considers the impact of decommissioning the four centres as set out in the proposals in
the public consultation.
Protected Group
Findings
Data
Data relating to the age of parents and carers is not routinely
collected. However, data relating to younger parents is
gathered. It shows that there were 21 families with a teenage
parent (19 years old and younger) and 243 families with a
young parent (20 to 24 years old) who accessed children’s
centre services.
Of these, nine families with a teenage parent and 113 families
with a young parent attended the children’s centres that may
be decommissioned over the next 24 months.

Age

Available attendance data also shows how many people,
including children, have used the centres. Given that centres
are aimed at children aged 0 to five, the assumption can be
made that children in attendance are in that age bracket.
It shows that there were 11,979 individuals who attended
children’s centres across Kingston and 5,427 children. In total,
5,777 families were in attendance.
Tolworth, Kingston Town, and Chessington had the highest
number of families in attendance. Norbiton, New Malden , and
North Kingston had the lowest number of families in
attendance.
291 families attending outreach sessions and 613 attended
locality wide activities.
The data in the table below set out the number of children
attending the centres included in the proposals:

10

Enclosure 2 to Annex 1

A51

Children’s centre

Number of children

Norbiton

369

Surbiton

846

New Malden

641

North Kingston

839

In terms of the age of those who completed the online survey:
●
●
●
●
●
●

53.7% aged 35-44;
34.9% aged 25-34;
6.4% aged 45-54;
3.2% aged 55+;
0.9% aged 15-24; and
0.8% preferred not to say.

Impact
Given that children’s centre provision is aimed at children aged
0-5, the proposals will undoubtedly impact on this age group.
Should the proposals be approved, there would be a direct
impact on the children who attend Norbiton, Surbiton, New
Malden and North Kingston’s children’s centres when they are
decommissioned. There is not likely to be any impact on those
children who attend the other centres or outreach/ locality
wide activities. The service will work with any families who
may attend children’s centres that could be decommissioned
to identify alternative venues to access services- either in
other centres or in outreach sites.

Disability

As part of the public consultation, respondents were asked
what services they would be interested in being delivered. A
number of the preferred options related to expanding the
offer from 0 to five to support children aged 0 to 11 during
school holidays. If the proposals are approved, this will be
considered and is likely to have a positive impact on children
aged six to 11.
Data
The data shows that 70 families with disabled children and 43
families with a disabled parent/ carer accessed children’s
centre services.
In terms of the disability status of those who completed the
online survey:

11

A52

Enclosure 2 to Annex 1

● 95.7% of respondents stated they do not have a
disability; 1.9% stated they do have a disability; and
2.4% preferred not to say.
● 94.9% of respondents stated their child did not have a
disability; 2.7% stated their child did have a disability;
and 2.4% preferred not to say.
Impact
The children’s centre offer will continue to provide support for
families with children with special needs. The service will work
with any families who may attend children’s centres that could
be decommissioned to identify alternative accessible venues
to attend sessions- either in other centres or in outreach sites.
This will take into account any mobility issues relating to the
parent or child.
Given the established link between disability and poverty
(research in 2016 indicates that half of people in poverty are
disabled or live with a disabled person), the strengthened
focus on the most vulnerable families and hard to reach
families is likely to have a positive impact on those families
with a parent or carer who has a disability.
The public consultation also highlighted that new parents
value the support provided by children’s centres to help with
any potential mental health issues arising from the difficulties
of looking after babies and small children. This support will
continue under the proposals.
Data
The data shows that of those parents/ carers attending the
children’s centres, 87.0% are female and 13.0% are male. In
terms of the children who attend, 49.0% are female and 51.0%
are male.
In terms of the gender of those who completed the online
survey, 91.9% of respondents were female, 6.4% were male,
and 1.7% preferred not to say.
Gender (Sex)

This suggests that slightly more female users completed the
survey.
Impact
Given that services are predominantly taken up by women as
the primary carers, any impact is more likely to be felt by
females. It is worth noting however that fathers are actively
encouraged to engage in services and additional groups for
fathers are run. The service will work with any families who
may attend children’s centres that could be decommissioned

12

A53

Enclosure 2 to Annex 1

to identify alternative venues to access services- either in
other centres or in outreach sites.
Data
The children’s centres do not collect information relating to
gender reassignment.

Gender reassignment

Marriage and civil
partnership

Impact
Gender reassignment is considered of low relevance to this
equality assessment. However this will be kept under review.
In addition, there will be an expectation that children’s centre
staff have an understanding of transgender and gender
identity when working with users accessing children’s centre
provision.
Data
The children’s centres do not collect information relating to
marriage and civil partnership.
Impact
Marriage and civil partnership is considered of low relevance
to this equality assessment. However this will be kept under
review.
Data
Midwifery services are run at the main children’s centre sites
in Kingston. The level of midwifery provision is different at
different sites and is down to the organisation of the individual
midwifery teams and not under the control of the children’s
centres.
The data shows that 2,001 families attended children’s centre
services to access midwifery services.

Pregnancy and maternity

There will also be a significant number who attend children’s
centres to access postnatal services such as breastfeeding
support or a health visiting team.
Impact
Children’s centre provision is considered to be of high
relevance to pregnancy and maternity given the focus of
services delivered. For example, the following services are
delivered to families:
● Health services relating to young children, parents and
prospective parents, which include co-location of
Health Visiting Services and, midwifery teams in
Children’s Centres.
● Drop in and bookable Health Visiting appointments.
● Universal clinics open to all eligible families with no
appointment necessary.

13

A54

Enclosure 2 to Annex 1

● Access to Post Natal Depression support
● Referrals to specialist health services as required.
● Access to information, advice and guidance on health
issues such as sleep, weaning, breastfeeding support,
vitamins, healthy eating, emotional health.
The public consultation responses demonstrated how popular
these services are to users- particularly health visiting and
breastfeeding support.
If the proposals are approved, children’s centre provision will
continue to be focused on delivering services to expectant or
new parents. It may be however, services will be accessed via
outreach or community venues rather than children’s centres.
Data
The ethnicity of children’s centre attendees is set out in the
table below:
Ethnicity

Percentage

Asian
Black
Mixed
White
Other
Not known/ refused

Race/ethnicity

13.40%
2.10%
7.00%
65.60%
2.80%
9.30%

65.6% of attendees at children’s centres are White (all White
categories including White Irish, White Traveller of Irish
Heritage, White Any Other Background, and White Gypsy/
Roma). 49.2% of attendees at children’s centres are White
British.
25.3% of users are from a Black, Asian, or Minority Ethnic
(BAME) background (the ethnicity of 9.3% of users is not
known or the request for the information was refused). 49.2%
of attendees at children’s centres are White British.
In Kingston as a whole, 31.0% of all residents in Kingston are
from a BAME background (68.1% are White (including all
White groups) and 54.2% are White British). Between 2011
and 2017, the proportion of Kingston’s resident population
from BAME groups has increased from 25.0% to 31.0%, and
this growth is expected to continue to 46.0% in 2036.
Kingston’s younger population are more diverse than the
population as a whole with 39.0% of those aged 0-19
(compared to 31.0% in all age groups). There has been a rise in

14

A55

Enclosure 2 to Annex 1

the 0-19 population between 2011 and 2017 of over 6,000 and
the projections for 2026 predict further growth of 5,000.
In comparison then,children’s centres attendees are slightly
less diverse than the overall population and significantly less
diverse than the 0-19 population.
The ethnicity of users of the children’s centres proposed for
decommissioning is set out in the table below:
Ethnicity

Norbiton

Surbiton

New
Malden

North
Kingston

Asian
Black
Mixed
White
Other
Not known/
refused
% Total
BAME (Asian,
Black, Mixed,
and Other)

17.90%
1.00%
7.90%
58.10%
6.60%
8.60%

12.40%
1.40%
6.40%
68.60%
1.30%
10.20%

26.70%
2.20%
7.80%
51.40%
7.60%
4.30%

10.30%
0.70%
7.10%
60.10%
2.00%
19.80%

33.4%

21.5%

44.3%

20.1%

There are a higher percentage of BAME attendees at New
Malden Children’s Centre. This is attributable to the large
Korean/ Tamil population in this area.
In terms of the ethnicity of those who completed the online
survey:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

78.4% of respondents were White British;
7.9% were Asian;
4.9% were any other ethnic background;
2.8% were mixed/ mixed British;
0.9% were Black or Black British;
0.9% were Sri Lankan/ Tamil;
0.4% were Korean; and
4.0% preferred not to say.

This suggests that a higher proportion of White British users of
the children’s centre responded to the survey than those from
a BAME background. This may be because some of the hard to
reach groups, who may be from a BAME background, did not
participate in the survey. A range of methods were used to try
to engage with a wide range of service users including those
from BAME backgrounds. For example, translation support
was offered and targeted user group sessions were held with

15

A56

Enclosure 2 to Annex 1

communities local to specific areas such as the Korean
community in New Malden.
However, as stated earlier in this assessment, it is not possible
to be completely satisfied that the consultation findings are
fully representative of the needs of hard to reach families.
Therefore it is proposed to undertake further localised
consultation planning activity.
Impact
The analysis above suggests there may potentially be an
impact on service users from across different ethnic
backgrounds. In particular, the detailed analysis of users at
each of the centres proposed for decommissioning shows that
the New Malden centre has a significant Asian/ Any Other
Ethnic background population. Achieving for Children will have
to ensure that the service works with any families from a
Korean/ Tamil background in a culturally sensitive way to
ensure they are still able to access services at other centres or
at outreach sites should the proposals be implemented.
Further localised consultation will be undertaken to ensure
there are opportunities for all service users to contribute,
including hard to reach groups.
More generally, children’s centre services will continue to be
delivered in such a way that the needs of families from diverse
ethnic backgrounds can be met, based on demographic
information in the local area.
Data
Data relating to religion and belief is not collected by the
children’s centres.

Religion and belief
including non-belief

Sexual orientation

Impact
Religion and belief is considered to be of low relevance to the
children’s centre proposals. However this will be kept under
review.
The centres are open to all religious backgrounds and
children’s centre staff are expected to understand and respect
a range of religions and beliefs and what they may mean for
families i.e. diet. Achieving for Children will continue to take
into account the use of certain local buildings for outreach
services in relation to religion to ensure people do not feel
unable to take part.
Data
Data relating to sexual orientation is not collected by the
children’s centres.
Impact

16

A57

Enclosure 2 to Annex 1

Sexual orientation is considered to be of low relevance to the
children’s centre proposals. However this will be kept under
review.
In addition, there will be an expectation that children’s centre
staff have an understanding and respect the sexual orientation
of users of the children’s centres.
Data
The data shows of the families that accessed children’s centre
provision:

Other characteristics

● 356 were lone parent families;
● 228 were families from a workless household; and
● 638 were families who receive benefits.
Impact
By targeting services on vulnerable families in or close to the
areas of deprivation in the borough, children’s centre
provision should continue to be accessible by those who most
need support. This may include lone parent families, families
from a workless household and families who receive benefits.

5. Summarise the key findings of the equality assessments of impact- have you identified
any data gaps in relation to the relevant protected characteristics and relevant parts of
the duty?
Other questions to consider:
●
●
●
●
●

Are there findings of unlawful discrimination?
Can you address any identified adverse impact?
Can you mitigate any negative impact?
Please provide rationale if you are unable to address any adverse impact.
Have you identified any ways of advancing equality in this area? For example, meeting diverse
needs?
● Is there a need for any actions to promote understanding between different protected groups?

The proposed strategy for children’s centre provision in Kingston is based upon the
following principles:
● Ensuring children, young people and families continue to receive a high quality
Children’s Centre offer in Kingston.
● Maximising resources by targeting children’s centre provision at the most vulnerable
families in the most deprived areas through outreach.
● Developing stronger relationships between Achieving for Children and key partners,
including Kingston Council, providing a more joined-up and easy to access offer for
families.
The strategy is a response to the challenging financial situation both locally and nationally
but it provides an opportunity to ensure the children’s centre offer remains sustainable and
maximises limited resources. As such, it seeks to ensure that the overall impact of the

17

A58

Enclosure 2 to Annex 1

changes is positive by focusing on ensuring those families who most need help and support
are able to access it. Although the location of children’s centre provision will change, the
offer will broadly remain the same through the use of outreach and community venues. This
aligns with the definition of children’s centres as set out in the background section of this
assessment- it’s not a physical building in a particular location, it’s an offer of services
available and accessible in the community. The main outreach sites that are proposed for
use should the proposals be agreed are located close to areas of deprivation such as
Kingsnympton, the Dickerage Youth Centre and the Cambridge Road Estate.
In many ways the core offer may be strengthened through better relationships with key
partners,for example through greater use of alternative community venues, and by
potentially extending the provision to meet the needs of those aged 0 to 11 rather than just
0 to five during school holidays.
Inevitably, the changes will have an impact on some families in the borough, particularly
those who use the centres that are proposed to be decommissioned. For example, some
parents and carers will be required to travel further to access services. This will be
monitored as part of the implementation plan. The equality assessment has shown that the
proposals may have an impact on some specific groups:
● children aged 0 to five;
● female parents/ carers; and
● expectant or new parents.
In addition, there is likely to be an impact on some specific ethnic groups should New
Malden Children’s Centre be decommissioned due to the large the Korean/ Tamil population
in the New Malden area.
However, Achieving for Children will work with families and with key partners to mitigate
this impact. The aim would be to continue as much service delivery and activity as possible
using alternative local venues with outreach teams. For example:
● increasing some sessions where possible at existing sites i.e. back to back Stay and
Play sessions to enable more families to access;
● increasing outreach activity in affected site areas i.e Dickerage Lane to support
families who are currently accessing Norbiton Children’s Centre; and
● expanding the input of internal and external partners into the children’s centre
programme to address those areas identified within the consultation, such as
sessions for 0-11 year olds during school holidays in partnership with the Achieving
for Children Youth Service.
Each cluster already implements a comprehensive outreach plan into local communities
with specific focus on areas of higher deprivation. This is already happening in a number of
venues in the local area. For example, we are currently delivering a number of activities in
local schools such as Surbiton Children’s Centre Nursery School. This outreach model would
enable us to make savings by no longer using the buildings proposed and no longer having
the associated premises costs.

18

A59

Enclosure 2 to Annex 1

If the proposals are agreed, Achieving for Children will work with the findings from the
public consultation to develop a detailed implementation plan to ensure that the future
children’s centre offer reflects the needs and wishes of the users.
CONSULTATION
6. What consultation have you undertaken with stakeholders or critical friends about the
key findings? What feedback did you receive as part of the consultation?
Achieving for Children carried out a public consultation for over seven weeks from 12
December 2018 to 4 February 2019 to gather views and feedback on the proposals.
The main consultation was online through a survey hosted on the Achieving for Children
Local Offer site. All centres promoted and hosted access to the consultation survey online
and provided paper copies where requested. Focused sessions were held in all eight sites
and outreach venues. Translation support, one to one support and targeting of key user
groups formed part of the consultation process. All registered children’s centre users (who
have provided an email address) were also emailed with information about the survey and
key stakeholders were also asked to promote the consultation.
In total, there were 744 responses (the protected characteristic information relating to the
respondents is presented in the equality analysis above). This represents approximately
15.0% of service users who are currently accessing children’s centres. This is a statistically
significant sample but it is important to be mindful that the voices of hard to reach families
may not be fully represented in the sample. As a result, should the recommendations be
agreed, there is a proposal to do more localised consultation with families in the areas that
would be affected by the decommissioning of children’s centres to ensure the voices of
these families are being heard and can feed into service development.
Respondents were asked questions relating to their experience of using children’s centres,
their views on proposals for the future of children’s centres in Kingston, and their views on
enhancing the children’s centre offer.
The key findings were:
Experience of using children’s centres
● The children’s centres most used by the respondents are North Kingston (18.8%); Tolworth
(18.0%); Kingston Town (16.6%); and Chessington (14.3%). The least used centres are Surbiton
(13.5%); New Malden (11.0%); Old Malden (6.1%); and Norbiton (1.7%). The percentage of
respondents who use Norbiton was particularly low.
● In terms of which other children’s centres are used by respondents in addition to the primary
centre that is used, Surbiton (39.1%); Tolworth (32.9%); Kingston Town (28.9%); and Chessington
(20.3%) are the most used. North Kingston (15.7%); New Malden (15.7%); Old Malden (15.5%); and
Norbiton (13.6%) are the least used.
● Children’s centres are well used- almost half of respondents (46.2%) stated they visited children’s
centres one or two times a week and a fifth (20.6%) said they attend two to four times per month.
● The most popular services delivered at the children’s centres are Stay and Play (83.9%); health
visitors (66.2%); Rhyme Time (56.3%); Messy Play (48.5%); and baby massage (40.9%). Other
popular services noted included Baby, Junior and Mama Jammers, breastfeeding advice and
support, and Crafty Tales.

19

A60

●
●
●

●

●

Enclosure 2 to Annex 1

The most important services delivered were Stay and Play (97.6%); health visitors (93.4%); early
years advice (91.9%); Messy Play (91.1%); and childcare advice (86.7%). Other services noted as
important included the range of support on offer including breastfeeding support and Jammers.
Respondents were keen to emphasise the importance of the support and help provided at the
centres, the social and community aspects they provide and the play and development
opportunities.
The least popular services were domestic violence support (1.4%); English as an additional
language sessions (1.7%); JobCentre Plus advice (1.7%); foodbank vouchers (2.5%); and benefit
advice (4.2%). The services considered least important were English as an additional language
(27.5%); foodbank vouchers (24.6%); JobCentre Plus advice (23.3%); benefit advice (21.4%); and
family support worker support (18.8%).
Although these services, which are more aimed at parents, were considered less important, 95.0%
of respondents stated that they agreed they could ask for support advice relating to issues such as
health, parenting skills or employment and training from a children’s centre. Respondents praised
the support and advice that is given and the helpful and approachable staff.
In terms of getting to the centres, 86.7% of respondents stated that they walked, with 20.7%
driving. Respondents emphasised the importance of being able to access local provision, ideally by
foot.

Proposals for the future of children’s centres in Kingston
● 64.5% of respondents do not agree with the proposals (strongly disagree/ disagree). 21.3% agree
(strongly agree/ agree) and 14.2% neither agree nor disagree.
● Of the comments provided: 16.7% of respondents can understand the reasons for the proposals;
15.5% thought the proposals are unfair for those who cannot travel easily and may lead to
increased isolation for parents; 14.5% thought the Council should re-prioritise to find funding for
the children’s centres; and 10.0% expressed concern about remaining children’s centre becoming
too busy.
● Just under half of respondents (46.6%) stated the proposals would definitely make it more difficult
to access children’s centre services. 29.9% stated it would make it more difficult to some extent,
20.6% said it wouldn’t make it more difficult, and 3.0% said they did not know. The main comments
related to concerns about the capacity of remaining children’s centres and the distance and time
taken to travel to a children’s centre.
● Just over half of the respondents (51.2%) stated that the changes would mean that they would not
use the children’s centres as much in the future and 15.7% stated they would not use children’s
centres at all. 17.0% of respondents the proposals said it would have no impact at all and 15.6%
said they would use another children’s centre in the future. Concerns raised related to the capacity
of the remaining centres and the required travel.
● Respondents said they would stop using children’s centres or use them less because of additional
travel travel (60.5%); sessions being too full (44.6%); and 44.6% said they would be unable to travel
to any other locations.
● Respondents were asked for comments about how else children’s centre services could be
sustained- responses included re-prioritising other council services (33.6%); seek voluntary
contributions (22.4%); or fundraise (21.6%).
Enhancing the children’s centre offer
● Just under half (49.4%) of respondents agreed with the proposals to re-develop the remaining
children’s centres to offer a wider range of services. 30.1% of respondents did not agree.
● The most popular name for the new centres was ‘Children and Family Centres’ (46.5%).
● If the offer was to be expanded, respondents stated they would like the following services to be
delivered: activities for children aged five to 11 during school holidays (73.9%); postnatal support
and advice (75.3%); expansion of support to children aged between 0 to 11 (rather than 0 to five)
(61.9%); and family support drop in advice (58.9%).

Established consultation mechanisms
There is an overarching joint Children’s Centre Strategic Board Partnership that facilitates
partnership engagement and oversees performance. There are three Advisory Boards, one

20

Enclosure 2 to Annex 1

A61

in each cluster, that have an accountability to the Children’s Centre Strategic Board
Partnership. Each cluster also has a parents forum to ensure the voice of the family and
children are used to shape provision and meet identified needs. Children’s centres regularly
hold events, consultations, evaluation and feedback forums to capture the voice of the
service users.
The forums would continue to operate and capture comments and views that will feed into
the planning and design of services.
ACTION PLANNING
7. What issues have you identified that require action?
Issue identified
Planned action
Implementation of the
proposals if agreed by
members

Ensure Achieving for
Children feedback the
results of the public
consultation
Ensuring accurate and
robust data is captured
about the service users
at children’s centre

Develop a detailed
implementation plan
including undertaking
staff consultation in
relation to reductions in
the children’s centre
workforce. The plan to
take into account the
impact on the protected
characteristic groups
outlined in the equality
assessment and seek to
mitigate wherever
possible and where
necessary
Publish the consultation
findings

Continue to work with
the Intelligence Team to
ensure systems are in
place to capture data
about children’s centre
users to help inform
service planning and to
address any data gaps
Ensuring ongoing
Develop a
communication with the communications plan to
parents, carers, children, communicate the
young people and the
implementation plan to
public about the
parents, carers, children
implementation of the
and young people, and
children’s centre
key stakeholders and
strategy
partners.

21

Lead officer

Head of Children,
Youth and
Partnerships

Completion
Date
Work will begin
immediately
should the
proposals be
agreed

Associate Director
for Business
Development and
Communications
Head of Children,
Youth and
Partnerships

By end of
March 2019

Head of Children,
Youth and
Partnerships

Work will begin
immediately
should the
proposals be
agreed

Ongoing

A62

Enclosure 2 to Annex 1

MONITORING AND REVIEW

8. How will the actions identified above be monitored and reviewed and where will the
actions be captured i.e. Business Plan, project plan, service and improvement plan, service
plan poster or Personal Development Plan?
The implementation of the children’s centre strategy in Kingston is one of the Achieving for
Children efficiency projects and as such it will be monitored as part of the project
management approach.
PUBLISHING THE COMPLETED ANALYSIS
When completed, the equality assessment should be approved by a member of AfC
Management Team and published on the Achieving for Children website. Please provide
details below:
Approved by
Pauline Maddison, Director of Children’s Services- Kingston
Date of approval:
February 2019
Date of publication:
April 2019

22

Council

B1

Appendix B

24 April 2019
Response to the LGA Peer Review
Reference from Finance and Contracts Committee (4 April 2019)
Responsible Portfolio Holder: The Leader of the Council, Councillor Liz Green
Key Points
1.

At its meeting on 4 April 2019, the Finance and Contracts Committee considered a
report (which is attached at Annex 1 to this report) setting out the key
recommendations of the LGA Peer Review and the initial response of the Strategic
Leadership Team. The LGA Peer Review report itself is attached as Enclosure 1
to Annex 1 of this report.

2.

The Executive Summary of the LGA Peer Review report can be found on pages
B7-B8 of this report and the key recommendations of the Peer Review to the
Council are listed on page B3-B4 of this report.

3.

The Finance and Contracts Committee resolved that authority be delegated to the
Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader of the Council, to develop a Council
action plan which responds to the recommendations of the Peer Review. This
Action Plan is now attached to this report as Annex 2.

4.

The Action Plan expands on the initial response of the Strategic Leadership Team
listing the activity that is underway or will be taken to take on board the
recommendations. Each activity has a senior leadership owner, a target date for
completion and a status update.

5.

The activity set out has been compiled by senior officers and is either listed as a
deliverable in the Corporate Plan and/or will be embedded in directorate service
plans. Progress will be monitored through those plans.

6.

The LGA Peer Review Team will be invited back to look at how the Council has
made progress with the areas of improvement identified in 12 - 18 months time.

Recommendation
The Council is RECOMMENDED either to approve the Action Plan attached as Annex 2
to the report or to authorise the Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader of the
Council to make any additions to the Action Plan after the Council meeting arising from the
discussions at the Council meeting.

Finance & Contracts Committee

B2

Annex 1

4 April 2019
LGA Corporate Peer Review
Chief Executive
Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor Green

Purpose
To consider the final report and recommendations from the LGA Corporate Peer Review
of RBK conducted in January this year and the initial response from the council’s Senior
Leadership Team ahead of discussion at Full Council on 24 April.
Recommendation that Authority be delegated to the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader of
the Council, to develop a Council action plan which responds to the
recommendations of the Peer Review.
Benefits to the Community:
The LGA Peer Review provides recommendations to the council for improvement
relating to a set of core themes including place leadership and priority setting, financial
planning and capacity to deliver. Implementing the improvements will help the council to
achieve its high aspirations for the borough and it’s communities.

Key Points
A.

An LGA Corporate Peer Review took place in January 2019. The Peer Review was
requested by the council as part of its plans for improvement.

B.

The review, led by senior officers and members from other councils, looked at the
council’s current performance against a set of core themes including our
understanding of the local place and priority setting; leadership of place; financial
planning and viability; organisational leadership and governance; and capacity to
deliver.

C.

A final report was produced by the review team and published on the council’s
website on 14 March which included a number of observations and
recommendations to help the council improve.

D.

The council’s Senior Leadership Team - comprising the Chief Executive and
Directors - have provided an initial management response to the recommendations
which is appended to this report.

E.

The committee is asked to consider the review findings and recommendations and
authorise the development of an action plan to fully implement the required
improvements and changes, for approval at Full Council on 24 April.

B3

Context
1.

To support the council’s transformation and improvement - and to learn from best
practice - the council asked the Local Government Association (LGA) to conduct
a Corporate Peer Review of the organisation.

2.

LGA Corporate Peer Reviews are based around a standard framework
comprised of the following themes: our understanding of the local place and
priority setting; leadership of place; financial planning and viability; organisational
leadership and governance; and capacity to deliver.

3.

In addition to the standard themes, the council asked for the review to look
deeper at the financial planning and viability element and to consider the
council’s ambitions in relation to improving community engagement.

4.

Peer Reviews comprise senior officers and councillors from other local
authorities. The Team tasked with conducting the RBK Review was led by Andy
Donald, Chief Executive, London Borough of Redbridge and also included; Cllr
Adam Payntor, Leader, Cornwall Council, Cllr Melvyn Caplan, Westminster City
Council, Tom Hook, London Borough of Barking and Dagenham, Peter
Robinson, Sophie Poole and Chris Bowron, LGA.

5.

The Review team were on site at the council offices between 10th and 14th
January 2019 to carry out the assessment. During this time the review team
conducted a number of interviews and focus groups with council staff,
councillors, local strategic partners and residents.

6.

It is important to highlight that LGA Peer Reviews are not a formal inspection.
Such reviews are designed to complement and add value to a council’s own
performance and improvement. The Peer Review team used their experience
and knowledge of local government to reflect on the information presented to
them by the people they met, things they saw and material that they read. They
provided feedback as critical friends not as inspectors or assessors.

Review findings and recommendations
7.

The Peer Review team produced a final report and recommendations which was
published on the council’s website on 14 March. The final report is appended to
this document.

8.

Overwhelmingly, the Review Team were struck by the potential and opportunity
that exists for the council, both as an organisation and as a leader of place; ‘The
council has much to call upon to drive things forward, including a committed and
talented workforce, a passionate elected membership and the goodwill of
partners. The prospect of harnessing all of this and uniting it behind fulfilling the
potential and the opportunity means that these are very exciting times for
Kingston’.

9.

A summary of the key recommendations for improvement is that the Royal
Borough of Kingston should:

10.

• Capitalise upon the opportunity as an organisation and a leader of place,
involving establishing a clear vision and sense of purpose.
• Seize the place leadership through building relationships with partners.

B4

• Establish a single, shared understanding about the scale of the financial
challenges being faced and mechanisms that provide real grip and rigour around
the delivery of savings and budget spend.
• Bring about greatly improved communication across the council.
• Establish greater collective leadership of corporate and strategic issues.
• Determine what community engagement means in Kingston and the approaches
to be adopted.
• Continue the review of the council’s Constitution and governance
arrangements.
• Conclude the organisational restructure in as timely a fashion as
possible.
• Prioritise/sequence the corporate system and process changes that the
council recognises are needed and then inject pace and rigour at each stage.
11.

The full LGA report is attached at Annex 1

12.

The council’s Senior Leadership Team, in consultation with the Leader of the
Council, have provided an initial response to the recommendations and these are
detailed in the table at Annex 2.

Consultations
13.

Staff, councillors, local strategic partners and a number of residents were invited
to take part in focus groups with the Peer Review Team to discuss the council’s
performance, challenges and opportunities.

14.

The comments and feedback received was used by the peer review team to
inform the findings and recommendations made.

Timescale
15.

A more detailed action plan to progress all the recommendations will be
developed and presented to Full Council on 24 April 2019.

16.

The actions developed in response to the Peer Review recommendations will be
implemented over the next 12-18 months and will be added to Directorate
Service Delivery Plans to ensure accountability is clear.

17.

In 18 -24 months time the LGA Peer Review Team will be invited back to look at
how the council has made progress with the areas of improvement identified.

Resource Implications
18.

The actions required to progress the improvements will be delivered using
existing staff resources

Legal Implications
19.

No legal implications

B5

Risk Assessment
20.

If the recommendations are not implemented the council may not make the
necessary improvements and change sufficiently to meet its aspirations for the
borough.

21.

Developing a plan with clear actions, action owners and target dates will ensure
the recommendations are progressed.

Equalities Analysis
22.

No equality analysis is required as this is not a change to policy or service
delivery

Health Implications
23.

None

Road Network Implications
24.

None

Environmental & Air Quality Implications
25.

None

Background papers .
o None other than those referred to in this report
Author of report - Paula Tribe, Corporate Head, Strategy and Engagement
paula.tribe@kingston.gov.uk
02085475421

B6

Enclosure 1 to ANNEX 1

Corporate Peer Challenge
Royal Borough of Kingston upon
Thames
7th to 10th January 2019

Feedback Report

B7

1.

Executive Summary

It very much feels as though ‘the time is now’ for Kingston, with us being struck by the
potential and opportunity that exists for the council, both as an organisation and as a
leader of place. The council has much to call upon to drive things forward, including a
committed and talented workforce, a passionate elected membership and the goodwill of
partners. The prospect of harnessing all of this and uniting it behind fulfilling the potential
and the opportunity means that these are very exciting times for Kingston. Central to this
is establishing a clear vision both for the place and for the organisation and, through this,
engendering a sense of purpose.
People want the council to succeed and a key part of this is seizing the place leadership
mantle. The council taking the lead in the borough would be strongly welcomed and there
is nothing out-with the organisation that is acting as a barrier. All of the council’s partner
relationships require it to invest greater time, effort and engagement in them but some of
them are seen to require complete re-building. As the council shapes up for the future,
looking at how best to achieve improved outcomes for its citizens and deliver its ambitions,
getting its approach to partnership working right will be crucial.
Whilst the council has delivered against its financial challenges to date, this has not been
achieved in the most robust of ways. This financial year has been extremely challenging
and the council has had to work very hard to manage the situation. Lessons have been
learnt and are being applied. Going forward, the council needs to provide real grip and
rigour around both the delivery of agreed savings and spend against budget.
There is a cumulative and on-going deficit in relation to the council’s Dedicated Schools
Grant, amounting to over £10m. The situation, if not addressed, threatens the future
financial viability of the council. There are differing levels of understanding across the
organisation about the scale of the overall financial challenge being faced by the council. It
is important to establish a single, shared understanding of what is currently an
unsustainable financial position and this then needs to be responded to with the
establishment of a truly comprehensive Medium Term Financial Strategy detailing how it
will be addressed.
The council has sought to bring about major organisational and cultural change in recent
years. Staff are welcoming of what they are seeing as the greater openness at the senior
leadership levels which has resulted from this. At the same time, they are crying out for
this to be built upon by greatly improved communication within the council – for the
development of a mindset and culture in which communication and engagement flow freely
through the organisation.
There is widespread desire both within the council and amongst partner organisations for
the senior managerial and political leadership of the authority to demonstrate greater
collective leadership of corporate and strategic issues. Given the cross-cutting nature of
many of the challenges facing the organisation, it is important for the senior leadership to
take shared ownership of them and work up solutions together. Bringing this about
necessitates creating the required space and time for the consideration of what are
complex issues.
1
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk www.local.gov.uk

B8

There is a deep commitment on the part of the council to local residents, community
engagement and democracy. The importance being attached to effective community
engagement by the new Administration is very widely understood in the council and there
is plenty of willingness to bring it about. However, people are looking for leadership on the
issue. Determining how to take it forward needs to be undertaken in conjunction with the
work that is underway to review the council’s Constitution and governance arrangements.
Developing the means by which to glean the widest possible spread of stakeholders’ views
and weave them into the authority’s thinking and planning from the outset can only aid the
decision-making process and contribute to better outcomes.
There is tremendous commitment and goodwill towards the council from people within the
organisation. It is also the case, however, that they are feeling the impact of the state of
flux and significant change of recent years. People are looking to be part of an
organisation that is more modern both culturally and in the way that it operates and are
therefore understanding of the need for the changes that they have been experiencing.
However, things need to stabilise and settle and the council would derive benefit for all
concerned from ensuring it fully values, supports and involves its people and makes the
best use of what they have to offer. The goodwill will not last forever.
There is a growing list of corporate system and process enhancements and changes
that the council recognises as being needed. These are key to the effective functioning
of the corporate body. However, the council cannot establish all of them in the short
term. In order to bring them about effectively, the council will need to prioritise and/or
sequence them and then inject pace and apply rigour at each stage. For them to be
successful they need to be seen as ‘enablers’ rather than a means of control. In
devising them, we would encourage the council to ensure it capitalises upon existing
good practice and expertise in the organisation, enables widespread staff involvement
and engagement right across the council and draws in learning from elsewhere.

2.

Key recommendations

There are a range of suggestions and observations within the main section of this report
that will inform some ‘quick wins’ and practical actions, in addition to the conversations onsite – many of which provided ideas and examples of practice from other organisations.
The following are the peer team’s key recommendations to the council:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Capitalise upon the opportunity that exists for the council as an organisation and a
leader of place, involving establishing a clear vision and sense of purpose
Seize the place leadership and partnership mantle – undertake stakeholder
mapping, re-build relationships where necessary and invest the required time, effort
and engagement across the board
Establish a single, shared understanding about the scale of the financial challenge
being faced
Establish mechanisms that provide real grip and rigour around the delivery of
savings and budget spend
Grip the financial challenge – create a comprehensive Medium Term Financial
Strategy that reflects a range of means by which to address completely the full
extent of the financial challenges facing the council
Bring about greatly improved communication across the council
2

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk www.local.gov.uk

B9

•
•
•
•
•

3.

Establish greater collective leadership of corporate and strategic issues, which
requires support and the creation of the necessary space and time
Determine what community engagement means in Kingston and the approaches to
be adopted
Continue the review of the council’s Constitution and governance arrangements
Conclude the organisational re-structure in as timely a fashion as possible
Prioritise/sequence the corporate system and process changes that the council
recognises are needed and then inject pace and rigour at each stage

Summary of the Peer Challenge approach

The peer team
Peer challenges are delivered by experienced elected member and officer peers.
The make-up of the peer team reflected your requirements and the focus of the peer
challenge. Peers were selected on the basis of their relevant experience and
expertise and agreed with you. The peers who delivered the peer challenge in
Kingston were:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Andy Donald, Chief Executive, London Borough of Redbridge
Councillor Adam Paynter, Leader, Cornwall Council
Councillor Melvyn Caplan, Chairman of Housing and Finance Committee,
Westminster City Council
Tom Hook, Director, Policy and Participation, London Borough of Barking and
Dagenham
Peter Robinson, Financial Improvement and Sustainability Adviser, Local
Government Association
Sophie Poole, Programme Manager, Local Government Association
Chris Bowron, Programme Manager, Local Government Association

Scope and focus
The peer team considered the following five questions which form the core components
looked at by all corporate peer challenges. These are the areas we believe are critical
to councils’ performance and improvement:
1. Understanding of the local place and priority setting: Does the council understand
its local context and place and use that to inform a clear vision and set of
priorities?
2. Leadership of place: Does the council provide effective leadership of place
through its elected members, officers and constructive relationships and
partnerships with external stakeholders?
3. Organisational leadership and governance: Is there effective political and
managerial leadership supported by good governance and decision-making
arrangements that respond to key challenges and enable change and
transformation to be implemented?
3
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk www.local.gov.uk

B10

4. Financial planning and viability: Does the council have a financial plan in place to
ensure long term viability and is there evidence that it is being implemented
successfully?
5. Capacity to deliver: Is organisational capacity aligned with priorities and does the
council influence, enable and leverage external capacity to focus on agreed
outcomes?
Alongside these questions, the council asked the peer team to:
•

Consider their ambitions and plans around community engagement

•

Look at the ‘financial planning and viability’ element in greater depth

The peer challenge process
It is important to stress that this was not an inspection. Peer challenges are improvement
focused and tailored to meet individual councils’ needs. They are designed to complement
and add value to a council’s own performance and improvement. The process is not
designed to provide an in-depth or technical assessment of plans and proposals. The
peer team used their experience and knowledge of local government to reflect on the
information presented to them by people they met, things they saw and material that they
read.
The peer team prepared for the peer challenge by reviewing a range of documents and
information in order to ensure they were familiar with the council and the challenges it is
facing. The team then spent four days on-site in Kingston, during which they:
•

Spoke to more than 150 people, including a range of council staff, councillors
and external partners and stakeholders

•

Gathered information and views from more than 35 different interviews and focus
groups and additional research and reading

•

Collectively spent more than 225 hours to determine their findings – the
equivalent of one person spending more than six weeks in Kingston

This report provides a summary of the peer team’s findings. It builds on the feedback
presentation provided by the peer team on Thursday 10th January at the end of their
visit. In presenting feedback to the council, they have done so as fellow local
government officers and elected members, not professional consultants or inspectors.
By its nature, the peer challenge is a snapshot in time. We appreciate that some of the
feedback may be about things the council is already addressing and progressing.

4
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk www.local.gov.uk

B11

4.

Feedback

4.1 Understanding of the local place and priority-setting
Throughout the course of our work we were struck by the potential and opportunity that
exists for the council, both as an organisation and as a leader of Kingston the place. With
everything that the Royal borough has to offer, combined with an organisational change
agenda that is looking to establish a more modern council both culturally and in the way
that it operates, a new Strategic Leadership Team (SLT – the council’s most senior
management cohort) and a tremendous level of goodwill that exists both internally and
externally towards the local authority, it very much feels as though the time is now for
Kingston.
There is a deep commitment on the part of the council to local residents, community
engagement and democracy. This is reflected in the mechanisms within the council’s
governance arrangements that have facilitated a long-standing tradition of public
involvement and participation, including at council meetings. Supplementing this are the
commitments and ambitions of the new Administration to put residents at the centre of the
plans the council develops and place an emphasis on engaging early and effectively with
residents, communities and businesses.
The council had long been a stable organisation, with a long-standing management cohort
and only one change in political control (switching from Liberal Democrat to Conservative
in 2014) between 2002 and last year. Whilst there are many positive benefits that derive
from stability, the council was widely characterised during our conversations as having
been insular, passive and lacking pace for many years. In recent years the council has
been in more of a state of flux and has experienced significant change managerially,
including the departure of its former Chief Executive in June 2018 after around two years in
the role, the creation of a new SLT during the last year or so and the appointment just a
few weeks ago of a new Chief Executive who will commence in post in early February. A
Liberal Democrat Administration took control of the council at the elections eight months
ago.
Time is now of the essence if the council is to capitalise upon its potential. Central to this
is the need to articulate the opportunity that exists for the borough and the council. This
should entail establishing a clear vision both for the place and for the organisation and,
through this, engendering a sense of purpose. The council has developed the basis of a
corporate plan and we would encourage it to complete this as its ‘touchstone’ document. It
is important for the future direction to be understood and shared by elected members,
council staff, partners and the people of Kingston. Completing and publishing the
corporate plan in the near future would help in this respect.
The council has much to call upon to drive things forward, including a committed and
talented workforce, a passionate elected membership including a large proportion of
councillors who were newly-elected in May, the goodwill of partners and the financial
resources that remain available to the authority and within the public sector even though
these are significantly diminished compared to before. The prospect of harnessing all of
5
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk www.local.gov.uk

B12

this and uniting it behind fulfilling the potential and the opportunity that exist means that
these are very exciting times for Kingston.
4.2 Leadership of Place
It is widely recognised that whilst there is much good work taking place between the
council and many of its partners at a project or operational level, and that partners come
together regularly at the strategic level under the Kingston Strategic Partnership, the
council has not traditionally acted as a dynamic leader of place. This has been
compounded in recent times with the council having become increasingly focused on
internal change and its financial challenge. Despite this, the council has retained
significant goodwill amongst partners we spoke to, with the future success of the authority
seen as vital to that both of the borough and the sub-region.
People we spoke to want the council to succeed and a key part of this is seizing the place
leadership mantle. The clear message to the council is that local partners want the council
to take the lead in the borough. Doing so would be strongly welcomed and there is nothing
out-with the organisation that is acting as a barrier.
All of the council’s partner relationships require it to invest greater time, effort and
engagement in them. Within and around Kingston, the council has a mixed set of
relationships at the strategic level. However, some of them are seen to require complete
re-building, specifically that with the Clinical Commissioning Group – although it is
important to emphasise that we didn’t have the opportunity to glean the views of health
partners directly.
Achieving for Children is a social enterprise company co-owned by the council, the London
Borough of Richmond upon Thames and the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead
which provides children’s social care and education support services to the three
authorities. The quality of services and outcomes being delivered is seen to be high.
There is, however, a significant issue in relation to the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG),
which has a cumulative and on-going deficit amounting to over £10m and a forecast
overspend in the budget this year of more than £2m. The council is clear that this situation
needs to be brought back under control. Working with the Schools Forum it has developed
a draft three-year recovery plan which has been submitted to the Department for
Education. An independent Education Commission has been established which is working
with all stakeholders within the Special Educational Needs system to explore respective
roles and responsibilities and identify whole system solutions to ensure effective outcomes
are achieved within the resources available.
The council has participated at the London level over many years. It is now beginning to
play a more active role, engaging more fully, and it has recently secured major financial
benefit from its efforts in the form of more than £67million funding from the Greater London
Assembly under its ‘Building Council Homes for Londoners’ programme.
What is starting to be achieved at the London level acts as an example of the benefit to
Kingston of effective partnership engagement, although we are not in any way saying that
the benefits from partnership should be measured simply on the basis of financial return.
As the council shapes up for the future, looking at how best to achieve improved outcomes
6
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk www.local.gov.uk

B13

for its citizens and deliver its ambitions, getting its approach to partnership working right
will be crucial. As part of this, we see benefit in the council undertaking stakeholder
mapping, involving determining who it needs to engage and influence, to what effect and
who, on its part, is best placed to lead the necessary engagement. A fresh start is
required, headed by the Leader, her political colleagues and vice-chairs of committees, the
new Chief Executive and the SLT, with them combining their skills and experience to inject
the necessary commitment and spirit to all its partnerships.
4.3 Financial planning and viability
The council is progressing from a position where the budget has essentially been seen as
the responsibility of the Finance function to something that is more widely owned across
and down the organisation. This has involved major cultural change having had to be
brought about, although the task is not finished yet.
Whilst the council has delivered against its financial challenges to date, this has not been
achieved in the most robust of ways. A picture exists of a council that has always
managed to deliver a balanced budget but this masks significant variance in the form of
overspends in some parts of the council and underspends in others. This has been
compounded by the organisation struggling to achieve its savings consistently through the
means that have been agreed.
This financial year has been extremely challenging and the council has had to work very
hard to manage the situation. The budget that was set required a level of savings much
greater than the levels the council has achieved in previous years and the nature of much
of what was agreed is now felt to have been unrealistic.
Lessons have been learnt and are being applied, with what is seen to be a more involving
and robust approach to 2019/20 budget-setting having been established. This includes
more involvement and engagement of middle managers as part of the process of
developing wider ownership of the budget, a two-stage ‘Star Chamber’ process and
effective dialogue with senior politicians from the Administration. People feel the approach
that has been taken will determine ways to address the financial gap that are realistic and
achievable, although obviously remaining difficult and challenging.
In order to give the council the best chance of success in delivering against its financial
challenge in 2019/20 and beyond, it needs to establish the necessary mechanisms to
provide real grip and rigour around both the delivery of agreed savings and spend against
budget. The authority cannot afford, either financially or reputationally, for any continuation
of the variations in the form of significant overspends and underspends or the trend of not
delivering in line with its agreed savings plans.
As highlighted earlier, there is a cumulative and on-going deficit in relation to the council’s
DSG – a situation which is not unique to Kingston. This deficit will be exacerbated over the
coming years by the forecast overspend in the budget this year of more than £2m and
future planned deficits. The SEND transformation plan aims to bring the high needs
budget into balance but this is not without risks and does not resolve the cumulative deficit.
If the council does not address the DSG position, the future financial viability of the council
will be threatened because it has comparatively low levels of reserves.
7
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk www.local.gov.uk

B14

The council has improved the situation in relation to its reserves through the course of
2018/19 and plans to enhance their level further in 2019/20 to double the level that which
existed in 2017/18.
There are differing levels of understanding across the council, even at the senior
leadership level, about the scale of the overall financial challenge, including the DSG,
being faced by the organisation. It is important to establish a single, shared understanding
of what is currently an unsustainable financial position and this then needs to be
responded to with the establishment of a truly comprehensive Medium Term Financial
Strategy (MTFS) detailing how it will be addressed. The council has developed an outline
MTFS, which pragmatically runs through to the end of the financial year (2022/23) in which
the next local elections will be held. However, significant work is required to establish a
robust MTFS – one that sets out how a sustainable financial position will be attained. The
context for this is a challenging one, given the major changes proposed to local
government finance and the Comprehensive Spending Review.
There is a collective responsibility on the part of the senior political and managerial
leadership of the council to determine how the medium term position is addressed. Jointly
corporately developed solutions, reflecting the complex and cross-cutting nature both of
what the council exists to deliver and the way it operates, are required. This should,
naturally, extend further in order to maximise the opportunity for partner involvement.
Stretching the horizon of the council’s thinking so it genuinely runs through to 2022/23 will
offer both increased scope for savings and move the authority away from a position in
which the budget is seen as ‘an annual event’. As part of this, there is a need to ensure
the way the budget is allocated accurately reflects the council’s priorities.
Whilst the financial position of the council is significantly challenging, and the resources
available to it have diminished significantly over recent years, there would be benefit in the
authority moving away from a ‘deficits narrative’ to one that focuses instead on the
resources still available within the borough and the opportunity and potential that exist.
Between the council and partner organisations, there is still significant resource – financial,
people, assets, goodwill and social capital amongst others – to call upon. Centring the
narrative and attention on what can be achieved with what exists would be more uplifting
and galvanising than focusing on what has been lost.
4.4 Organisational leadership and governance
The council has sought to bring about major organisational and cultural change in recent
years, led by the former Chief Executive who was appointed in 2016. Amongst other
things, this has established the new SLT at Director level and a much changed Corporate
Leadership Group cohort comprising Assistant Directors and Corporate Heads of Service.
Staff that we spoke to from other tiers in the council are welcoming of what they are seeing
as greater openness at these leadership levels.
At the same time, however, staff are crying out for this to be built upon by greatly improved
communication within the council. The authority has a number of internal communications
mechanisms in place, such as the weekly ‘RBK Matters’ updates and the ‘Staff
Conversations’ forums, but what staff highlighted was less a matter of which and how
8
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk www.local.gov.uk

B15

many communications mechanisms exist and what is delivered by the corporate
communications function and much more one of the need for the development of a
mindset and culture in which communication and engagement flow freely and naturally up
and down and across the organisation.
There is widespread desire both within the council and amongst partner organisations for
the senior managerial and political leadership of the authority to demonstrate greater
collective leadership of corporate and strategic issues. At present, individuals are seen to
be focusing on their immediate area of responsibility and relationships tend to be bi-lateral
in nature. The best local authorities have very close and effective team-working across the
collective of lead politicians and lead officers. Given the cross-cutting nature of many of
the challenges facing the organisation, such as the position with the Dedicated Schools
Grant, the future relationship with Achieving for Children, continuing the work to establish a
robust medium term financial position and further organisational and cultural change
activity, it is important for the senior leadership – both as separate managerial and political
collectives and the two collectives together – to take shared ownership of them and work
up solutions together. Bringing this about necessitates creating the required space and
time for the consideration of what are complex issues. The people involved also require
support, supplementing what is already available in the form of mentors for individual
Portfolio Holders with such provision as is felt to be needed for members of the SLT as
individuals, SLT as a collective, Portfolio Holders as a collective and the SLT and Portfolio
Holders together.
The council is currently reviewing its Constitution and governance arrangements. Doing so
offers the opportunity simultaneously to address certain aspects of both that are generating
confusion and ambiguity, enhance community engagement and streamline decisionmaking.
The council has a set of governance arrangements that supplement a committee system
with the existence of Portfolio Holders, albeit without them either having decision-making
powers or operating as a Cabinet, and seek to maximise public involvement through
devolved decision-making at Neighbourhood Committee level and a range of mechanisms
that enable residents to input at council meetings. There is clearly confusion within the
organisation about the role and remit of Portfolio Holders within this ‘hybrid’ arrangement
and this needs to be addressed. As part of this, the council should ensure sufficient regard
is paid to the requirement for council officers to serve fully the entirety of the elected
membership, including other committee members (Portfolio Holders are Chairs of each of
the council’s main committees) and the Opposition.
Another aspect of governance that would benefit from clarification is what was neatly
summarised as the council risking “confusing meetings of the council held in public with
public meetings”. A key aspect of this is what was highlighted to us as local people, quite
rightly and legitimately, utilising the mechanisms available to them to speak at council
meetings on any matter of their choosing. Whilst this is clearly democratic, there is a risk
that a small number of voices, who may or may not represent the view of a wider set of
stakeholders, come to have an impact on the thinking on any given issue only at the
culmination of the council’s decision-making process or potentially switch the focus and
attention of a meeting to a matter that isn’t under consideration on the agenda.
9
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk www.local.gov.uk

B16

Reviewing the council’s Constitution and governance arrangements in tandem with
determining how to take forward its community engagement ambitions would be of value
here. Later in this report we encourage the council to determine more definitively what
community engagement means to it. Currently it is defined at a broad level – the council
looking to put residents at the centre of the plans it develops and place an emphasis on
engaging early and effectively with residents, communities and businesses. Getting the
thinking about this right, and in so doing developing the means by which to glean the
widest possible spread of stakeholders’ views and weave them into the authority’s thinking
and planning from the outset, can only aid the decision-making process and contribute to
better outcomes.
Streamlining the way that the council conducts its business is essentially about speeding
up the decision-making process and establishing greater clarity and focus. Central to this
is distinguishing between reporting to committee for decision-making purposes and doing
so to keep elected members informed. Real challenge is required around the latter whilst
the former necessitates clarifying where a decision is best taken. This is based upon the
anecdotes shared with us around the same report sometimes being taken to several
committees and what should be fairly straightforward decisions sometimes taking months
and possibly even years. Another strand of the streamlining is moving to a position by
which, through the development of the most comprehensive means of community
engagement possible, reports arriving at committee represent the culmination of a
participative process rather than the point at which the debate comes to a head.
The council has 48 elected members across 16 wards in Kingston. In May last year, 30
new councillors were elected. All of the councillors that we met are keen to fulfil their
various roles to full effect and, to this end, are looking for support from the organisation.
There are two main strands to this. The first is the provision of training and development
whilst the second relates to officer responsiveness on councillors’ casework.
With the first dimension, we have already highlighted the mentoring support that has been
made available to Portfolio Holders. The council also has a generic programme of training
and development for councillors, including all-member briefings on such issues as the
Code of Conduct. This programme follows on from, and supplements, the induction
arrangements put in place for the period immediately following the elections. As the
council’s Constitution and governance arrangements are revised there is clearly an
opportunity to adapt the training and development provision accordingly so councillors are
clear on how things should operate.
We would also encourage the council to look to develop opportunities for elected members
to engage more with wider local government. As we outlined earlier, the council has been
seen traditionally to be insular. The influx of new officers to the council is bringing in
learning and changed approaches, which is proving beneficial. Combining this with
elected members having the chance to learn from elsewhere would be very powerful. The
Leader is clearly active in the local government sector and it is hoped that others might be
willing and enabled to follow suit.
With regard to officer responsiveness to councillors’ casework, there is clearly some
frustration around this. At the heart of this would seem to be a lack of a shared
understanding of what can be expected. We understand that there is an IT-based system
through which councillors can raise an issue they are looking for a response on. However,
10
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk www.local.gov.uk

B17

there is no indication through the system of who is picking the issue up or on what
timescales a response can be expected. We also understand that some councillors simply
approach directly the officer they feel is most relevant to deal with an issue. Councils have
different arrangements in place for councillors raising casework issues and any system can
be made to work but establishing clarity around how the system works is paramount. In
Kingston, the key issue would seem to be around ensuring councillors know who is taking
something forward and the timescales on which they might expect a response.
4.5 Capacity to deliver
There is tremendous commitment and goodwill towards the council from people within the
organisation. The staff that we spoke to see positive aspects emerging from the
organisational changes, including the greater openness at senior leadership levels
highlighted earlier and the introduction of agile working with its related office
refurbishments. It is also the case, however, that they are feeling the impact of the state of
flux and significant change of recent years.
People are looking to be part of an organisation that is more modern both culturally and in
the way that it operates and are therefore understanding of the need for the changes that
they have been experiencing. However, things need to stabilise and settle and the council
would derive benefit for all concerned from ensuring it fully values, supports and involves
its people and makes the best use of what they have to offer. The goodwill will not last
forever.
There was a marked difference across the range of focus groups that we undertook with
staff at different levels, with this reflecting whether people had already been through the
organisational re-structure process or it was still to be applied to them. Everybody is keen
to see the process reach a conclusion soon but the greatest imperative is clarifying as
quickly as possible the further stages that are to be undertaken and when they will be
applied.
The agile working changes have not touched everybody yet and, understandably given the
nature of the changes and their cultural impact, people are adapting to them in different
ways and on varied timescales. What was also clear is that some aspects of the agile
working changes could, in the eyes of those we spoke to, have been communicated and
explained better, with greater engagement, including changes to the flexi-time system and
the ability to print documents.
We highlighted earlier what staff are keen to see in the way of the development of a
mindset and culture in which communication and engagement flow freely and naturally up
and down and across the organisation. Getting this right and bringing the organisational
re-structure to a conclusion soon will be important in addressing the growing cynicism and
fatigue that we came across. We met a lot of very good and clearly talented people during
the course of our work. We reiterate that it is important to fully value, support and involve
them.
There is a growing list of corporate system and process enhancements and changes
that the council recognises as being needed and has started work on. These include
the following:
11
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk www.local.gov.uk

B18

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Corporate performance management framework
Project and programme management infrastructure
Risk management framework
Corporate commissioning and contracts function
Transformation programme infrastructure
Data and insight function
Enhanced IT capability
Organisational development (OD) strategy

These are key to the effective functioning of the corporate body. However, the council
cannot establish all of them in the short term. It needs to be mindful of the limited
capacity that it has. In order to bring them about effectively, the council will need to
prioritise and/or sequence them and then inject pace and apply rigour at each stage. It
is important for the council to establish a track record for delivering its change activities
in a rigorous and effective way.
For the systems and processes to be successful they need to be seen as ‘enablers’
rather than a means of control. Thus, in devising them, we would encourage the council
to ensure it capitalises upon existing good practice and expertise in the organisation,
enables widespread staff involvement and engagement right across the council and
draws in learning from elsewhere. As examples, in the absence of corporate
approaches, some directorates have established their own performance management
systems and approaches to commissioning and contracts. The added value will lie with
exploring how a corporate approach to systems and processes can aid and facilitate the
work of directorates rather than be seen as imposing centralised control. Staff we met
at all levels are keen to be involved and engaged in the council’s activities beyond their
own immediate areas of responsibility and the authority will benefit from enabling this to
happen.
We would also urge the council to be mindful of the cynicism that exists within the
organisation about the use of consultants (as distinct from interim staff and the
additional capacity they offer), which is seen to have been fairly prevalent in recent
times. There will undoubtedly be times where their expertise is vital but there is also
much that the council can do both to tap into the knowledge of its own staff and draw in
learning from others in local government.
4.6 Community engagement
The importance being attached to effective community engagement by the new
Administration is very widely understood in the council and there is plenty of willingness to
bring it about. However, people are looking for leadership on the issue. Whilst they
understand the principle, they are grappling with what it entails and what is required of
them. They are asking ‘what needs to be different to what the council is already doing?’
and ‘what does good community engagement look like?’.
Thus the council needs to determine more definitively what this agenda means to it. There
is a very wide spectrum of community engagement, ranging from the council
communicating its key messages to people and undertaking consultation on a project by
12
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk www.local.gov.uk

B19

project basis, through to co-design and co-production. It is important for the authority to
decide where it wishes to position itself on that spectrum. In doing so, we would
encourage the council to ensure considerations around the drive for increased
engagement are balanced against a real desire from many people we spoke to for the
council to ‘just get on with it’ – seizing the place leadership mantle and demonstrating
greater collective leadership of corporate and strategic issues.
Good examples already exist in the council around consultation on individual projects,
including within adult services, and a number of new initiatives are being brought in or
thought about, including the Community Engagement Committee, Community Hubs and a
Citizens’ Assembly. The very strong sense is that the council’s ambitions rest more
around those concepts of co-design and co-production and people are finding the prospect
of this exciting. The challenge is around helping people translate the ambition into tangible
action.
As we highlighted earlier, determining how to take forward the council’s community
engagement ambitions needs to be undertaken in conjunction with the reviewing of its
Constitution and governance arrangements. Developing the means by which to glean the
widest possible spread of stakeholders’ views and weave them into the authority’s thinking
and planning from the outset can only aid the decision-making process and contribute to
better outcomes. Essentially, reports arriving at committee should represent the
culmination of a participative process rather than the point at which the debate comes to a
head.

5.

Next steps

Immediate next steps
We appreciate the senior managerial and political leadership will want to reflect on
these findings and suggestions in order to determine how the organisation wishes to
take things forward.
As part of the peer challenge process, there is an offer of further activity to support this.
The LGA is well placed to provide additional support, advice and guidance on a number
of the areas for development and improvement and we would be happy to discuss this.
Kate Herbert (Principal Adviser) and Sophie Poole (Programme Manager) are the main
points of contact between the authority and the Local Government Association (LGA).
Their e-mail addresses are kate.herbert@local.gov.uk and sophie.poole@local.gov.uk
Follow-up visit
We are keen to continue the relationship we have formed with the council through the
course of the peer challenge.
The LGA corporate peer challenge process includes a follow-up visit. The purpose of
this is to help the council assess the impact of the peer challenge and demonstrate the
progress it has made against the areas of improvement and development identified by
the peer team. It is a lighter-touch version of the original visit and usually involves
13
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk www.local.gov.uk

B20

some, rather than all, members of the original peer team. The timing of the visit is
determined by the council. Our expectation is that it will occur within the next two years.
Next corporate peer challenge
The current LGA sector-led improvement support offer includes an expectation that all
councils will have a corporate peer challenge or finance peer review every four to five
years. It is therefore anticipated that Kingston will commission its next peer challenge
by 2024.

14
18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk www.local.gov.uk

Annex 2
The action plan is to be developed in response to the recommendations of the LGA Corporate Peer Challenge which took place in January 2019.
The activity set out in this action plan will also be either listed as a deliverable in the Corporate Plan and/or will be embedded in directorate/team plans,
and progress will be monitored through those plans.
Peer Review
Recommendation
Capitalise upon the
opportunity that exists
for the council as an
organisation and a
leader of place, involving
establishing a clear
vision and sense of
purpose

Leadership
Owner

Target for
completion

Status

Comments/Milestones

1.

Launch the Corporate Plan which sets the
council’s vision for the borough and for the
council over the next four years together with
our main strategic outcomes and priorities.

Stephen
Evans

March 2019

Complete

The Corporate Plan was launched
with staff at two all staff events on 25
March and published externally in
early April. The vision and outcomes
of the Plan will frame the council’s
engagement and comms output and
future budget decisions.

1.1

Develop directorate service plans, team plans
and individual staff objectives to create a clear
‘golden thread’ throughout the organisation

Stephen
Evans

July 2019

In progress

Standard templates are being
developed so there is consistency in
plans across directorates. Each
council directorate - Corporate &
Commercial; Communities;Growth;
Adult Social Care and Housing; - will
develop a service plan which will be
monitored via directorate senior
management team meetings. AFC's
service planning framework will
reflect the Corporate Plan and be
monitored through the contract
monitoring arrangements'

1.2

Develop a longer-term vision for the borough
and the future of local services, involving
residents, businesses and partners.

Ian Thomas

April 2020

Not started

Scheduled to begin in June.

1.3

Wide public engagement in the future growth
and development of the borough; Phase 1
issues and options consultation.

Naz Hussain

Dec 2019

In progress

The Early Engagement consultation
for the Local Plan (new name for the
Issues and Options) was agreed by
the Council’s Strategic Housing and
Planning Committee on the 28 March
2019. The consultation will launch in
May 2019.

B21

Activity

1

Annex 2
Developing a cross-service engagement model
to ensure a range of services (RBK and VCS)
are brought in to reach diverse audiences.
Initial work on CRE engagement as an
example bringing together Regen, Housing,
Culture, Public Health

Naz Hussain

Dec 2019

In progress

Offer being developed to support
residents ready for ‘launch’ to CRE
residents in May 2019.
Louise Footner, Lou Rawsthorne,
Duncan Brown

1.5

Work with partners to develop a new 10-15
year strategy that ensures the resilience and
vitality of Kingston town centre, to deliver a
more diverse and sustainable economy.

Naz Hussain

October
2019

In progress

Work has commenced with partners
on producing a Reimagined Vision for
Kingston Town Centre. This will be
accompanied by a regeneration
programme, including a timetable for
the delivery of strategic council
owned sites, which will be consulted
on internally from September 2019.

2

Undertake a stakeholder mapping exercise
involving determining who needs to be
engaged and influenced, to what effect and
who is best placed to lead the necessary
engagement.

Stephen
Evans

September
2019

Not started

To commence in May, led by the new
Strategy & Partnerships Manager and
Consultation & Engagement Officer
roles

2.1

Work to strengthen participation in the work of
the local Safer Neighbourhood Board (SNB).

Stephen
Evans

Ongoing

In progress

Working with the SNB chair and the
Police to ensure that all ward panels
and other organisations appointed to
the Board are appropriately
represented, and that all MOPAC
requirements for SNBs are met.

2.2

Key Cultural Strategy aims being delivered
through cultural asset mapping to feed into
Local Plan and ongoing engagement with the
culture and heritage sector.

Stephen
Evans

March 2020

In progress

A Member/Officer oversight board is
in place to guide delivery of the
Culture Strategy, with representation
from across council departments.

Develop a strategy which sets out key
stakeholders, messages and processes for
engagement and help facilitate the co-design
of solutions and opportunities to meet the
challenge.

Sarah Ireland
/ Stephen
Evans

April 2019

In progress

This is being jointly progressed by the
Finance team and the
Communications & Engagement
team.
The MTFS 2019/24 will set out the
financial challenge and form the basis
of the communication and

B22

Seize the place
leadership and
partnership mantle –
undertake stakeholder
mapping, re-build
relationships where
necessary and invest
the required time,
effort and engagement
across the board

1.4

FINANCIAL CHALLENGE
Establish a single, shared 3
understanding about the
scale of the financial
challenges being faced

2

Annex 2
engagement plan across the Council
and for external stakeholders.
Establish
mechanisms that
provide real grip
and rigour around
the delivery of
savings and budget
spend

4

Grip the financial
challenge – create a
comprehensive
Medium Term
Financial Strategy
that reflects a range
of means by which to
address completely
the full extent of the
financial challenges
facing the council

5

Sarah Ireland

Ongoing

In progress

The PMO will work with officers to
ensure robust project/programme
management arrangements are in
place to ensure early indication of any
potential issues and help
leverage/coordinate support from
across the enabling services to tackle
any identified issues.

The in-year financial position will be reported to
Finance and Contracts Committee at every
meeting with details of savings and any
recovery plans. The Strategic Leadership
Team will review the budget monthly.

Sarah Ireland

Ongoing

In progress

Finance & Contracts Committee to
receive a joint performance & finance
report quarterly providing forecast
19/20 outturn and 19/20 savings
delivery. This will provide details of
proposed mitigation for adverse
variances or for savings unlikely to be
delivered on time.

5.1

Risk register, budget monitoring and
performance against corporate plan will be
brought together and presented to strategic
committees, to ensure widespread
understanding and ownership.

Stephen
Evans

Nov 2019
and
ongoing

In progress

The newly established Corporate
Performance and Risk Board is
overseeing the development of the
combined report, that will start being
presented to committees for scrutiny.

5.2

Develop detail within the MTFS which will set
out how the Council will continue to be
financially sustainable including the impact of
the dedicated schools grants funding.

All of the
senior
leadership
team

Ongoing

In progress

The MTFS 2019/24 is in development
and will be reported to Finance and
Contracts Committee on 27th June
2019

6

Instigate an outcomes based approach to
budget setting over the lifetime of the MTFS to
ensure that resources are allocated to the key
outcomes and supports the Corporate Plan
priorities.

Sarah Ireland

December
2019

In progress

The Corporate Plan sets out priorities
for the Council and outcomes to be
achieved. The 20/20 - 23/24 budget
process will be designed to consider
budget options against these

programme which identifies early if there are
delivery issues and provides resources and
support from the enabling services within the
Council to help ensure the project is delivered.
The establishment of a new corporate PMO will
support greater assurance regarding the
delivery of budget savings
The implementation of the reviewed Corporate
Transformation team will ensure that flexible
resources can be quickly secured to provide
additional capacity/specialist skills where
needed.

B23

Ensure the way the
budget is allocated
accurately reflects the
council’s priorities

Implementation of budget readiness

3

Annex 2
priorities to identify how outcomes
may be impacted by changes put
forward. Principles of outcomes
based budgeting and outcomes
based accountability will be used to
shape the budget conversations.
Jointly corporately
developed solutions,
reflecting the complex
and cross cutting
nature both of what
the council exists to
deliver and the way in
operates. Extend
further in order to
maximise the
opportunity for partner
involvement

Complete a cross-cutting review of the
council’s approach to VCS grants and
commissioning.

Sarah Ireland

April 2020

In progress

The review of the VCS
commissioning is now underway and
includes not only commissioning and
grants but also procurement, assets,
financial assistance and sector
support. The review is being carried
out working in partnership with the
VCS to develop a mutually agreed
approach that maximises investment
in the sector.

7.1

Develop a ‘Kingston Community Partnership
Contract’ which articulates the relationship
between RBK and the VCS.

Sarah
Ireland/
Stephen
Evans

April 2020

In progress

The VCS review will help shape a
renewed relationship between RBK
and the VCS and the agreed new
approach will form an important part
of a partnership contract.

7.2

Develop a Commissioning, Procurement and
Contract management framework that ensures
consistent best practice across all council’s
commissioning activity, delivers best value and
improved outcomes for Kingston’s communities
ensuring it maximises support to local business
and enables SMEs to be part of the
commissioning process.

Sarah Ireland

Dec 2019

In progress

A new commissioning framework is
currently being developed, with
exploration as to how we can best
engage with local businesses / VCS
to co-produce. The framework is
anticipated to go to Committee in
September 2019 for approval. The
associated social value policy and
ethical procurement policy will be
complete by December 2019.

7.3

We are working with our strategic partners on
developing a shared vision and priorities for the
partnership and how we use our collective
resources to maximise impact and positive
outcomes for our communities

Stephen
Evans

Sept 2019

In progress

Vision drafted and circulated for
further comments/agreement at next
meeting April 2019. Activity to be
developed - links to 2030 Vision.

7.4

Deliver a number of change programmes
jointly with NHS partners and other

Stephen
Taylor

Ongoing

In progress

The first draft of the H&CP is
currently out for comment, having

B24

7

4

Annex 2
stakeholders that progress integration between
health, social care and housing services which
bring together initiatives that enable our
residents to live independent, healthier lives
specified in the Health and Social Care Plan.
e.g. social prescribing through Connected
Kingston

been led by the CCG. We are
working to give this is a greater
emphasis on social, strength based
responses to health and social care
need both for children and adults.

Develop a joint strength based approach to
primary care networks with local partners
through risk stratification and new ways of
working.

Stephen
Taylor

Ongoing

In progress

Jane Bearman leading

7.6

Work with health partners to produce a Health
& Care Plan for Kingston which will also form
the basis of the joint response to the NHS Long
Term Plan, focusing on opportunities to
improve health, well-being and independence
in Kingston.

Stephen
Evans

Sept 2019

In progress

Health and Care Plan engagement to
be carried out with partners and
communities during May. Plan to be
published in July 2019.

7.7

Engage in the delivery of the Internet of Things
pilot as part of the South London Partnership
work.

Stephen
Evans

April 2022

In progress

Project governance established with
Growth Director engagement in
progress. Funding release
documentation being finalised with
aim to submit by end of April. Pilot
deployment planned for summer
2019 once user case prioritisation
and procurement have been
completed.

8.

Focus more on what we will be spending our
budget on and the services we will provide, as
well as highlighting more local success stories

Stephen
Evans

Ongoing

In progress

Building on the launch of the
Corporate Plan, the council is working
with services to highlight case studies
for communication through internal
and external channels

8.1

Campaign to run throughout the year on where
we spend the budget and the positive
outcomes this achieves linked to Corporate
Plan the themes.

Stephen
Evans

Ongoing

In progress

Plan being developed to go to SLT in
May 2019.

8.2

Develop a new internal communications and
engagement strategy that ensures we have

Stephen
Evans

June 2019

In progress

Plan being developed to go to SLT in
May 2019.

B25

7.5

Move away from a
‘deficits narrative’ to
one that focuses
instead on the
resources still available
within the borough and
the opportunity and
potential that exist

5

Annex 2
consistent shared messages and celebrate
success.

Review of channels will involve staff.
RBK Matters makeover underway.

ORGANISATIONAL LEADERSHIP AND GOVERNANCE
9.

See action 8.2 above

9.1

Improve the culture of the organisation so that
all leaders and managers see effective
communication and engagement as a core part
of their responsibilities

Ian Thomas

Ongoing

In progress

Culture change programme is
underway.
All workstreams of the emerging OD
strategy will be focused towards
embedding the required culture. A
core part of the strategy will be to
build employee voice and
involvement.
Engagement on the strategy content
took place in autumn 2018 and
feedback was shared with SLT in
January 2019. Draft 1 of strategy is
currently in progress, aim to launch
Spring 2019 but some projects
already happening.

Establish greater
collective leadership
of corporate and
strategic issues,
which requires
support and the
creation of the
necessary space and
time

10

The SLT to set time aside to reflect on
corporate and strategic priorities and to design
a performance and accountability frameworks
to ensure improvements are made at the
requisite pace

Ian Thomas

Ongoing

In progress

Risk management framework session
planned for May 2019.
Refreshed corporate performance
management reporting system in
development. First quarterly report
will be considered by SLT in July
Staff performance by outcomes
approach is a priority theme of the
OD strategy.

10.
1

Reshaped Transformation programme formed
around cross cutting themes that supports and
drives the organisation to think innovatively
and identify new solutions to strategic issues.

Sarah Ireland

Ongoing

In progress

Transformation themes are currently
being reviewed and will be presented
at SLT for discussion in April 19.
Work is also underway, as part of the
development of the OD strategy, to
develop an approach to change and
improvement that provides
opportunities for strategic thinking
and fosters a culture of innovation.

B26

Bring about greatly
improved
communication across
the council

6

Annex 2
Develop a joined-up enabling services offer
that provides collaborative and coordinated
corporate support and resource to services,
working collectively to resolve issues.

Sarah
Ireland/
Stephen
Evans

Ongoing

In progress

The enabling services leadership
meeting has been initiated bringing
together all ADs across Communities
and C&C with a key corporate
responsibility. The aim of this group is
to ensure corporate services work
collectively to support and challenge
services and leverage corporate
resources to support the delivery of
strategic priorities. Agreed ways of
working are being developed.

10.
3

Redesigned Corporate Leadership Group with
more focused sessions

Sarah Ireland

Ongoing

In progress

Meeting monthly

Continue the review of
the council’s
Constitution and
governance
arrangements

11

Complete review of procedural rules with
extensive engagement with all members.

Sarah Ireland

September
2019

In progress

The constitutional review phase 1
was completed and
recommendations implemented.
Phase 2 is underway; workshops held
with members have highlighted a
desire for more modern and agile
decision making process and earlier
engagement with residents.
Phase 2 proposals will be taken via
F&C to Full Council in July 2019 and
if supported will be implemented
immediately.
Part of the review is the development
of a ‘Decision Pathway’ document
which succinctly, diagrammatically
explains the processes by which
decisions are made at RBK - It is
intended that this will form part of an
induction pack for officers.

Clarify the confusion
between meetings of
the council held in
public with public
meetings

12

Action as part of the review of the
Constitution and embed in the new
Community Engagement framework

Sarah Ireland

September
2019

In progress

As above - n.b. Communications &
Engagement have been working
closely with Democratic Services to
ensure better co-ordination on
consultations.

Distinguish between

13

Action as part of the review of the

Sarah Ireland

September

In progress

Covered in phase 2 of the constitution

B27

10.
2

7

Annex 2
reporting to committee
for decision- making
purposes and doing so
to keep elected
members informed

Constitution

2019

review.

14

Review the members learning and
development programme

Sarah Ireland

September
2019

In progress

Democratic Services have
implemented specialist training on
chairing meetings and the code of
conduct and more is planned.

Councillors should look
to engage more with
wider local government

15

Councillors to utilise the LGA’s councillor
development support and working with London
Councils.

Cllr Green

Ongoing

In progress

LIZ

Ensure councillors know
who is taking forward
enquires and the
timescales for a
response.

16

Pilot a new casework management system
with councillors which will make it easier to log,
manage and track casework.

Stephen
Evans

Feb 2019

In progress

Casework Management System
launched and pilot underway

16.
1

Customer services team to work closely with all
services to improve the quality and timeliness
of responses to member enquiries and
casework.

Stephen
Evans

Feb 2019

In progress

Councillor Enquiries tracking in place
and support provided to improve
performance.

Conclude
the
organisational
re-structure in as timely
a fashion as possible

17

Review all teams below Corporate Heads of
Service

All SLT

April 2019

In progress

Most teams now under review, some
due to complete in April and others
completion by autumn

Ensuring it fully values,
supports and involves
its people and makes
the best use of what
they have to offer

18

Develop an organisational development strategy
that provides staff with the tools and support to do
their job and transform services

Sarah Ireland

Summer
2019

In progress

Draft 1 being written - aim to launch
spring 19

18.
1

Create a learning and development programme
that nurtures and grows talent and staff
engagement process that is inclusive and
empowering.

Sarah Ireland

Autumn 19

In progress

L&D review completed and paper
with recommendations shared with
AD People and OD.
Recommendations will be actioned

B28

Adapt the training and
development provision
for councillors so they
are clear on how things
should operate

CAPACITY TO DELIVER

8

Annex 2
either in line with the HR restructure
or earlier as appropriate to the action
needed
18.
2

Continue to develop the refreshed Employee Voice
forum as a channel for keeping staff informed
about what’s happening in the Council and for
staff to discuss ideas, issues and possible
solutions.

Sarah Ireland

Summer
2019

In progress

New forum launched, this will be
further embedded by the employee
involvement model proposed as part
of the OD Strategy roll out

Ian Thomas

Ongoing

In progress

Development of a new corporate
PMO provides an opportunity to bring
a more coordinated approach to
change and improvement that will
support improved collective corporate
oversight and provide the opportunity
to prioritise. Initial discussion re PMO
to take place at SLT 09/04

19

Enable widespread
staff involvement and
engagement right
across the council
and tap into the
knowledge of its own
staff and draw in
learning from others
in local government.

20

Develop a new internal communications and
engagement strategy, and review channels
and methods

Stephen
Evans

Ongoing

December
2019

Strategy will be shaped with staff.
The Staff Conversation 23rd April will
be seeking reviews on recent staff
events and other ways of asking staff
for their views on communication,
including a staff survey, will inform
the approach.

20.
1

Agree a mechanism for measuring the
employee experience and engagement and
building opportunities for employee input and
involvement into the way we work.

Sarah Ireland

Spring 2019

In progress

This has been built into the OD
strategy roll out and governance
plans - there will be employee forums
to develop work streams and an
employee voice member on the OD
board and in project groups

20.
2

Develop an approach to innovation that
supports a positive accountability culture
across the organisation by enabling all staff
members to turn ideas into tangible
deliverables with evidenced impact

Sarah Ireland

Ongoing

In progress

The approach to transformation,
change and improvement is being
developed as part of the drafting of
the new OD strategy. Developing
approaches that enable all staff
members to identify future

B29

Prioritise/sequence the
corporate system and
process changes that
the council recognises
are needed and then
inject pace and rigour
at each stage

9

Annex 2
opportunities and solutions to issues
will be central to the new approach.
This will include the refresh of the
Innovation Hubs.
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
Determine what community 21
engagement means in
Kingston and

Stephen
Evans

Ongoing

In progress

Working with services across the
council to shape - next iteration will
be presented to SLT May.

21.
1

Develop an Open Democracy Programme.

Stephen
Evans

Ongoing

In progress

A number of engagement activities
are scheduled to commence in May
and June including participatory
budgeting for parks and green spaces
and citizens assembly on air quality.
Will be using digital platforms and
social media to influence and shape
decision making.

21.
2

Carry out an annual Residents Survey and
publish results on the council’s website.

Stephen
Evans

Annual

In progress

The 2019 survey has been completed
and the report is drafted and will be
published in May 2019.

21.
3

Hold more Let’s Talk... community engagement
themed events at locations across the borough

Stephen
Evans

Ongoing

In progress

Scheduling events for Neighbourhood
Forums in May, Local Plan and Air
Quality in June/July.

21.
4

Update the council website to ensure all public
consultations are easily accessible.

Stephen
Evans

21.

Create a register of local community,

Stephen

the approaches to be
adopted

B30

Continue with the development of a community
engagement strategy which is designed to
articulate the council’s vision for community
engagement under the guidance of the
Community Engagement Committee and
engaging residents at the local level through
Neighbourhood Forums.

Main consultation page has been
updated with a link to our consultation
portal. The consultation portal is
up-to-date and a more formal process
for using it is being worked on.
Liaising with IT/Web Team about
bringing the consultation portal onto
the homepage so it’s more prominent.
In progress

July 2019

Our consultation portal collects

10

Annex 2
5

residential, business and voluntary groups that
will be consulted as of right on matters of local
interest and service provision.

Evans

21.
6

Collaborate with key partners and stakeholders
across the borough to create consistent
messages and support each other to reach
wider and more diverse audiences.

Stephen
Evans

information on anyone completing our
consultations. This needs to be
combined with other lists we hold and
developed into a wider database.
April 2020

In progress

LF, PT and JM leading
Building into Community Engagement
strategy.
Working with Kingston Strategic
Partnership on Communications
Framework for shared messaging.
Collaborating with Kingston University
on Town House as their civic space

B31
11

C1

Appendix C

Council
24 April 2019
Cambridge Road Estate Redevelopment Joint Venture Contract Award
Reference from Finance and Contracts Committee
At its meeting on 18 March 2019 the Finance and Contracts Committee gave
consideration to the mechanisms through which the Council will enter into a joint venture
to deliver the redevelopment of the Cambridge Road Estate.
The Committee was of the view that Countryside Properties (UK) Ltd, previously identified
as the preferred bidder, should now be awarded the contract and a Limited Liability
Partnership (LLP) established with Countryside in order to bring forward the development
of the estate.
The report considered by the Finance and Contracts Committee is set out at Annex 1 to
this report.
Enclosure 2 to Annex 1 includes commercially sensitive elements of the procurement
exercise outcomes which are exempt from disclosure to the public in accordance with the
provisions of paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972.
Enclosure 2 has been circulated as an exempt document separately to each Member.
Recommendations
Council is recommended to agree to:
1.

award the contract to Countryside Properties (UK) Ltd;

2.

the establishment of the Limited Liability Partnership (LLP);

3.

delegate to the Finance and Contracts Committee the authority to: (a) appoint RBK
councillors and officer representatives to the LLP Board and any other related body;
and (b) review and approve LLP Business Plans; and

4.

delegate to the Director of Growth, in consultation with the Director of Corporate
and Commercial, Leaders, relevant Administration Portfolio Holders, and Opposition
Spokespeople, the authority to agree the name of the Joint Venture LLP, negotiate
the final detailed terms of the agreements being entered into, and authority to agree
that the Council enter into the following agreements:










LLP Members’ Agreement
Development Agreement
Completion Agreement
Phase Lease and Works Agreement
CPO Indemnity Agreement
Project Management Agreement
Construction Management Agreement
Corporate Services Agreement
Any ancillary agreements or documents necessary to give effect to the
setting up of the Joint Venture LLP in accordance with the agenda report and
its appendices

Finance & Contracts Committee

C2

Annex 1

18 March 2019
Cambridge Road Estate Redevelopment Joint Venture Contract Award
Joint report by the Director, Growth and the Director, Corporate and Commercial
Relevant Portfolio Holder - Councillor Emily Davey

Purpose
To agree the mechanisms through which the Council enters into a Joint Venture to deliver
the redevelopment of the Cambridge Road Estate.
To set out the arrangements that are being put in place to facilitate the period between
approval of this report and the ballot in the Autumn 2019 through a Completion Agreement.
Recommendations
Full Council is RECOMMENDED to agree:
1.

to award the contract to Countryside Properties (UK) Ltd;

2.

the establishment of the Limited Liability Partnership (LLP);

3.

to delegate to the Finance and Contracts Committee the authority to:
(a) appoint RBK councillors and officer representatives to the LLP Board and any
other related body; and
(b) review and approve LLP Business Plans; and

4.

to delegate to the Director of Growth, in consultation with the Director of Corporate
and Commercial, Leaders, relevant Administration Portfolio Holders, and Opposition
Spokespeople, the authority to agree the name of the Joint Venture LLP, negotiate
the final detailed terms of the agreements being entered into, and authority to agree
that the Council enter into the following agreements:
▪ LLP Members’ Agreement
▪ Development Agreement
▪ Completion Agreement
▪ Phase Lease and Works Agreement
▪ CPO Indemnity Agreement
▪ Project Management Agreement
▪ Construction Management Agreement
▪ Corporate Services Agreement
▪ Any ancillary agreements or documents necessary to give effect to the setting
up of the Joint Venture LLP in accordance with this report and its appendices

Benefits to the Community:
The CRE redevelopment proposal provides a once in a generation opportunity to deliver
new modern homes for our current residents as well as deliver much needed additional
homes. The development will also deliver new community facilities, improved public
spaces, parks and accessibility, and maximise opportunities for social connections to
reduce isolation and promote inclusion. The redevelopment also seeks to design out crime,
improve health outcomes, and use an environmentally sustainable approach to
development.

Key Points

C3

A.

Cambridge Road Estate (CRE) is a council estate of over 830 homes in Norbiton
Ward, built in the late 1960s and early 1970s and now in need of major investment.
Over the last two years the council has been preparing the ground for a
comprehensive phased regeneration of the area. This included undertaking a
procurement process to secure a suitably qualified and experienced developer partner
to enter into a 50:50 joint venture with the council to deliver a comprehensive
redevelopment including new homes and community facilities that meet modern
standards.

B.

It is a key priority of the council to ensure that residents are at the heart of the
regeneration plans.Once proposals for the new homes including detailed designs and
the new landlord offer have been developed and consulted upon with residents, the
council intends to undertake a voluntary ballot. Details of the arrangements for the
ballot are the subject of a separate report to Strategic Housing and Planning
Committee on 19 March 2019.

C.

The Corporate Plan identifies the regeneration of CRE as a key priority and provision
has been made within the Housing Revenue Account Budget 2019/20 to cover the
costs associated with the early stages of the project.
● Corporate Plan Priority: Work with local residents to bring forward the
redevelopment of the Cambridge Road Estate, increasing the number of social
rented homes and providing new replacement homes, open spaces and new
community facilities for existing residents.

D.

Countryside Properties (UK) Ltd have been appointed as the preferred partner. The
proposal is to establish a Limited Liability Partnership (LLP) with Countryside
Properties to bring forward the development of the Cambridge Road Estate. This
partnership is governed through a series of legal and commercial agreements which
set out the relationship and duties of both the parties and how they will deliver the
scheme.

E.

A primary driver for the project is to improve the quality of housing for current
residents. The estate suffers from significant condition issues but also fundamental
design flaws that would make it impossible to deliver modern day ‘secure by design’
including designing out crime and improving accessibility standards through
refurbishment due, to layout and changes of levels across the site. New build
accommodation would also allow tenants and leaseholders to benefit from higher
standards in terms of better insulated homes, increased accessibility and connectivity.

F.

Due to the relatively low density of the estate and its proximity to transport routes and
amenities, redevelopment of the estate is also an opportunity to build a significant
number of additional homes including additional social rented homes. This is an
important factor as the council is committed to providing much needed new housing
and is required by central government and the GLA to significantly increase housing of
all tenures within the borough.

G.

The brief for the project stipulated that redevelopment proposals should provide, as a
minimum, 767 social rented homes and 100 shared equity or shared ownership homes
aimed at existing owner occupiers on the estate. However, the council also has an
aspiration to ensure that 50% of the homes built should be an affordable tenure.

H.

C4
The redevelopment will also allow the council to deliver a step change in the quality of
the public spaces, parks, play spaces and community spaces available to CRE
residents. In addition, the council’s brief for the project includes the requirement that it
delivers new opportunities for employment, training, health and well-being for residents
and economic opportunities for local businesses.

I.

The project is supported by the GLA who have provided funding to the council as part
of its Housing Zone programme and its Building Council Homes for Londoners
programme in the form of grant and loans to bring forward the purchase of leasehold
property. This funding is linked to the council achieving key milestones in terms of the
procurement of a JV partner, submissions of planning application and commencement
of delivery on site in early 2021.

J.

CRE is owned within the Council’s Housing Revenue Account (HRA). The HRA will
contribute CRE land to enable the regeneration. In return the HRA will receive new
homes and community facilities. Additionally any profit generated will be distributed
back to the HRA ensuring future sustainability.

Decision History
1.

In March 2017 the Growth Committee approved a recommendation to progress the
regeneration of CRE by way of a 50:50 joint venture with a development partner. This
was the recommended route as it had the advantages of allowing the council equal
control over the development going forward and an appropriate balance of risk and
reward. It also enabled the council to access skills and experience in regeneration that
it did not have in-house. The committee resolved to procure a JV partner and gave
delegated authority to the Director of Growth (then Place) to undertake the required JV
partner procurement process, select a preferred bidder and award the contract, in
consultation with the Deputy Leader, Portfolio and Shadow Portfolio holders and ward
councillors. The committee also resolved that in doing so the Director should continue
to engage residents fully in the process.

2.

In July 2017 the Growth Committee approved the Acquisitions Strategy authorising
officers to start a process of buying back leasehold property early, funded by a GLA
loan, to ensure that the council would be able to offer up vacant blocks in line with a
future phasing strategy. It also approved in principle the use of compulsory purchase
powers to facilitate vacant possession if necessary.

3.

In March 2018 the Housing Sub-Committee approved decant policies for both council
tenants and Leaseholders and Freeholders affected by re-development. This was
done to formalise the council’s commitment to a right to return for current council
secure tenants and to provide opportunities for owner occupiers to move into a new
home on the estate.

4.

In October 2018 the Director of Growth in consultation with the Deputy Leader,
Portfolio and Shadow Portfolio holders and ward councillors used her delegated
authority to select a preferred bidder. In November 2018 the Strategic Housing &
Planning Committee noted the decision to select Countryside Properties (UK) Ltd as
the preferred bidder as part of the Joint Venture partner procurement exercise for
Cambridge Road Estate.

Council commitments to residents
5.

C5

In support of this estate regeneration project the council has set out the processes it
will put in place to protect the position of existing residents in two ‘decant’ policies one for secure council tenants and one applicable to leaseholders and freeholders.
These policies were adopted by the council’s Housing Sub Committee in March 2018.
Some of the key aspects are listed below:
▪ Secure council tenants will have a ‘right to return” to a new home in the
redevelopment. Alternatively if tenants prefer to leave CRE they will have the
option to move to a council home off the estate if one is available that meets the
needs of their household. 
▪ Secure tenants will also be entitled to compensation in acknowledgement of the
inconvenience and disruption in having to move. The statutory Home Loss
payment for council tenants is currently £6,300 (this is set by the government) and
tenants will also be reimbursed for the costs of moving. In addition they will be
provided with assistance with the move itself, with additional support offered to
vulnerable residents or those with a disability.
▪ In order to minimise disruption the council is aiming to ensure that a majority of
residents only have to move once within the Borough
▪ Leaseholders and freeholders affected by the redevelopment, and living on the
estate, will be offered the full market value for their homes plus 10% home loss in
line with the compensation code.
▪ In acknowledgement that the new flats will be more expensive than the current
flats and houses, the council is offering shared equity and shared ownership
options to owner occupiers to make staying more affordable if they wish

6.

In addition, residents have access to independent advice and information to help make
informed decisions and will be able to get involved in the design of the new homes and
the estate as a whole and all residents who stay on the estate will benefit from good
quality, energy efficient homes, which are well-designed, adaptable and tenure blind.

7.
Secure tenants who currently live on CRE and who choose to remain on the estate
following the regeneration, will pay an equivalent rent for an equivalent property.
Procurement Outcomes
8.

The Council is required by UK Law to procure projects of this value and complexity in
line with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (PCR) and advertise the opportunity in
the Official Journal of the European Union (OJEU). The Council’s advisors (Shoosmith
for legal advice and Savills for development advice) and in house Commissioning
Team advised that the Competitive Dialogue process was the most appropriate form of
procurement process under these regulations. 

9.

Competitive Dialogue is a multi-staged procurement process and within two of the
stages bidders meet with the evaluation panel to dialogue proposals such that bidders
can better understand the council’s requirements and refine their proposals. It also
provides the council the opportunity to develop its requirements after gaining feedback
from the available market. 

10.

C6
The dialogue and evaluation process involved officers from all of the relevant
departments of the council including urban design, finance, development control,
housing, economic development and commissioning and the panel also included
external advisors. 

11.

Importantly, and in accordance with good practice for the procurement of such
regeneration projects, it also directly involved residents. Three members of the
Resident Steering Group (RSG) sat on the dialogue and evaluation panel, scoring the
Design, Delivery, Stakeholder Engagement and Social Value aspects of the proposals
alongside officers and consultants. Participants and officers found residents’ insight
invaluable and their participation demonstrated the Council’s commitment to fully
engage residents in the procurement process.

12.

In addition, during the ISFT (Invitation to submit final tender) stage participants were
required to exhibit their initial proposals at a “Bidders Day” on the estate where all
residents were able to come and view the three proposed schemes and give feedback.
During the same period participants were given the opportunity to present their draft
proposals to elected Members at an all Members briefing event at the Guildhall.

13.

Further commercially sensitive elements of the procurement outcomes are set out in
EXEMPT Annexes 2 and 3 of the report (circulated separately to Members).

14.

Key features of the Countryside offer are summarised as follows:
● experienced proposed JV Board Directors, and confidence / experience around
Joint Ventures and the practicalities of organising Board business.
● meaningful involvement of residents in the JV through a Community Board.
● an approach to the legal documentation that meets the Council’s required risk
position and flexibility around potential abortive costs in case of ballot.
● detailed consideration of residents’ interests.
● a detailed, practical and reasoned masterplan, with detailed approach to phasing
the development that considered key drivers including; re-housing, minimising
disruption and funding deadlines.
● a considered sales strategy with a clear focus and commitment to prioritise the
local market.
● a strong offer around local labour, local suppliers, and apprenticeships.
● a commitment to reduce the impact on the environment through the management
of pollution risk and reduction of energy, water, waste and associated
greenhouse gas emissions
● a strong financial offer.

15.

Following an extensive process, Countryside Properties (UK) were identified as the
highest scoring participant. As identified through and supported by the evaluation and
scoring of Countryside’s final tender, the panel felt that they demonstrated that they
were a credible partner. Their proposals were deemed to meet, and in some
instances, exceed, the Council’s requirements to be able to deliver at pace whilst still
engaging residents, mitigating the impact of construction and producing deliverable
apprenticeship and employment.

16.

The Council’s development advisor Savills assessed the bids from prospective Joint
Venture partners and recommended that, as the participant with the highest score in
the Final Tender evaluation, Countryside Properties (UK) Ltd should be selected as
the Preferred Bidder with whom the Council should enter into final negotiations on the
JV contract documentation.

17.

C7
Following the Preferred Bidder stage Savills now recommend that Countryside
Properties (UK) Ltd are awarded the Contract.

Joint Venture Proposal
Rationale
18.

The Council is proposing to deliver the regeneration of Cambridge Road Estate
through a joint venture structure. A Joint Venture is where two parties come together
to undertake a property development. Decision making, risk, and reward are shared.
Local authority property joint ventures with private sector partners might typically entail
the council investing land and capital as equity, with a partner bringing matched
investment. Both parties are responsible for delivering the development, which would
be managed through a Board structure, and profits are distributed in proportion to
investment stake. Joint Ventures are a common way for a public landowner to bring
finance and expertise to a development, and are popular with developers as it
provides access to land and a way of sharing risk.

19.

Following a detailed analysis of the options against the key objectives of the council,
including the commissioning of an independent review and detailed discussions with
the GLA, the joint venture approach was considered the most beneficial. For the
Council it provides the following key benefits:
▪

An experienced Joint Venture partner will bring skills, expertise, capacity and
funding to deliver what is a major regeneration project with a gross development
value of £800m.

▪

Risk and reward will be shared on a 50:50 basis.

▪

The right level of control will be exercised by the Council to ensure that its
objectives for CRE are achieved.

▪

The long term opportunity, jointly incentivises both partners to work closely
throughout the pre-development and delivery phase to achieve their objectives.

Limited Liability Partnership (LLP)
20.

A Limited Liability Partnership (LLP) with Countryside Properties will be established to
bring forward the development of the CRE. The LLP Members Agreement is the formal
contract setting out the relationship between the Council and Countryside Properties.
In that document the objectives of the LLP joint venture are set out as follows:
▪ a comprehensive regeneration of the Cambridge Road Estate that prioritises the
needs of the local community
▪ a transformed neighbourhood with a public realm led, high quality living
environment and high quality architecture and urban design
▪ new homes for all Cambridge Road secure tenants and resident leaseholders who
wish to remain living at Cambridge Road
▪ a guaranteed minimum of 767 Social Rented homes assuming full delivery of the
Scheme with an aspiration to achieve 900 social homes
▪ appropriate returns to the LLP members as set out in the LLP Business Plan

LLP Project Documents
21.

22.

C8

There are a number of key project documents that will govern the working of the LLP:
▪

LLP Members’ Agreement – the main agreement between the Council and
Countryside Properties (UK) Ltd setting out the objectives of the LLP, how the
business of the joint venture will be managed and arrangements for profit
distribution,settling disputes, default events and termination of the joint venture.

▪

Loan Notes – these are the financial instruments that set out the arrangements
for equity and debt investment into the joint venture to be made by both parties.
Subject to the terms of the LLP Members Agreement they also provide for the
timing of the repayment of the investment.

▪

Development Agreement – this agreement will set out how and when land will
be transferred (as leasehold) from the Council to the joint venture; this
agreement is between the Council as landowner and the LLP and places
obligations on the LLP to undertake the development in accordance with the
Council’s requirements.

▪

Lease and Works agreement– the Phase Lease is the lease that the LLP will
be granted by the council for the purposes of executing the development and out
of which leases will be granted to occupiers following completion of the works.
Note the freehold remains with the Council. A Works Agreement will also be
entered into for each phase setting out the works obligations to be complied with
by the LLP in delivering the development of a phase.

▪

Business Plan – the suite of documents that contain the financial model, funding
strategy and key delivery strategies

▪

CPO Indemnity Agreement - this agreement sets out the strategy for land
acquisitions and confirms that the LLP indemnifies the Council for acquisition and
any CPO costs once the relevant GLA funding has been expended.

Appendix 1 (part 1) (attached at Annex 1 to the report) sets out Shoosmiths’ detailed
summaries of each of the project documents and risk mitigation measures. In addition
to these documents, it is proposed that a series of services will be supplied by
Countryside Properties (UK) Ltd. These will be provided, for agreed fee rates, via the
following service agreements:
▪

Project Management Agreement – the delivery of the development requires
close and careful management of each stage of the process from design and
planning through to construction and handover of the completed homes; this is a
core function of commercial developer and a key reason for entering into a
partnership

▪

Construction Management Agreement – it is proposed that Countryside will
procure all of the individual works packages required to deliver the construction
of the new development; the management of this process and the fees are
captured in this agreement

▪

▪

C9
Corporate Services Agreement – it is proposed that Countryside provide
company secretary, business support and accountancy and audit services
through this agreement.

Sales and Marketing Agreement - Countryside will provide services to the LLP
relating to the marketing and disposal of private for sale properties within the new
development.

Completion Agreement
23.

The Council has resolved to undertake a voluntary ballot of residents, the
establishment of the joint venture can only go ahead in the event of a successful
outcome of the ballot. Rather than entering into the main LLP agreements (set out
above) on a conditional basis, it is proposed that the Council and Countryside
Properties (UK) Ltd enter into a Completion Agreement, the purpose of which is to
govern the relationship between the parties in the run up to the ballot.

24.

The Completion Agreement was not contemplated at the start of the procurement
process. The requirement to have this agreement was introduced in the latter stages
of the dialogue process with the three final bidders when it was determined that a
residential ballot would be carried out.

25.

Before the ballot is held in Autumn 2019, the Council and Countryside will be required
to commit funds and undertake significant preparatory work, particularly on master
planning and creating the landlord offer to put to residents as part of the ballot
process.

26.

It is proposed that both parties enter into the Completion Agreement to regulate their
responsibilities, set out the various work streams and treatment of pre-ballot costs in
the period before the ballot is concluded. Without it, neither party has any control or
certainty over the progress of the project.

27.

The key condition in the Completion Agreement is the ballot condition. A positive
ballot would satisfy this condition after which both parties would be contractually
obliged to establish the LLP and move forward the project.

28.

The costs associated with the Completion Agreement are to be borne by Countryside
Properties Ltd and in the event of a positive ballot and incorporation of the LLP, these
will form part of the project costs. In the event of the ballot condition not being
satisfied and the project not proceeding, the Council and Countryside will share the
costs associated with the Completion Agreement on a 50: 50 basis. Costs are
currently estimated at up to £3m, depending on the date the ballot condition is
satisfied. Costs incurred will be primarily related to architectural and engagement fees
associated with the development of a masterplan and planning submission.
Business Plan

29.

The LLP Board will prepare a Main Business Plan for each annual accounting period.
This will be agreed and adopted in line with the provisions of the LLP Members
Agreement. The approval of the business plan will be a ‘reserved matter’ for the
relevant Council Committee at the appropriate time throughout the lifetime of the
development. The business plan will be recommended for adoption by the LLP Board
but approval will be reserved for the Council and Countryside.

30.

C10
For each phase of the development the LLP Board will also procure the preparation of a
Phase Business Plan. The approval of these phase business plans follows the same
format as for the main business plan. Following approval, a planning application will be
prepared for that phase, and if necessary amendments to the phase business plan will be
made following the grant of planning permission and approval sought.

31.

The Main  Business Plan and Phase Business Plans, will be subject to Finance and
Contracts Committee approval at the appropriate time throughout the lifetime of the
development.

32.

An outline LLP Business Plan template has been prepared with Countryside as part of
the preferred bidder stage. The template business plan covers the following:
1) Financial model
2) Funding strategy
3) Governance & management
4) Outline development proposals
5) Site assembly strategy
6) Planning strategy
7) Engagement strategy
8) Sales & marketing strategy
9) Construction procurement
10) Programme
11) Risk register

Governance
(a) LLP Board
33.

In the event of a positive ballot (see pre-ballot arrangements below) the LLP Board
would start to operate formally as set out in the LLP Members Agreement. The Board is
constituted for the purpose of delivering the agreed business plan. Board members are
responsible for monitoring the project, agreeing strategy and making decisions within
the parameters of the LLP Members Agreement. It is assumed that the LLP Board will
meet bi-monthly.

34.

In terms of representation on the board, the proposal is for there to be four Council
representatives and four Countryside representatives. Each organisation have one
vote.

35.

The working assumption is that the Countryside nominees are: Graham Cherry, CEO of
their Partnerships South Division; Andrew Cornelius, Finance Director; Mike
Woolliscroft, Managing Director of their Partnerships South Division and Malcolm Wood
their Project Director.

36.

There is a requirement that Council’s representatives have “appropriate levels of
experience” and that at least one has a financial background. At this stage the working
assumption is that the Council representatives are, the Portfolio Holder for Housing
including CRE Regeneration and one other elected member, the Council’s Director of
Growth and Director of Corporate & Commercial.

37.

To ensure full transparency and accountability, the LLP will appoint a Joint Venture
Supervisor, who would have a duty of care to the LLP. The role would be to provide
independent advice on the business plan assumptions particularly the construction cost
elements. It provides the LLP with the ability to seek the latest market intelligence and
also provide assurances to both parties through independent advice.

38.

It is proposed that the role of Chairperson will alternate annually between the Council
and Countryside representatives.

39.

C11
The LLP Board will routinely receive reports on a range of project matters with a
standing agenda likely to be as follows:

▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪

40.

(b)

approval of minutes of the previous meeting
review of actions from the previous meeting
urgent matters
Masterplan update
individual phase updates
land acquisition
housing and estate management issues
resident engagement
social value
Business plan
statutory matters raised by the Company Secretary

The LLP Board will approve the initial business plan and periodic updates, the overall
masterplan, and proposals for each phase of development including the scope, design
and viability of each phase.
Executive Group

41.

An Executive Group consisting of council officers and senior Countryside staff with day
to day responsibility for the project, will report to the LLP Board. The Group will meet
monthly to coordinate all of the workstreams, monitor progress and agree reporting to
the LLP Board.

42.

The Executive Group will consist of representatives from the development project
management team, regeneration, housing and sales and marketing teams. The group
will prepare reports for decision or review by the LLP Board. It will also prepare reports
for the Community Board, attend that Board and gather feedback. It will be required to
report back to the LLP Board on feedback received from the Community Board.

(c) Community Board
43.

As part of the procurement process the Council asked bidders to put forward their
proposal for “meaningful resident involvement”. The proposal is that a Community
Board is formed. The purpose of the board is to be the representative body for the
community, ensuring that their views are taken into account at every opportunity. It is
proposed that there will be a direct link between the LLP Board and the Community
Board with formal reporting between the two groups.

44.

The Community Board will be made up of the Chairs of the three existing community
groups, CRERA, CREST and One Norbiton and at least 4 other resident members and
other stakeholders if required. It is also proposed that the three Norbiton Ward
Councillors sit on the Community Board. It is recognised that the current Residents
Steering Group will to some extent evolve into the Community Board as it consists of
the same groups presently. The Resident Steering Group has been consulted on the
proposal.

(d) Assurances back to the Council
45.

C12

In addition to the governance arrangements set out above, the Council retains
approvals rights for the following matters:
● as landowner, to approve the outline masterplan and phase by phase master
plans prior to submission for planning
● Finance and Contracts Committee to approve the LLP Main Business Plan and
phase business plans
● The Council will retain independent advisors outside the LLP governance to
provide additional assurance and due diligence in approving matters such the
Business Plan
● Regular reports on the performance of the LLP will be reported back to the
Council at appropriate points throughout the development
● The LLP will appoint an independent joint venture supervisor who would have a
duty of care to the LLP. The primary role would be to provide independent advice
on the business plan assumptions particularly the construction cost elements.
The role provides assurances to both parties through independent advice.

Financial Implications
LLP Funding
46.

The project will be funded and approved phase by phase on a 50:50 basis. At the
beginning of each development phase:
●

The Council will transfer the relevant land into the LLP. The value of the land will
be matched by Countryside with an equivalent cash facility which will be drawn
down by the LLP as required.

●

The Council’s land and Countryside’s matched funding is termed the ‘equity’
investment into the LLP

●

GLA loan and grant funding will be drawn down as outlined in paragraphs 53 &
54 below

●

The LLP will then establish how much funding is needed to build out the
development phase in total, which includes planning and architects fees,
construction, interest on loans during the development period, sales and
marketing costs and project management and development profit.

●

The ‘equity’ investment will not cover the total cost of developing each phase.
The LLP will need to secure debt financing to fund the balance. This debt
financing or borrowing can come from either the Council, Countryside or a third
party e.g. a bank.

●

The LLP will be expected (by its lenders) to keep the ratio of debt to equity at
50:50

●

If the value of the council’s land and Countryside’s cash (equity) does not equal
50% of the cost of developing the phase out, the LLP will have to inject additional
money (top up equity) this is likely to come from general fund borrowing under
the council’s prudential borrowing powers

●

The Council will buy back the social rented homes from the LLP, funded by the
HRA.

C13

47.

Upon the successful delivery of a phase of the development the LLP Agreement sets
out the following distribution of receipts held by the LLP. Receipts will be paid out in
the following priority order:
▪

Debt financing will be repaid to the provider

▪

Any additional equity investment required from the Council and Countryside will
be paid back

▪

Payment to Council for land value and payment to Countryside for matched cash
investment

▪

Profit paid to both parties

▪ GLA loan funding will be repaid to the council within 20 business days of the council’s
obligation to repay such amount to the GLA.

Loan Notes Structure
48.

The land and cash investments being made by the Council and Countryside into the
LLP are termed ‘loan note’ funding within the legal agreements. The following loan
notes are expected to be required to complete the development of a phase:
A – the value of the Council’s land holding being transferred into the LLP
B – Countryside’s match of Loan Note A
C – the Council’s share (50%) of the amount required above the value of loan notes
A and B in order to secure appropriate debt
D – Countryside’s share (50%) of the amount required above the value of loan notes
A and B in order to secure appropriate debt
E – Where the amount attributable to the value of the land (Loan Note A) is in excess
of 50% of the required equity for that phase of the development
GLA Loan Note - GLA housing zone loan for the buyback of leasehold property

49.

A more detailed description of the loan note structure and funding requirements can be
found at Appendix 2 in the exempt Annex 2 of the report (circulated separately).

C14
Fixed assumptions, viability and stress testing

50.

A project of this scale and complexity requires an adequate ‘margin’ or ‘buffer’ to allow
for potential adverse changes to scheme assumptions. The Council has been working
with Savills and Countryside to ‘stress test’ the assumptions within the financial model
to ensure that the current ‘margin’ of residual land value and profit after paying for the
social homes is sufficiently robust to withstand potential changes. These could include
changes in build costs, sales value, scheme density and interest rates. Further
information on viability and stress tests on the margins are contained in Appendix 3 in
the exempt A
 nnex 2 of this report (circulated separately to Members).

51.

A financial model has been prepared that sets out the key financial assumptions and
projections for funding, costs and returns associated with each proposed phase of the
development. The model is based on the assumptions set out by the council as part of
the procurement exercise and the Countryside bid. It should be noted that the ballot,
masterplanning and formal planning process are yet to be undertaken so the financial
model and the financial performance of the each phase of development is subject to
on-going change; this will be managed through the LLP Board business planning
process.

52.

At this stage of the project it is not possible to fix many of the costs and incomes
associated with the scheme. For example, the eventual sales values are not known,
and the costs of constructing new homes cannot easily be fixed so far in advance
without the LLP paying a very high premium for such long-term certainty. In these
circumstances it is common to fix fees and margins by reference to percentages. As
part of the competition process Countryside proposed such margins and fees in their
bid. These have been assessed as part of the overall financial assessment that was
undertaken to select a preferred bidder.

GLA
53.

As part of its Housing Zone programme the GLA has provided a £26.6m loan to the
Council to facilitate the buy back of leasehold property on the estate and a further
allocation of grant of c £20m towards the construction of new council homes.

54.

Subsequently the GLA have confirmed that it has allocated £67.8m of Building Council
Homes for Londoners (BCHfL) grant funding to Kingston to use to deliver social rented
homes across the borough, including CRE. Part of this fund can therefore be used to
facilitate more council social rented homes as part of the proposals.

55.

These significant funds facilitate the development but come with obligations to hit
GLA targets in terms of planning submission, start on site and practical completions.
For further details see Appendix 2 in exempt A
 nnex 2 of the report.

Housing Revenue Account
56.

Local Council’s are statutorily required to maintain a ring - fenced Housing Revenue
Account. The ring-fence is controlled by Schedule 4 of the Local Government Housing
Act 1989 and is still in place. Its purpose is to ensure that council taxpayers do not
subsidise services specifically for the benefit of tenants and that rent is not used to
subsidise functions which are for the benefit of the wider local community.

57.

The Council maintains a 30 year HRA Business Plan, which contains details of all
income and expenditure relating the delivery of HRA services.

58.

C15
The HRA Business Plan confirms whether the HRA can afford to deliver proposed new
programmes and plans, whilst continuing to manage, maintain and invest in its existing
homes, and meet its financial commitments e.g. loan repayments.

59.

CRE is accounted for within the HRA. The HRA will provide the land to enable the
regeneration and in return, will receive a land value payment and 50% of any profit
generated by the LLP, minus purchase costs of the new homes.

60.

The financial case for the CRE regeneration proposal (767 new social rented homes)
has been modelled against the most recent HRA 30 year Business Plan, dated
January 2019. This demonstrates that the regeneration proposal is affordable.  The
detailed Business Plan extract is set out in Appendix 4 in exempt A
 nnex 2 of the
report (circulated separately).

General Fund Account
61.

It is currently assumed that the general fund will provide any additional equity
investment above land value which is required by the LLP as outlined in para 46
above. This is likely to be funded by borrowing under the Council’s prudential
borrowing powers. To ensure that the impact on the general fund of any such
investment is minimised and that the risk associated with this investment is matched
by a commensurate reward, the Council has required an annual interest payment on
that investment at a margin above the cost of borrowing.

Resource Implications
62.

Financial implications are set out above and further commercially confidential material
is set out in the exempt papers.

Legal Implications
63.

The suite of legal documentation on this project will comprise the following:
1.

Escrow/Completion Agreement
● As set out above, this agreement will set out the roles and responsibilities of the
council and the preferred bidder in preparing for and administering the ballot and
also the treatment of costs for the pre- resident ballot activities.

2.

LLP Agreement
● This agreement governs the relationship between the council and its JV partner
during the course of the project.
● It will set out the objectives of the LLP, the processes for decision making and
governance and mechanisms to deal with profit distribution, default, deadlock
and termination of the LLP.

3.

Development Agreement

C16

● This agreement sets out obligations of the LLP in carrying out the development
and the conditions precedent which need to be satisfied for each phase of the
development before a Works Agreement is entered into and a Lease granted by
the council to the LLP
● The conditions precedent to be satisfied are:
(1) Planning Condition - the LLP obtaining satisfactory planning consent. Note
the council in its capacity as landowner has the right to approved the planning
application in advance of it being submitted, in addition to the control it has as a
member of the LLP and as planning authority
(2) Site Assembly Condition – the acquisition of all third party land interests to
enable the works to be delivered
(3) Business Plan Condition – finalising the programme of works and the
business plan for that phase which will include the split of tenure on a phase
and set out the investment of both the council and the JV partner
(4) Funding Condition – the LLP securing sufficient funding to enable the
relevant phase and any associated infrastructure to be delivered
● The Council has the ability to terminate the Development Agreement and
therefore prevent the LLP from drawing down any further phases where LLP in
breach of its obligations.
4.

Works Agreement
● This agreement sets out the detailed works obligations for the delivery of a
phase.
● There will be a separate Works Agreement and Lease for each phase and it is
proposed that a separate entity (“ DevCo ”) will be incorporated by the LLP for
each phase to enter into the Work Agreement and Lease with the Council.
● The Council has the ability to terminate the Works Agreement in the event of
material breach of the works obligations or insolvency of DevCo

5.

Lease
● The Lease granted to the DevCo will be for a period of c260 years.
● The tenant will be prohibited from dealing with the land other than disposing of
residential units using a standard plot lease or disposing of council rent or shared
equity/ownership units back to the Council

6.

CPO Indemnity Agreement
● This agreement sets out the strategy for acquiring third party land interests
required to deliver the project, either by private treaty negotiations or using the
council’s compulsory purchase powers.
● Once the £26.6m GLA loan funding has been expended, the costs of acquiring
the third party land interests will be borne by the LLP.

7.

Ancillary Documents
● There will be a number of ancillary documents such as a Project Management
Agreement, Construction Management Agreement, Sales and Marketing
Agreement and Corporate Administration Services Agreement, intra-group loan
agreement and loan notes which will need to be entered into during the course of
the course of the project.

64.

C17
The creation of the LLP as the joint venture vehicle between the council and the
successful bidder requires council approval. This follows the changes made to the
Constitution in the decision of Council on the 17 October 2017 which requires Council
approval of the establishment of trading companies.

65.

With regards to potential Compulsory Purchase Orders (CPOs) the Council approved,
on the 18 July 2017, the recommendation of the Growth Committee dated the 27 July
2017. The Committee had recommended that the council proceed “in principle” with
making CPOs on property interests identified within the proposed regeneration site
that have not been acquired through negotiation. However, notwithstanding this
individual CPOs will still need to go to Full Council for a decision.

66.

The decision to enter into the Completion Agreement will constitute a decision to
formally award the contract to Countryside Properties (UK) as the Completion
Agreement contains a contractual obligation on the council and the JV partner to enter
into the legal documentation summarised above, subject only to a positive ballot result
being achieved.

67.

Prior to entering into the Completion Agreement, the council is obliged to send out
notice of its intention to award the contract to the unsuccessful participants in the
procurement process and thereafter observe a mandatory 10 day standstill period

68.

The process for selection of the development partner has been undertaken in
accordance with advice from the council’s external professional advisors and in house
Commissioning Team and in compliance with the requirements of the Public Contracts
Regulations 2015 (PCR).

Risk Assessment
69.

The key risks of the proposals are set out below.
RISK

MITIGATING ACTIONS

COMMUNITY
Lack of resident support for
scheme proposals. Failure
to win mandate for the
proposed regeneration
scheme through a ballot
leading to project
delay/failure and abortive
costs

New Shadow Community Board representing a wider group of
Cambridge Road Estate (CRE) residents to be established prior
to ballot to a provide meaningful resident input and ownership in
the evolving regeneration proposals.
The council continue to work positively and cooperatively with all
residents and resident representative groups across the estate
and evolve a high quality resident offer
New Strategic Communications Manager and team being
recruited that will be dedicated to the programme to build
capacity and confidence with CRE residents.
External matched resource from the council partner in place to
assist with the comprehensive engagement strategy.

C18
Ensure Ballot resources in place.
An independent body appointed which is the Electoral Reform
Services to independently oversee and administer the ballot
An Independent Tenants & Leaseholders Body appointed to
provide a service for all residents on the estate who are seeking
independent professional legal and financial advice.
Working with the police, local schools, health, community,
voluntary and faith sectors in ensuring we reach all part of the
community

Adverse publicity leading to
project delays

New Strategic Communications Manager being recruited will be
dedicated to the programme to ensure factual information is
explained clearly to all residents, stakeholders and wider media
channels.

GOVERNANCE
Ineffective governance
structure with inability to
function successfully leading
to lack of control and
involvement in the running of
the Limited Liability
Partnership (LLP).

Governance structure in place with appropriate decisions made
through Project Board and Project Team.
Governance, short and long-term, has been reviewed and built
into the draft LLP Business Plan with a Joint Venture (JV)
Shadow Board structure to help mobilise and prepare for the LLP
being formed.
Main Business Plan and phase by phase business plans are
reserved matter back to the Council through Finance and
Contracts Committee
Shadow Community Board (pre-LLP) to be established as part of
the project and Community Board (post JV)

RESOURCES
Insufficient RBK staffing
resources leading to lack of
control and involvement in
the running of the CRE
Limited Liability Partnership
(LLP).

Regular review at Project Board and by the CRE project team.
Ongoing dialogue and input from key representatives of each
workstream from the services. Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
resources staff/budgets being flexed to meet needs of the
regeneration programme. Three year staffing resource budget
agreed and key appointments being made.

C19
FUNDING & FINANCIAL
Council equity contribution
needs to be affordable to the
Council and to the LLP. The
interest rate is variable up to
the point of providing this
loan on a phase by phase
basis.

Modelling based on outline business model projects that the the
current interest rate is sustainable. On-going review as part of
the JV Business Planning process.

Council unable to afford
purchase of affordable
housing from the LLP or fund
a phase

HRA modelling against current HRA Business Plan. Baseline
cost for buying social housing numbers projects that purchase is
affordable, based on current assumptions. On-going review as
part of the Business Planning process..

HRA Land value and profits
do not materialise in line with
current assumptions

Viability of each phase to be reviewed, land value and returns
confirmed phase by phase. Full review of HRA Business Plan at
each viability stage.

Change to Government
Policy - HRA

Council committed to purchase 767 social rent homes. Review of
HRA Business Plan if change to Government Policy

Review of current HRA
services may increase
investment required in
current HRA homes/services

Ensure sufficient reserve balances to mitigate against unknowns.

Council’s equity investment
into the LLP is made at risk

The JV business plan will demonstrate viability for the phase
prior to the request for additional equity investment. As such, the
Council, where possible will be able to understand risks across
each phase and minimise the level of risk. The return of equity
‘top ups’ to both the Council and Countryside are prioritised
behind the repayment of senior debt.

The Council’s additional
equity exposure becomes
disproportionally high as a
result of delay to phase or
slow sales

The Council will manage its peak equity position, and through the
JV business plan and reduce its exposure by delaying or
redesigning phases to reduce equity requirements.

Council obligations to fund
CRE impact on ability to fund
other HRA priorities.

Affordability subject to on-going review as part of the HRA
business planning process.

Cost and availability of third
party debt renders project
unviable.

Modelling based on outline business model projects that the the
current interest rate is sustainable. On-going review as part of
the Business Planning process.

C20
ECONOMIC
Market down turn in
conditions leading to
depressed property prices
and land value

The viability of the JV project business plan has financial buffers
in place to anticipate market down or ‘shocks’.
JV legal documentation allows to account for market downturns
and options for improving viability in adverse market conditions
that may include constructions cost, revenue and phasing
assumptions to be reviewed regularly and reported to Project
Board and the JV Board on regular basis.
HRA business plan reviewed regularly to ensure robustness to
deliver scheme outcomes where possible.

Shortfall in labour supply or
increased cost due to
departure for the European
Union

Council will work closely with its development partner to ensure
labour supply and supply chains are protected as much as
possible for each phase of delivery

LEGAL
Judicial Challenge to
decisions made by the
council

Council has appointed expert legal advice to ensure statutory
compliance with decision is complied with.

Litigation against the council
to leading delay and
additional scheme costs

Council has appointed expert legal advice to ensure it minimises

Litigation against the
development partner leading
to reputational damage to
the council

Legal documents protect the council's interest and has the ability
vary the conditions of the agreement

LAND & PLANNING
Decant programme not
deliverable or delayed
leading to project delay and
increased cost

Resident decant policy offer has been agreed and approved.
RBK Housing team establishing a strategy to prioritise rehousing,
freeing up homes on the estate and bringing forward other sites
to create new homes for early moves for affected residents .
Land Acquisition & Rehousing Strategy will form part of the LLP
Business Plan.

Leaseholder/freeholder
acquisition programme not
deliverable leading to project
delay and increased cost

Early negotiations for acquisition by private treaty.
Council to make a CPO as method of last resort to acquire all
necessary interests.

C21
Proactive monitoring and possible acquisition of potential
relocation opportunities e.g. for commercial tenants. CPO
strategy and specialist legal/property resources in place.
Land Acquisition & Rehousing Strategy will form part of the LLP
Business Plan.
Planning consent not
secured

A programme of comprehensive and extensive community
engagement through the masterplanning, pre-application and
planning process over a period of time.
Commission highly reputable scheme architects to help
condesign the new estate with an excellent track record in
building sustainable communities
Extensive stakeholder engagement to address concerns
throughout scheme to ensure redesign where achievable across
the new proposed development to inform preparation of planning
application.
To ensure a planning policy compliant scheme and continue to
work in close partnership with the Mayor of London and officers
at the GLA.

CPO not secured

Clear Statement of Reasons will be developed.
Specialist legal and property consultancy services have been
procured.
Early engagement with all owners of land and interests has
started and the Resident Offer agreed and approved.
Land Acquisition & Rehousing Strategy will form part of the LLP
Business Plan.

Unknown site conditions
(utilities, ground conditions,
fire) leading to project delay
and increased cost

Initial services information obtained. Preliminary surveys
undertaken prior to start of procurement have not indicated any
issue. Full survey work to be commissioned as part of
masterplanning.
All survey information to be factored into on-going cost planning
and the Business Planning process.
The viability of the JV project business plan has financial buffers
in place to anticipate anomalies and unforeseen costs as much
as possible
Fire Risk Assessment and expert advisor through the
masterplanning of the proposals.

70.

Risks associated with the various agreements are set out in Shoosmiths’ report on
Risks and Mitigation in  Appendix 1 (part 1) attached at Annex 1 of this report.

C22

Consultations
71.

There was a significant programme of consultation up to the point of selecting a
preferred bidder as reported to the Strategic Housing and Planning committee in
November 2018. Residents were informed of the selection of the preferred bidder by
letter in November 2018 and the council has continued to support and report to the
Resident Steering Group (RSG). RSG were consulted on the proposals for the
Community Board as part of the governance arrangements set out above and also
engagement activities planned between now and the ballot.

72.

In addition, a series of workshops aimed at building residents’ skills and confidence in
dealing with architects and understanding plans has commenced, a visit, open to all
residents, to a precedent redevelopment scheme is taking place and more are
planned.

73.

Once the LLP members agreement is approved and subject only to ballot, a
substantial masterplanning consultation programme with Countryside can start on site
as set out under “timescales” below.

Timescale
74.

The GLA funding requires the Council to achieve key milestones in accordance to the
funding they are providing to facilitate the development. The indicative timescales for
the next steps are set out below in line with this:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Finance & Contracts Committee – Mon 18th March 2019
Full Council - 24th April 2019
Masterplanning and consultation, Spring 2019 onwards
Ballot period – Autumn 2019
LLP incorporated (subject to ballot) – Feb 2020
Planning application submitted (subject to ballot) – Feb 2020
Start on site Phase One Feb 2021

Equalities Analysis
75.

Equality consideration has been taken account of in this process and will continue to
be embedded within this project to comply with the public sector equality duty and
appropriate impact assessment will be undertaken.

Health Implications
76.

In assessing the health implications of this proposal public health officers have used
several indicators starting with the central government national standard measure
known as the “Indices of Multiple Deprivation” (IMD).

77.

Indicators of the current health picture can be found in the statistics for the
geographical area, known as Lower Super Output Area (LSOA) which covers the
Cambridge Road Estate.

78.

This shows that currently CRE is within the most disadvantaged LSOA in the RB
Kingston with an Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) rank of 4,711 which is in the 20%
most deprived in England.

79.

C23
Within this, of the seven key deprivation indicators used as part of the IMD, residents
on CRE suffer most in term of “barriers to housing and services”, the prevalence of
“low income” households and high levels of “child poverty”.

80.

Therefore proposals to increase the amount of housing here, in particular social
rented, should have a positive impact on the access to housing and be affordable to
those on low income.

81.

A second measure of the current health status of the estate in comparison to the rest
of the borough is the life expectancy statistics. These show that residents in Norbiton
ward have the lowest life expectancy in the borough. For instance male life expectancy
is 77.9 years for men in Norbiton ward but 84.2 for those in Coombe Vale and for
women life expectancy is 80.9 years in Norbiton ward and 88.1 in Alexandra ward.

82.

There is a link between housing and health and well being and therefore the quality of
new housing is welcomed as it should play a part in tackling this inequality - for
example, better quality housing decreases the risk of illness from damp, mould, and
cold, exacerbated by outdated design.

83.

Overcrowding in housing is another factor that can lead to negative health outcomes.
Our data indicates that 18.3% of total households in the CRE are overcrowded due to
the lack of available property to transfer to. Once new properties become available for
tenants they will be allocated to housing that fits their household need when they
move, in accordance with the council’s decant policy, and so overcrowding will reduce.

84.

Officers are conscious that the stress involved in moving or the contemplation of a
future move may exacerbate mental health issues suffered by some residents on the
estate. As a consequence all agencies will be alerted to the proposals in advance in
order to be able to support residents in this situation.

85.

Overall in the long term the proposals are expected to be positive for health in terms of
the improved accessibility for those with mobility issues, warm and secure homes and
renewed open spaces to encourage a more active lifestyle and increased social
connections. In addition the new employment opportunities and improved community
facilities should help to counter the mental health issues suffered by some residents.

86.

A Health Impact Assessment (HIA) will be considered as part of the planning process.
The aim is to identify the main impacts and prompt discussion and inform plans about
the best ways of dealing with them to maximise the benefits and avoid any potential
adverse impacts.

Road Network Implications
87.

These will be examined as part of the planning application process.

Environmental & Air Quality Implications
88.

These will be examined as part of the planning application process

89.

The detailed proposals will be developed as part of the masterplanning process but as
a indication, as part of their submission Countryside have set out the measures that
they assume will be integral to the scheme. For instance as part of their phasing and
logistics proposals they set out a range of measures to mitigate air quality threats
including careful phasing to reduce delivery journeys and enforcement of protocols to
ensure engines are turned off while waiting. All site plant will be compliant with

C24
Emission London Guidance and use of on site generators with CO2 emissions will be
minimised. A detailed construction management plan will be submitted as part of the
planning application.

90.

Countryside propose to champion an exemplary sustainable development which
prioritises affordable energy for residents. Homes will be designed to benefit from
natural light and useful solar gains but avoid overheating. The proposals include a site
wide heat network ( CHP ) to be delivered in the first phase, supplying heating and hot
water and Countryside have been mindful of ensuring that this is has capacity and
flexibility to future proof it as technology and standards evolve.

91.

Sustainable urban drainage systems will be implemented throughout the landscape for
the effective management of surface water and permeable paving, green roofs and
soft landscaping will form a central part of the design.

Background papers - none
Author of the report: Lyndsey Gamble, Head of Investment, Risk & Commercial Finance Resources, Shared Finance Service email: lyndsey.gamble@sutton.gov.uk tel 020 8770 5358

C25

Annex 1

Part 1 - Appendix 1
Summary of Project Documents and Risk Mitigation Measures
Cambridge Road Estate
LEGAL REPORT
1.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATION

1.1

This Report sets out a summary of the key terms in each of the main Project Documents (being the
Completion Agreement, the LLP Agreement, the Development Agreement, the Works Agreement, the
Phase Lease and the CPO Indemnity Agreement) to be entered into to deliver the regeneration of
Cambridge Road Estate (the “CRE Project”). It also includes a summary of the potential risks to Royal
Borough of Kingston (the “council”) in entering into the joint venture with Countryside Properties (UK)
Limited (“CPUK” also referred to as the “SIP” in this report) and the measures included in the legal
documents to mitigate such risks.

1.2

The risk profile in the negotiated Project Agreements reflects the 50:50 risk and reward nature of the
joint venture. The legal documents contain a number of controls and mitigation measures aimed at
ensuring the council remains an equal partner in the delivery of the CRE Project and protections for the
council against default by the joint venture partner.

1.3

Whilst this Report summarised the key provisions in each of the documents, this is a very complex long
term regeneration project and it is important that the Council and their internal legal and project delivery
teams familiarise themselves with the terms of the documents and the Council’s role and obligations as
a 50:50 partner in the joint venture.

1.4

We can confirm that the procurement process has been carried out in compliance with the Public
Contracts Regulations 2015 and that since appointment of the CPUK no substantive amendments have
been made to the suite of legal documents issued to bidders at the start of the dialogue process.

1.5

The Project Documents are now in substantially agreed form and subject to finalising the documents,
we recommend that the council enters into the legal documents on the terms negotiated and agreed
with CPUK as part of the procurement process.

2.

COMPLETION AGREEMENT

2.1

Overview
The Completion Agreement governs the relationship between the council and CPUK in the run up to
the voluntary resident ballot which is to be held in Autumn 2019 (the “Ballot”). Each party is required to
commit funds and undertake significant preparatory work, particularly on master planning and creating
the offer to put to residents as part of the Ballot process.
The Completion Agreement creates a contractual joint venture between both parties, which regulates
their responsibilities and set out the various work streams in the period before the Ballot is concluded. It
additionally sets out how the parties will deal with a situation where the Ballot is unsuccessful or where
it is subject to a judicial review challenge.

C26
2.2

Summary of key terms
2.2.1

General
a) The Completion Agreement is drafted in such a way that it does not pre-empt the ballot
decision, or treat it as a “done deal”. Consequently, following a successful ballot both parties
are contractually obliged (but cannot be compelled) to form the limited liability partnership
(being the agreed joint venture vehicle) and enter into the main project documents (being
the LLP Agreement and Development Agreement).
b) CPUK is incentivised not to renege on its commitment to enter the project agreements as a
failure will result in it paying the council’s pre-ballot costs.

2.2.2

Obligations and decision making
a) Between the date of entry of the Completion Agreement and the date of a ballot both the
council and CPUK are obliged to progress the work streams set out in Schedule 1 of the
Completion Agreement and to be responsible for their share of an agreed Budget, set out in
Schedule 2.
b) The relationship between the parties, and oversight of their obligations prior to the ballot, is
managed by two bodies, referred to as a “Shadow Board” and an “Executive Team”. These
titles have no legal significance, and simply differentiate between the two groups of council
and CPUK representatives responsible for oversight of the CRE Project. The Completion
Agreement provides the structure for meetings and outlines responsibilities of the bodies.

2.2.3

The Shadow Board
a) The Shadow Board contains the senior representatives of the council and CPUK. Each party
may appoint and remove up to four representatives. It is proposed that the Shadow Board
will meet monthly, and the role of Chair will alternate between Council and CPUK
representatives.
b) Decisions require unanimity, so where, for example, the body of council representatives
cannot agree on a resolution, it shall be deemed to have voted against the resolution.
c) The Shadow Board will make recommendations in respect of strategy, major expenditure
and matters relating to the ballot (although at all times it remains subject to the final approval
of the council) and whether to seek a re-ballot. Recommendations of the Shadow Board will
not bind the council.
d) The Shadow Board will additionally supervise the preparation of the development
masterplan and the Business Plan.
e) In the event of an unsuccessful ballot a party cannot be compelled to follow a particular
course of action with which it disagrees. This ensures that the Council does not lose control
of the ballot process.

2.2.4

The Executive Team

C27

a) Each party may appoint and remove up to five Representatives to the Executive Team. The
governance of the Executive Team is otherwise very similar to that of the Shadow Board.
b) The principal responsibility of the Executive Team shall be for overseeing and directing the
work streams. The Executive Team will manage delivery of the CRE Project so that both
parties can enter into the principal project agreements following a successful ballot.
2.3

Risk mitigation
We have highlighted below potential risks to the council in entering into the Completion Agreement and
the measures that have been included to mitigate such risks.
Risk

Mitigation Measures in Legal Documents

Finance
1

The council cannot provide
funds to progress the work
streams

● All costs are pre-agreed in the budget set out in the
Completion Agreement.
● Council is only solely responsible for the Ballot
administration costs
● All Joint Costs (primarily master planning costs) are
initially paid by CPUK (cl 17.3) with the council only
having to contribute its 50% share in the event that the
Ballot Condition is not satisfied (cl 17.5).

Ballot
2

Council loses control of the The council is the final arbiter of the ballot question that is
Ballot process
put to residents, the residents who are to be balloted and
the majority required for there to be a successful Ballot.

3

Unsuccessful
resident
Ballot means there is no
mandate for the CRE
Project to proceed

● An unsuccessful Ballot means that the CRE Project will
not proceed.
● It is open to both the council and CPUK, acting in good
faith, to agree on appropriate next steps in the event of
an unsuccessful Ballot (cl 5.1). Neither party can be
compelled to take any course of action.

Governance
4

The Council is giving up
control to a new legal entity

● In the period prior to the Ballot the council is not a
member of a joint venture LLP. The Completion
Agreement simply governs the relationship between
the council and CPUK and provides for the actions that
both parties must take (Sch 1) to proceed with the
Ballot and to progress the CRE Project (to ensure that
it does not fall behind its timetable) in the period prior
to the Ballot.
● Decisions that need to be taken by the council and
CPUK (in relation to matters connected to the CRE
Project) are not delegated by them. However, both
parties appoint representatives to a Shadow Board and
an Executive Team (these titles have no legal
significance),
and
these
bodies
make
recommendations to the council and CPUK about
decisions they must take, and work to progress the
CRE Project.

5

Not
all
council
representatives vote the
same way on a decision
requiring Shadow Board or
Executive Team approval.

C28

● The resolution will not be passed. There must be
unanimous approval of all council representatives
present.
● For a board meeting to be quorate there shall be
present at least 2 council representatives and at least
2 CPUK representatives. At any quorate meeting, the
council representatives present shall have one
collective vote and the CPUK representatives present
shall have one collective vote. Where either the council
representatives or the CPUK representatives (as
applicable) cannot decide how to exercise their
collective vote, they shall be deemed to have voted
against the resolution. (Para 2.3.2, part 1 of Sch 3).
The same provisions apply for the Executive Team.

Completion
6

The Ballot Condition is
satisfied but CPUK does
not enter into the LLP
Agreement

● To ensure that the Ballot is not treated as a foregone
conclusion, the Completion Agreement cannot
automatically require both parties to enter into the LLP
Agreement.
● The Completion Agreement contractually obliges
CPUK to enter into various agreed forms of CRE
Project documents (LLP Agreement, Development
Agreement, Works Agreement, Phase Lease and CPO
Indemnity Agreement) which are appended to the
Completion Agreement, following successful Ballot.
● If CPUK does not form the LLP and enter into the LLP
Agreement, the council is not required to pay its share
of any Joint Costs (cl 17.6), and the council can
additionally bring a claim for damages against CPUK if
it fails to fulfil a contractual obligation (cl 17.7).

3.

LLP/MEMBERS’ AGREEMENT

3.1

Overview

C29

The relationship between the council and CPUK and the management and financing of the joint venture
vehicle responsible for developing the Cambridge Road Estate is governed by the LLP Agreement.
The LLP Agreement outlines the council’s funding obligations (which are matched by CPUK) and the
council’s involvement in decision making. No decision can be taken by the LLP joint venture vehicle if it
is not supported by the council or (in the case of LLP Board decisions) by each council appointed
representative. The LLP Agreement additionally sets out the council’s right to acquire social rent
housing and governs what happens on the termination of the LLP, including the apportionment of costs
and distributions to members.
The management and decision making provisions that apply to the LLP apply equally to any
subsidiaries of the LLP. These may include development companies (or limited liability partnerships)
(“Devcos”) which the council and CPUK may decide that the LLP should incorporate to develop
individual phases of the CRE Project.
3.2

Summary of Key Terms
3.2.1

3.2.2

3.2.3

Management
a)

Decisions relating to the LLP are reserved for either the members (the Council and the SIP
(a subsidiary of CPUK)) or the LLP Board, pursuant to the Delegation Policy.

b)

The council and the SIP appoint and remove an equal number of Representatives on the
LLP Board.

c)

The Council Representatives on the LLP Board have one collective vote (as do the SIP
Representatives). All decisions require unanimity, so where, for example, the bloc of
Council Representatives cannot agree on a resolution, it is deemed to have voted against
the resolution. This mechanism prevents the council having to do anything with which any
of its Representatives is not in favour.

d)

The method of dealing with conflicts of interest between either of the members and the LLP
are addressed in the LLP Agreement.

e)

The members must review the Business Plans quarterly, and update the LLP Business
Plan for each accounting period. A failure to re-approve the LLP Business Plan is a
Deadlock Event and could lead to termination of the joint venture.

Finance
a)

The council and the CPUK will each provide loan note funding. With minimal exceptions,
loan funding provided by the council (which may take the form of land contributions or cash)
is matched by an equal cash contribution from the SIP.

b)

The LLP may take senior debt from any of the council, CPUK or a third party. The council
alone has the right to match the senior debt terms offered by any other person, provided
that the council participated in the original fund raising process.

Social rent housing
The council will have an obligation to acquire all replacement social rent housing (minimum
767) and shared equity units (minimum 100) being delivered as part of the CRE project. The

C30

council will have an option to acquire additional social rent and shared equity/ownership
dwellings at a price calculated in accordance with an agreed valuation methodology.
3.2.4

3.2.5

Transfer of Member Interest
a)

For 15 years from the date of the LLP Agreement, the SIP may only transfer its Member
Interest to another member of the CPUK Group. After that date the council has a
pre-emptive right to acquire the SIP Member Interest should the SIP decide to sell.

b)

The same transfer restrictions apply to the council in respect of its Member Interest. A
transfer to another Public Sector Body is its only option in the 15 years from the date of the
LLP Agreement.

Default and termination
a)

b)

Termination of the joint venture may occur:
(i)

if a Default Event is incapable of remedy or not be waived by the non-defaulting
party. It is most likely that a Default Event will arise if a member is in Material
Breach of a Project Agreement. The SIP may also be in default if it suffers from
solvency issues. If disagreements or disputes between members are unresolved,
they are classed as Deadlock Events;

(ii)

on the insolvency of the LLP; or

(iii)

on agreement to that effect between the members.

On a “Termination Event” the council alone can decide whether to acquire the SIP’s
Member Interest or to wind-up the LLP.
a)

b)

c)

If neither party is responsible for the Termination Event, the SIP will receive
100% of either:
i

its Member Interest Value (should the council decide to acquire the SIP
Member Interest); or

ii

the amount that it would otherwise receive on a winding-up. The council
would receive 100% of its winding-up entitlement.

If the council is responsible for a Default Event leading to termination, the SIP will
receive 110% of either:
i

its Member Interest Value (should the council decide to acquire the SIP
Member Interest); or

ii

the amount that it would otherwise receive on a winding-up. The council
would receive 90% of its winding-up entitlement.

In the event of termination due to a SIP Default Event:
i

the Council would pay 90% of the SIP’s Member Interest Value (should
the council decide to acquire the SIP Member Interest); or

ii

the Council would receive 110% of the amount otherwise due to it on a
winding-up. The SIP would receive 90% of its entitlement on a
winding-up.

3.3

C31

Risk Mitigation

We have highlighted below potential risks to the council by entering into the LLP Agreement and the
measures that have been included to mitigate such risks.
Risk

Mitigation Measures in Legal Documents

Financial Risk
1

The council cannot provide senior
debt on terms acceptable to the
LLP.

Third Party senior debt will be obtained (cl 6.6)

2

Diminution in covenant strength of SIP has chance to remedy/find replacement
Guarantor of SIP with Net Asset Guarantor (cl 24), failing which it becomes a
Value of SIP/SIP Guarantor falling Termination Event and winding up of the LLP (cl 27)
below an agreed threshold

3

Matching Loan Notes drawn down ● SIP to make a “quasi-interest” payment to council
at different times (i.e. SIP’s equity
if full amount of a matching B Loan is not made
investment in the LLP not taking
paid within 18 months of Council’s A Loan land
place at same time as leasehold
contribution.
interest is granted to LLP)
● Interest payable on C and D Loan Notes should
protect against risk of earlier payment by one
party.
● Failure to provide equity will lead to Termination
Event (cl 27)

4

Parties cannot agree on a cap on
non-property funding. Council
could be required to pay more
than it can afford

Funding requirements are agreed by the council and
the SIP as part of the Business Planning. The council
therefore has a right of veto over funding
requirements/requests.

5

Repayment of GLA Funding and
breach of council obligations in
Borough Intervention Agreement
dated 9 October 2017 and the
Affordable
Housing
Grant
Agreement dated 22 November
2017

● Although the GLA Funding Agreements cannot be
novated to the LLP, the documents require the
LLP to observe and perform the delivery
obligations in the funding agreements
● Specific loan notes will be issued in respect of the
GLA Funding drawn down by the council and
invested in the CRE Project with such loan notes
to be repaid in accordance with the GLA loan
repayment dates.

Voting and decision taking
6

Council does not have sufficient ● Decisions of Devcos (which are LLPs) are taken
personnel to staff boards/board
by its Members (i.e. LLP and Nominee) – this
committees of all LLP Parties.
reduces the resourcing requirement.
● Board quorum set at two council and two SIP
Representatives (cl 9.3.1) and at quorate meeting
all Council Reps and all SIP Reps have a single
collective vote.

7

Not all Council Representatives
vote the same way on a decision
requiring LLP board approval.

● The resolution will not be passed. There must be
unanimous approval of all Council Representatives
present.
● For a board meeting to be quorate there shall be
present at least two Council Representatives and
at least two SIP Representatives. At any quorate

C32

meeting, the Council Representatives present shall
have one collective vote and the SIP
Representatives present shall have one collective
vote. Where either the Council Representatives or
the SIP Representatives (as applicable) cannot
decide how to exercise their collective vote, they
shall be deemed to have voted against the
resolution. (Clause 9.3)
8

The SIP can control the decisions
and operation of the LLP.

● The LLP Agreement sets out the Objectives of the
LLP
● Decisions of the LLP Board must be passed
unanimously (see point 6 above) as should
decisions of the LLP Members (as there are only
two Members). Neither party has control
● Please refer to the appendix to this Report below for
a summary of the proposed Delegation Policy,
which sets out the level of authority required for
particular decisions.

9

Inability of LLP to take decisions
whilst one or other of SIP and
council
are
disenfranchised
pursuant to a Default Event (cl
24.3).

Whilst SIP or council are disenfranchised, the
business of the LLP continues (cl 10 and cl 14). The
Representatives of the disenfranchised Member, or
the Member itself, is entitled to attend and speak at
relevant meetings, but does not count in the quorum
or have the right to vote

Social Rent Housing
10

Council cannot afford to purchase Council will be able to use profits distributed to it by
the Replacement Social Rent the LLP to part fund the purchase (cl 21). However,
Housing.
LLP Agreement precludes the sale of Replacement
Social Rent Housing to anyone other than the council.

11

Council cannot afford to purchase
the additional social rent housing.

Council to have an option it can exercise to acquire
additional social rent housing. If it cannot exercise in
agreed time period, additional social rent housing
could be sold to a third party.

Transfer of Member Interest
12

SIP wants to exit the LLP and
transfer its Member Interest in
LLP.

●Unless an intra-group transfer, SIP can only transfer
its Member Interest in limited circumstances without
council having a right of pre-emption (cl 22 and 23).
●Any transferee must continue to provide a SIP
Guarantor (on terms acceptable to the council),
unless the council agrees otherwise (cl 22.2/3).

Default, deadlock and rights of termination
13

SIP is in material breach of its This is a SIP Default Event and whilst outstanding the
obligations
under
the
LLP SIP is disenfranchised (cl 24). A failure to remedy can
Agreement.
lead to termination of the LLP (cl 27).

14

SIP/SIP Guarantor is/are in This is a SIP Default Event and whilst outstanding the
financial difficulties and/or subject SIP is disenfranchised (cl 24). A failure to remedy can
to potential insolvency.
lead to termination of the LLP (cl 27).

15

C33

The Members or Representatives ● This is a Deadlock Matter, and if not resolved in
are unable to unanimously agree
accordance with the prescribed procedure
on matters relating to the LLP.
(resolution by senior officers of the Members; expert
determination; mediation) will become a Deadlock
Event. A Deadlock Event leads to termination of the
LLP (cl 25).
● Certain matters shall not constitute Deadlock
Matters and remain to be resolved between the
Members.

16

Council is the Defaulting Member Council can acquire the SIP’s Member Interest or
in relation to an unremedied allow the LLP to be wound-up. However, in the case
Default Event.
of an acquisition of the SIP’s Member Interest the
council must pay 110% of the SIP’s Member Interest
Value, and in the case of a winding-up, the council
only receives 90% of the value that it would otherwise
receive on a winding-up (including repayment of its
Loan Notes). (Cl 27 and Sch 6).

17

LLP (or other LLP Party) is wound All obligations of the contractor to be satisfied (cl
up before a Project Agreement (to 27.2.4)
which it is a party and) relating to
Developed
Land has been
completed.

18

The LLP (or other LLP Party) is The council has the right to purchase the legal and/or
wound up whilst still holding Land equitable title to any such Land Interest at market
Interests.
value, and the right to extinguish any leasehold
interest granted to such party (where the council owns
the freehold interest).

4.

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AND WORKS AGREEMENT

4.1

Overview
The Development Agreement sets out the conditions precedent (planning, site assembly, business
plan/viability and funding) which need to be satisfied in respect of each phase prior to the council
allowing drawdown of the leasehold interest (Phase Lease). The Development Agreement sets out in
the process for satisfying the conditions precedent and provides that once satisfied a Phase Lease and
Works Agreement is to be entered into for each phase.
The Works Agreement sets out the delivery/works obligations for the LLP or Devco for delivering a
phase. These include delivering the scheme in accordance with the usual development obligations
(compliance with planning and all other relevant regulations, insurance etc.) and there are additional
development obligations in relation to the Affordable Dwellings (the social rent dwellings, Shared
Ownership and Shared Equity). There is provision for the council to provide to the LLP a specification
in respect of these units.

4.2

Summary of Key Terms
4.3.1

4.3.2

4.3.3

4.3.4

C34

Conditions Precedent (clauses 2 to 6)
a)

The Development Agreement sets out the mechanisms and timescales for satisfying the
conditions precedent referred to above in accordance. There will be draft Development
and Phasing Programme attached to the Development Agreement which sets out the
proposed timetable for satisfying the conditions precedent on each of the phase and this
timetable will be updated as the project progresses.

b)

The majority of the conditions precedent are to be satisfied by the LLP, however the onus
is on the council to satisfy the site assembly condition as the owner of the site. The
Development Agreement requires the council to consider the use of its powers of
appropriation under s122 of the Local Government Act 1972 and also its powers of
compulsory purchase in order to acquire the outstanding third party land interest on the
site. The council’s statutory discretion is not fettered however and the council is not
compelled to use any powers.

c)

The planning condition requires the LLP to seek the approval of the council (in its capacity
as landowner) to the planning application prior to it being submitted to the planning
authority for approval.

Viability (clause 3.1)
a)

A financial appraisal is to be appended to the Development Agreement and this financial
appraisal will be updated continuously throughout the course of the CRE Project as part of
the business planning process.

b)

At the start of each phase the parties will carry out a calculation of the residual land value
to determine whether delivery of that phase is viable and produces a positive land value.
In the event that there is a negative land value the parties will explore various mitigation
measures (including reducing the level of profit margin, increasing the size of a phase,
apportioning site wide infrastructure costs across all of the phases) to try to improve the
position, however the parties are not obliged to take forward a phase which is not
commercially viable.

Phase Value (clause 11)
a)

Following satisfaction of the conditions precedent a further residual land valuation will be
carried out to set the value of the council’s land interest and therefore the equity match
contribution which the joint venture partner has to make.

b)

In the event that there is a negative residual land value the parties will work together to
improve the position by considering the various mitigation measures described at
paragraph 4.3.2(b) above. Neither party is obliged to proceed with a phase where there
is a negative land value and the development is not therefore commercially viable. If the
LLP decides to proceed with an unviable phase, any negative balance on the land value
will be rolled forward to the next phase of development.

Completion (clause 12)
a)

Once the conditions precedent have all been satisfied and the phase value determined the
council will grant the Phase Lease and enter into a Works Agreement for the phase being
delivered.

b)

4.3.5

4.3.6

4.3.7

4.3.8

C35

The ancillary agreements setting out the services to be performed by CPUK will be
entered into at the same time as the Works Agreement and the Phase Lease. These
agreements comprise the Construction Management Agreement, Project Management
Agreement and Sales and Marketing Agreement.

Pre-Commencement Obligations (clause 13)
a)

Prior to commencement of works the LLP must satisfy various Development Conditions
including all necessary consents required to undertake the works and providing warranties
from the professional team engaged to carry out the works in favour of the council.

b)

Clause 13 also permits the LLP to access the site under licence to carry out site
investigations prior to commencement of works

Social rent dwellings (Schedule 6)
a)

The Development Agreement confirms that the council will acquire all of the 767 social
rent dwellings and 100 shares equity units which the LLP is compelled to deliver in enable
the council to accommodate existing residents on the estate and to comply with the
decant policy.

b)

The council also has an option to acquire any additional social rent or shared ownership or
shared equity units which are delivered on a particular phase.

Dispute Resolution and mitigation (clause 21)
a)

The Development Agreement contains dispute resolution mechanisms which require the
parties to work together to produce mitigation plans where for example there has been a
failure to satisfy one of the conditions precedent.

b)

All disputes are to be referred to the senior officers of both parties in an attempt to resolve
them prior to an independent 3rd party expert being appointed.

Termination (clause 26)
a)

The council will be permitted to terminate the Development Agreement where an Event of
Default (insolvency, material breach, failure to comply with milestones, breach of Phase
Lease or Works Agreement or a Termination Event occurring under the LLP Agreement)
occurs, subject to allowing any funder to step in and remedy the default.

b)

Where a Phase Lease and Works Agreement have already been granted on a particular
phase and works are proceeding with no breaches of the obligations in those documents,
the LLP shall continue to deliver that phase and perform its obligations.

c)

On termination of the Development Agreement the LLP is obliged to assign any
appointments, copyright and plans to the council and to assist the council with exercising
any step in rights in the construction documents.

4.3.9 Works Agreement
a)

Schedule 1 of the Works Agreement contains a number of standard works obligations to
be performed by the LLP in delivering the works on a phase. These includes carrying out
the works in accordance with all statutory consents and requirements, ensuring the site is
properly secured and putting in place all necessary insurances during the carrying out of
the works.

b)

4.3

C36

Schedule 2 of the Works Agreement contains additional obligations to be performed by
the LLP in delivery the “Affordable Dwellings” (social rent, shared equity and shared
ownership units being acquired by the council). The council is afforded more oversight
and control over the units being delivered than it is with the private for sale dwellings and
the units must be delivered in accordance with a specification (Affordable Finishes
Schedule) to be provided by the Council and agreed with the LLP.

Risk Mitigation
We have highlighted below potential risks to the council by entering into the Development Agreement
and the Works Agreement and the measures that have been included to mitigate such risks.

Risk

Mitigation Measures in Legal Documents

Planning/Delivery Risk
1

LLP does not diligently proceed with ● No land interest is granted until all of the
satisfying the Conditions Precedent
Conditions Precedent are satisfied for a
(Planning, Site Assembly, Business Plan
Phase
and Funding Condition) to drawdown of a ● There are longstop dates for satisfaction of
Works Agreement/Lease for each Phase
each of the Conditions Precedent

2

Planning application does not accord with The council has the right to approve the
the agreed scheme / council’s objectives planning application in its capacity as
landowner, in addition to the control it has as a
member of the LLP and as planning authority

3

Material breach of obligations by LLP or
Insolvency

Council has the ability to terminate the
Development Agreement and therefore the
ability of the LLP to draw down any further
Phases.
If a Phase has already been
drawdown and is being delivered pursuant to a
Works Agreement, that Phase will continue.

4

Following completion of a Works
Agreement for a particular Phase the LLP
fails to deliver the works within the
timetable prescribed

Council has the right to terminate the Works
Agreement (subject to funder step in) in the
event of material breach of the detailed works
obligations or insolvency of the LLP.

5

Standard of social rent dwellings is In addition to the detailed works obligations in
inferior to the remainder of the scheme
the Works Agreement, there are additional
requirements in relation to the social rent
dwellings which prevent the LLP from making
any variations to the unit specification and
requiring the units to be signed off by a jointly
appointed Supervising Officer, with further
representatives from the council being entitled
to attend any inspections.

5.

CPO Indemnity Agreement

5.1

Overview

C37

This agreement sets out the strategy for acquiring third party land interests required to deliver the
project, either by private treaty negotiations or using the council’s compulsory purchase powers.
Once the £26.6m GLA loan funding has been expended, the costs of acquiring the third party land
interests will be borne by the LLP.
5.2

Summary of Key Terms
5.2.1 Vacant Possession (clause 3)
The council is to work with the LLP to procure the acquisition of outstanding 3rd party land
interests on the site in accordance with an acquisition strategy to be agreed between the
parties.
5.2.2 Costs and indemnity

5.3

a)

The CPO Indemnity Agreement provides that once the £26.6m of GLA loan has been
expended in acquiring 3rd party land interests, the LLP will indemnify the council in respect
of all costs relating to acquisition of land by private treaty or CPO.

b)

The council is to keep the LLP regularly updated on the forecasted costs (costs demand to
be submitted on a monthly basis) and not to acquire by private treaty or CPO any land
interests without first obtaining the approval of the LLP.

Risk Mitigation
We have highlighted below potential risks to the council by entering into the CPO Indemnity Agreement
and the measures that have been included to mitigate such risks.
Risk

Mitigation
Measures
Documents

in

Legal

Planning/Delivery Risk
1

LLP does not diligently proceed with ● No land interest is granted until all of
satisfying the Conditions Precedent
the
Conditions
Precedent
are
(Planning, Site Assembly, Business Plan
satisfied for a Phase
and Funding Condition) to drawdown of a ● There are longstop dates for
Works Agreement/Lease for each Phase
satisfaction of each of the Conditions
Precedent

C38

6.

LEASE

6.1

Overview
Following satisfaction of the conditions precedent in accordance with the terms of the Development
Agreement in respect of a phase, the council will grant the LLP a 260 year lease of the land comprised
in that phase.

6.2

Summary of Key Terms
6.2.1

Term (clause 2)
260 years

6.2.2

Premium (clause 2)
The premium payable by the LLP for the land demised by a lease is the land value calculated
in accordance with the terms of the Development Agreement.

6.2.3

Permitted Use (clause 3)
The LLP is not permitted to use the land for anything other than carrying out the works until the
development has been completed.
After completion of the works, the use of the land is limited to residential with associated
amenity land and other uses permitted by a planning permission granted to the LLP for the
phase.

6.2.4

Disposals (clause 3)
Save for disposals of social rent and shared equity or shared ownership units to the council
the LLP must dispose of all dwellings by way of a standard form plot lease.

6.2.5

Forfeiture (clause 5)
If the LLP becomes insolvent or is in breach of its covenants under the lease the council is
entitled to terminate the lease subject to first giving any funder notice and the opportunity to
step in and remedy the breach.

5.3

Risk Mitigation
We have highlighted below potential risks to the council by entering into the Lease and the measures
that have been included to mitigate such risks:
Risk

Mitigation Measures in Legal Documents
Estate Management

1

Lack
of
proper It has been agreed with CPUK that the parties will work
maintenance and control of together to agree the most appropriate long term estate
the estate
management strategy for the estate however the intention is
that the Council will manage the whole of the estate and the
collection of service charges from the occupiers.

2

Lack
of
controls
anti-social behaviour

Shoosmiths LLP
March 2019

on

CPUK have provided a standard form lease to be used on all
of the private sale units which contain a standard list of
estate covenants restricting anti-social behaviour.

C39

Enclosure 1 to Annex 1

APPENDIX 1
Summary of draft Delegation Policy
Type of Decision

Exceptions

Corporate
decisions
(i.e.
re Corporate Decisions taken by the Board
Business Plans, incorporation of
● Variation to budget costs in Business Plan,
subsidiaries,
addition
of
new
within agreed parameters
Members, corporate transactions,
● Acquiring/disposing of an asset if sanctioned by
etc.) are delegated back up to each
a Business Plan
of the Members (i.e. the Council and
● Declaration/paying of distributions
the SIP).
● Engaging a consultant
●

Making a loan or giving credit

Operational decisions are taken by Operational Decisions taken by the Members:
the Board.
● Land identification within Development Site and
transfer of land to relevant LLP Party

Finance decisions (i.e. requests to
Council to contribute Land, requests
for loan note drawdown, entering
borrowing arrangement and giving
security re same) are taken by the
Board
Other decisions not covered by the
Delegations Policy are made by the
Board

●

Appointment of CEO and variation of terms
of/termination of CEO

●

Entering into transactions out of ordinary course,
not on arm’s length terms or with a connected
person

●

Procurement outside of procurement policy and
variation of procurement policy

●

Termination of agreements material to business
of LLP

●

Disposal of part of the business (more than 5%
of balance sheet surplus credit figure) if not in a
Business Plan

●

Announcements about the business of an LLP
Party

●

Adopting and varying any LLP Policies

